
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 1 
 
 
 

2010 ACTUAL COST-TO-BUDGET COMPARISON 
 

AND 
 

2010 AUDITED FINANCIAL REPORT 
 

FOR 
 

NORTH AMERICAN ELECTRIC RELIABILITY CORPORATION 
 



 

116-390 Village Blvd. 
Princeton, NJ 08540 

609.452.8060 | www.nerc.com 

 
 
 
 

 
North American Electric Reliability Corporation‐ Review of 2010 Year End Audited Statement 
of Activities and Capital Expenditures ‐ Budget to Actual Variance Analysis 
 

 
 
NERC’s approved 2010 budget  included $1,617,808  in  funding  from  the Transmission Owners 
and  Operators  Forum  (TOOF), which was  intended  to  cover  a  portion  of  NERC’s  General  & 
Administrative expenses as well as specific expenses budgeted to support the TOOF’s activities.  
The  TOOF  ceased  operations  at  the  end  of  2009  and  its  leadership  formed  a  successor 
organization,  the North American Transmission  Forum,  Inc., which operates  independently of 
NERC.   As a  result of  this  separation, $300,000  in budgeted  revenue  from TOOF  to offset  the 
cost of administrative and support services was not received. This report includes consolidated 
financial reports that present actual results compared to the approved 2010 budget,  including  
budgeted  funding  from and expenses  for  the TOOF, as well as actual  results  compared  to an 
adjusted 2010 budget excluding the funding from and expenses for TOOF. The following budget 
variance explanations are based on  the adjusted budget excluding  the budgeted  funding  from 
and expenses for the TOOF.   
 
The Total Change in Assets as reflected on the Statement of Activities and Capital Expenditures 
for the year ending December 31, 2010 was $2.8M.  NERC was $2.3M (6.0%) under budget due 
to  an  $869.4k  (2.2%)  increase  in  Funding,  a  $1.2M  (3.2%) decrease  in  Total  Expenses,  and  a 
$239.2k (50.9%) decrease in spending for Fixed Assets, compared to the adjusted budget.     
 
NERC’s 2010 Business Plan and Budget assumed no working capital reserve funding, with NERC 
relying on  its $4,000,000  Line of Credit  to  fund  contingencies.   The 2009 projected  year  end 
results  which  were  incorporated  in  the  2010  budget,  including  the  working  capital  reserve 
analysis,  assumed  a  2009  year  end working  capital  reserve balance of  $0.00.      In  fact, NERC 
ended 2009 with a negative working capital reserve balance of ($2.0M) as a result of the change 
to accrual accounting  for performance based  compensation.   However,  this negative working 
capital reserve balance was more than offset by the budget under run which resulted in a Total 
Change  in Assets of $2.8M as  stated  above, and  resulted  in a 2010  year end working  capital 
reserve of $789.9k.  
 
NERC’s  2010  Budget  included  a  credit  to  expense  of  ($750.0k)  representing  anticipated 
efficiency  savings  that  was  allocated  to  the  statutory  programs  on  the  basis  of  full‐time 
equivalent employees (FTE), because the efficiency savings were not specifically identified at the 
time  the  budget  was  submitted.    During  the  first  quarter  of  2010,  in  furtherance  to  the 
commitment  to  reduce  costs,  improve  efficiency  and  achieve  these  savings,  NERC’s  senior 
management  undertook  a  comprehensive  review  of  NERC’s  organizational  structure  and 
resource  allocation,  as well  as  consulting,  contract,  travel  and meeting  expenses  and  other 
operating  costs.  As  a  result  of  this  process,  NERC  made  certain  improvements  to  its 
organizational  structure  to  better  align  the  strengths  of  NERC’s  leadership  team  with  the 
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organization’s goals and objectives as presented to and approved by NERC’s board.   NERC also 
identified  certain  costs,  primarily  involving  lower  priority  consulting  and  contract  budget 
amounts  that could be reduced in order to achieve the budgeted efficiency savings. These cost 
reductions are further explained below and in the Program Area variance detail. 
 
 
 
FUNDING – Total  funding was $869.4k over  the adjusted budget  for  the year.   An  increase  in 
Testing  Fees,  Certificate  Renewal  Fees  and  Continuing  Education  provider  fees  that  was 
implemented at the end of 2009 to more closely recover the costs of these programs, including 
the cost of overhead, resulted in $1.1M in funding over budget because the increase in fees was 
not included in the 2010 budget.  The increases in these fees, which are intended to offset the 
cost of these programs, were put in effect after NERC’s 2010 budget was filed and approved and 
therefore were not reflected in the budget funding assumptions.   
 
GADS  Services,  Software, Workshop  Fees  and  Interest  Income were  also over budget  for  the 
year by $206.7k.   NERC received higher revenues from GADS Services, Software and Workshop 
Fees  than budgeted,  and  earned unbudgeted  interest  income on deposits of penalty monies 
that were received in the latter part of 2009. 
 
These over budget  items were partially offset by a  reduction  in Miscellaneous Funding, which 
was under budget by $400.9k.  Miscellaneous Funding represented the anticipated paymentsto 
NERC for acting as the compliance enforcement authority (CEA) for certain registered functions 
in FRCC, SPP, Texas RE and WECC.    In mid‐2010, FERC approved SERC  to become  the CEA  for 
FRCC  and  SPP,  and  Texas  RE  separated  from  ERCOT  effective  July  1,  2010,  eliminating  the 
requirement  for NERC  to act as  the CEA  in  those Regions  in  the second half of 2010. Further, 
NERC’s CEA activity  in the WECC Region was  limited  in 2010.   The budget assumptions did not 
reflect these developments.    
 
 
EXPENSES 

 Personnel Expenses (Actual $245.5k under budget – 1.1%) – NERC ended 2010 with 124 
full‐time  employees  and  one  part‐time  employee  on  staff  for  a  total  headcount  of 
124.67.   Total FTEs  in 2010 was under budget by 6.0, 120.5 versus a budget of 126.5. 
The lower FTE result was due to a combination of employee turnover and difficulties in 
filling budgeted positions.   FTE  is defined as a  full‐time employee.   Fractional FTEs are 
either part‐time employees or  full‐time employees who did not work at NERC  for  the 
entire year. 

o Salaries  (Actual  $710.5k  over  budget  ‐  4.3%)  Primarily  due  to  the  change  to 
accrual  accounting  for  performance‐based  compensation  and  higher  than 
budgeted  2010  at  risk  performance  based  incentive  compensation  tied  to 

corporate, departmental and individual performance results.  
o Employee Benefits (Actual $453.5k under budget ‐ 20.0%).  Lower enrollment in 

NERC’S  medical  benefits  plan  than  assumed  and  a  lower  average  cost  for 
enrolled  employees  than  budgeted  resulted  in  $391.6k  under  budget  spend.  
Life  insurance benefits were $102.5k under budget due to a change  in carriers 
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which reduced rates for all employees,  including officers.   These under budget 
variances were offset by over budget spend for employee education programs 
($17.9k), worker’s compensation insurance ($5.6k) and relocation ($17.0k). 

o Savings and Retirement (Actual $482.3k under budget ‐ 21.3%). Primarily due to 
(i)  the  timing of new hires  resulting  in  later entry  into  the  retirement plan by 
these  employees  than  anticipated  and  (ii)  forfeitures  of  unvested  employer 
contributions that were not budgeted.     

 

 Meeting, Travel and Conferencing Expenses (Actual $488.9k under budget ‐ 13.9%)  
o Meeting Expenses  (Actual $463.5k under budget) – Small meetings with 25 or 

fewer attendees were held at regional entity and stakeholder offices instead of 
using  rented  space  in  hotels,  resulting  in  cost  savings.    The  cost  of  larger 
meetings  such as  the  joint  standing  committee meetings was also  lower  than 
budgeted.   

o Travel (Actual $183.8k under budget) – due to increased use of conference calls  
instead of  in‐person meetings and  reduction of personnel attending  in person 
meetings. 

o Conference Calls (Actual $158.4k over budget) – Reflective of the increased use 
of  conference  calls  in  lieu  of  in  person meetings,  as well  as  the  increase  in 
programs  offered  to  promote  stakeholder  education  and  awareness,  which 
were offered via conference calls and Webinars.      

 

 Operating Expenses (Actual $471.9k under budget – 3.8%)  
o Consultants and Contracts  ‐ (Actual $1.9M under budget)  

  Compliance  ($664.1k  under  budget)  ‐  Development  of  the  C‐RATS 
database  was  budgeted  as  Consulting  Expense,  but  $343.3k  of  the 
actual cost incurred in 2010 was recorded as capitalized software. Total 
development  costs  for  C‐RATS  were  $31.8k  below  budget  due  to 
reduced  cost  of  the  Consortium  User  Group module.      Spending  for 
consultants  and  contractors  to  assist  in  audits  of  Regional  Entity 
compliance programs was under budget by $141.8k.   A budgeted  item 
of  $200k  for  subject matter  experts was  identified  and  eliminated  as 
efficiency savings during the review of overall NERC resources.   

 Reliability  Assessments  and  Performance  Analysis  ($457.8k  under 
budget) – $155.0k for tools needed for automated reliability reports and 
centralized  data  collection  was  budgeted  as  Contract  Expense,  but 
$143.7k of  the actual  costs were  recorded  in Office Costs as  software 
license fees.  $283.5k under budget in various projects planned in Event 
Analysis,  such  as  the  modeling  initiative  and  System  Protection  and 
Control Subcommittee Support, which was fully managed by NERC staff.  
Actual spend includes $71.9k for two projects budgeted to take place in 
2011 (DADS and the Spare Equipment Database) that were accelerated 
to the fourth quarter of 2010.    

 Training and Education  ($245.8k under budget)  ‐ $75.0k budgeted  for 
PCGC advanced certification was not utilized based upon input from the 
Operating Committee.  The balance of the under run was due to delays 
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in implementation of planned course development as requirements are 
better defined in an effort to enhance overall training effectiveness.  

 Situation  Awareness  and  Infrastructure  Security  ($337.3k  under 
budget)       NASPI  project  $142.2k  under  budget  due  to  reductions  in 
costs  realized  through  contractor  negotiations;  TFE  processing  under 
budget  $114.9k  because,  as  the  TFE  process  was  finalized  after  the 
budget was  submitted,  this work  is primarily handled by  the Regional 
Entities;  remaining  under  budget  spend  in  CIP  department  due  to 
postponement of planned  initiatives pending  a  comprehensive  review 
of CIP initiatives by the new leadership team.   

 Information  Technology  –  ($134.2k  under  budget)  Budgeted 
programming support was under budget by $196.0k, offset by $61.8k in 
additional  spending  for  studies  to  evaluate  various  infrastructure 
alternatives associated with ongoing operations. 

 Human Resources (Actual $307.7k under budget) Lower than budgeted 
spend for staff development and executive search fees, offset by costs 
associated with a market compensation study. 
 

o Office Costs –  (Over budget by $224.9k – 14.8%) –  Internet expense exceeded 
budget by $389.4k due to increases in bandwidth and added carrier redundancy 
to  support  ongoing  operations.    Sales  and Use  Tax was  over  budget  $38.3k, 
primarily  due  to  unbudgeted  taxes  associated  with  the  services  for  
development  of  the  C‐RATS  Compliance  database; merchant  credit  card  fees 
over budget $46.3k due to an increase in the number of payments received for 
testing  fees,  certificate  renewals  and  workshop  fees.    These  over  budget 
expenditures were offset by the following under budget spend items; $47.3k for 
telephone  expense;  $26.1k  for office  supplies;  $107.1k  for  computer  supplies 
and maintenance; and $90.6k reduction in subscriptions and publications.   
 

Professional Services ‐ (Over budget by $259k ‐ 17.7%) –  BOT fees exceeded budget by 
$58.6k due  to  increased Trustee participation at Regional and  industry meetings; BOT 
search fees  of $62.0k were not budgeted; fees for outside counsel exceeded budget by 
$114.4k due to FERC filings related to the CMEP for FRCC, SPP, Texas RE and WECC, TFE 
processing and the Texas RE revised 2010 budget, review of various contracts for GADS, 
TADS, DADS and SAFNR, and  lobbying activities;  the  remaining $24.6k  in over budget 
spend was for increased insurance costs and accounting fees.  
 

 
FIXED ASSETS – (Actual $239.3k under budget – 50.9%)  IT deferred $456.2k in budgeted spend 
in the Princeton office  in anticipation of establishing new  infrastructure  in connection with the 
headquarters relocation.     $157.0k  in savings was also realized through eliminating  low priority 
software purchases.   This under budget spend was offset by $343.3k  in spend  for  the C‐RATS 
database which was budgeted as a Consulting Expense but actual expenditures were recorded 
as Capital Expenditures.   
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ALLOCATION OF INDIRECT EXPENSES 
NERC  allocates  indirect  or  administrative  expenses  and  capital  expenditures  to  the  statutory 
programs based upon the ratio of FTEs in those program areas to total statutory program FTEs.  
The variances associated with this allocation are the result of the differences in the actual versus 
budgeted ratio of FTEs and the actual versus budgeted spend in the administrative cost centers. 
 
 
USE OF STATUTORY FUNDS FOR NON‐STATUTORY ACTIVITIES 
NERC does not have non‐statutory activities and therefore did not use statutory funds for non‐
statutory activity.   
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NORTH AMERICAN ELECTRIC RELIABILITY CORPORATION 
Statement of Activities and Capital Expenditures 

As of December 31, 2010 
(Including Transmission Owners and Operators Forum) 

Consolidated

2010             

Actual 

2010                

Budget 

 2010 Variance from 

Budget          

Over(Under) 
Funding
   Assessments            37,063,569                  37,063,569                                      0 
   Membership Fees                               ‐                      1,617,808                    (1,617,808)
   Testing               2,182,291                    1,118,750                      1,063,541 
   Services & Software                  347,216                        250,000                            97,216 
   Workshop Fees                  191,200                          92,500                            98,700 
   Interest                    20,793                          10,000                            10,793 
   Miscellaneous                       3,901                        404,781                        (400,880)
Total  Funding            39,808,971                  40,557,408                        (748,437)

Expenses
   Personnel  Expenses
      Salaries            17,057,658                  17,187,146                        (129,488)
      Payroll  Taxes               1,015,648                    1,082,240                          (66,592)
      Employee Benefits               1,814,451                    2,345,685                        (531,235)
      Savings & Retirement               1,780,535                    2,381,540                        (601,005)
Total  Personnel  Expenses            21,668,291                  22,996,611                    (1,328,320)
   Meeting Expenses
      Meetings                  622,736                    1,116,200                        (493,464)
      Travel               2,046,978                    2,308,803                        (261,825)
      Conference Calls                  348,422                        190,000                         158,422 
Total  Meeting Expenses               3,018,135                    3,615,003                        (596,867)
   Operating Expenses
      Consultants  & Contracts                 6,797,262                    8,919,357                    (2,122,095)
      Rent & Improvements               1,005,233                        967,134                            38,100 
      Office Costs               1,746,325                    1,580,475                         165,850 
      Professional  Services               1,724,604                    1,533,000                         191,604 
      Miscellaneous                    85,807                            4,000                            81,807 
      Depreciation                  748,865                        752,988                            (4,123)
      Efficiency Improvements                              ‐                       (750,000)                        750,000 
Total  Operating Expenses            12,108,097                  13,006,954                        (898,857)

Indirect Expenses                               0                                   (0)                                     0 

Other Non‐Operating Expenses                              ‐                                     ‐                                       ‐  

Total  Expenses            36,794,523                  39,618,567                    (2,824,044)

Net Change in Assets               3,014,448                        938,841                      2,075,607 

Fixed Assets
     Depreciation                (748,865)                     (752,988)                             4,123 
     Computer & Software CapEx                  849,286                    1,122,785                        (273,499)
     Furniture & Fixtures  CapEx                    17,751                        100,000                          (82,249)
     Equipment CapEx                    70,545                                   ‐                             70,545 
     Leasehold Improvements                    41,831                                   ‐                             41,831 
(Incr)Dec in Fixed Asstes                (230,548)                     (469,797)                        239,250 

     Allocation of Fixed Assets                             (0)                                  ‐                                     (0)

Total  (Inc)Dec in Fixed Assets                (230,548)                     (469,797)                        239,250 

TOTAL CHANGE IN ASSETS               2,783,901                        469,043                      2,314,858 

FTE's                    120.50                          131.50                            (11.00)  
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NORTH AMERICAN ELECTRIC RELIABILITY CORPORATION 
Statement of Activities and Capital Expenditures 

As of December 31, 2010 
Transmission Owners and Operators Forum 

 

 

MEMBER FORUMS   2010         

Actual 

2010             

Budget 

2010 Variance 

from Budget       

Over(Under)  Comments (Explain variances < +/‐ 10% and <$10,000)

Funding

   Assessments                                ‐   

   Membership Fees               1,617,808                (1,617,808) ‐100.00%

   Testing                                ‐   

   Services & Software                                ‐   

   Workshop Fees                                ‐   

   Interest                                ‐   

   Miscellaneous                                ‐   

Total Funding                      ‐                 1,617,808                (1,617,808) ‐100.00%

Expenses

   Personnel Expenses

      Salaries                  839,989                   (839,989) ‐100.00%

      Payroll Taxes                     46,349                      (46,349) ‐100.00%

      Employee Benefits                     77,775                      (77,775) ‐100.00%

      Savings & Retirement                  118,695                   (118,695) ‐100.00%

Total Personnel Expenses                      ‐                 1,082,808                (1,082,808) ‐100.00%

   Meeting Expenses

      Meetings                     30,000                      (30,000) ‐100.00%

      Travel                     78,000                      (78,000) ‐100.00%

      Conference Calls                              ‐                                   ‐   

Total Meeting Expenses                      ‐                    108,000                   (108,000) ‐100.00%

   Operating Expenses

      Consultants & Contracts                   300,000                   (300,000) ‐100.00%

      Rent & Improvements                              ‐                                   ‐   

      Office Costs                     59,000                      (59,000) ‐100.00%

      Professional Services                     68,000                      (68,000) ‐100.00%

      Miscellaneous                              ‐                                   ‐   

      Depreciation                              ‐                                   ‐   

      Efficiency Improvements                                ‐   

Total Operating Expenses                      ‐                    427,000                   (427,000) ‐100.00%

Indirect Expenses                                ‐   

Other Non‐Operating Expenses                                ‐   

Total Expenses                      ‐                 1,617,808                (1,617,808) ‐100.00%

Net Change in Assets                      ‐                                 ‐                                   ‐   

Fixed Assets

     Depreciation 0  0                                 ‐   

     Computer & Software CapEx 0                                 ‐   

     Furniture & Fixtures CapEx 0                                 ‐   

     Equipment CapEx 0                                 ‐   

     Leasehold Improvements 0                                 ‐   

(Incr)Dec in Fixed Asstes                      ‐                                 ‐                                   ‐   

     Allocation of Fixed Assets                                ‐   

Total (Inc)Dec in Fixed Assets                      ‐                                 ‐                                   ‐   

TOTAL CHANGE IN ASSETS                      ‐                                 ‐                                   ‐   

FTE's ‐                                          5.00                          (5.00)

Budgeted funding and expenses related to the Transmission 

Owners and Operators Forum (TOOF) which ceased 

operations at the end of 2009.  TOOF leadership formed a 

successor organization, the North American Transmission 

Forum, Inc., which operates independent from NERC and 

therefore there were no actual funding or expense 

transactions in 2010.
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NORTH AMERICAN ELECTRIC RELIABILITY CORPORATION 
Statement of Activities and Capital Expenditures 

As of December 31, 2010 
(Excluding Transmission Owners and Operators Forum) 

 

Consolidated

2010             

Actual 

2010                

Budget 

 2010 Variance from 

Budget          

Over(Under) 
Funding
   Assessments            37,063,569                  37,063,569                                      0 
   Membership Fees                                ‐                                     ‐                                       ‐  
   Testing               2,182,291                    1,118,750                      1,063,541 
   Services  & Software                  347,216                        250,000                            97,216 
   Workshop Fees                  191,200                          92,500                            98,700 
   Interest                    20,793                          10,000                            10,793 
   Miscellaneous                       3,901                        404,781                        (400,880)
Total  Funding            39,808,971                  38,939,600                         869,370 

Expenses
   Personnel  Expenses
      Salaries            17,057,658                  16,347,157                         710,501 
      Payroll  Taxes               1,015,648                    1,035,891                          (20,244)
      Employee Benefits               1,814,451                    2,267,910                        (453,460)
      Savings  & Retirement               1,780,535                    2,262,845                        (482,310)
Total  Personnel  Expenses            21,668,291                  21,913,803                        (245,513)
   Meeting Expenses
      Meetings                  622,736                    1,086,200                        (463,464)
      Travel               2,046,978                    2,230,803                        (183,825)
      Conference Calls                  348,422                        190,000                         158,422 
Total  Meeting Expenses               3,018,135                    3,507,003                        (488,867)
   Operating Expenses
      Consultants  & Contracts                6,797,262                    8,619,357                    (1,822,095)
      Rent & Improvements               1,005,233                        967,134                            38,100 
      Office Costs               1,746,325                    1,521,475                         224,850 
      Professional  Services               1,724,604                    1,465,000                         259,604 
      Miscellaneous                    85,807                            4,000                            81,807 
      Depreciation                  748,865                        752,988                            (4,123)
      Efficiency Improvements                              ‐                       (750,000)                        750,000 
Total  Operating Expenses            12,108,097                  12,579,954                        (471,857)

Indirect Expenses                              ‐                                     ‐                                       0 

Other Non‐Operating Expenses                              ‐                                     ‐                                       ‐  

Total  Expenses            36,794,523                  38,000,760                    (1,206,237)

Net Change in Assets               3,014,448                        938,841                      2,075,607 

Fixed Assets
     Depreciation                (748,865)                     (752,988)                             4,123 
     Computer & Software CapEx                  849,286                    1,122,785                        (273,499)
     Furniture & Fixtures CapEx                    17,751                        100,000                          (82,249)
     Equipment CapEx                    70,545                                   ‐                             70,545 
     Leasehold Improvements                    41,831                                   ‐                             41,831 
(Incr)Dec in Fixed Asstes                (230,548)                     (469,797)                        239,250 

     Allocation of Fixed Assets                             (0)                                  ‐                                     (0)

Total  (Inc)Dec in Fixed Assets                (230,548)                     (469,797)                        239,250 

TOTAL CHANGE IN ASSETS               2,783,901                        469,043                      2,314,858 

FTE's                    120.50                          126.50                               (6.00)  



North American Electric Reliability Corporation

2010 Statement of Activities and Capital Expenditures

01/01/2010 ‐ 12/31/2010

Per Audit

RELIABILITY STANDARDS  2010           

Actual 

 2010           

Budget 

 2010 Variance 

from Budget       

Over(Under)  Comments (Explain variances < +/‐ 10% and <$10,000)

Funding

   Assessments            6,350,128             6,248,620                   101,508  1.62%

   Membership Fees                          ‐                              ‐                                 ‐   

   Testing                          ‐                              ‐                                 ‐   

   Services & Software                          ‐                              ‐                                 ‐   

   Workshop Fees                          ‐                              ‐                                 ‐   

   Interest                          ‐                              ‐                                 ‐   

   Misc.                              ‐   

Total Funding            6,350,128             6,248,620                   101,508  1.62%

Expenses

   Personnel Expenses

      Salaries            2,234,879             2,268,010                    (33,131) ‐1.46%

      Payroll Taxes               146,971                151,919                      (4,948) ‐3.26%

      Employee Benefits               208,495                285,300                    (76,804) ‐26.92% The budget is based upon an average cost per employee.  Several employees in this Program have not elected coverage.

      Savings & Retirement               272,480                323,547                    (51,066) ‐15.78% Due to the timing of new hires, eligibility in retirement programs was delayed. 

Total Personnel Expenses            2,862,826             3,028,775                  (165,949) ‐5.48%

   Meeting Expenses

      Meetings                 66,357                190,000                  (123,643) ‐65.08%

Meeting expense is under budget as a result of meetings being held at Regional Offices instead of hotels, and webinars taking the place of 

face‐to‐face meetings.

      Travel               342,307                350,000                      (7,693) ‐2.20%

      Conference Calls               108,355                  10,000                      98,355  983.55% Over budget spend due to the increased use of webinars to educate stakeholders and are being used instead of face‐to‐face meetings

Total Meeting Expenses               517,019                550,000                    (32,981) ‐6.00%

   Operating Expenses

      Consultants & Contracts                766,506                717,000                      49,506  6.90%

      Rent & Improvements                           ‐                                 ‐   

      Office Costs                 47,159                  20,500                      26,659  130.04%

$14.7k due to membership dues in NAESB and ANSI, which was budgeted in G&A; $9.8k for cell phone and air card charges which were 

allocated to the departments for the first time in 2010 on a full year basis are higher than anticipated.

      Professional Services                          ‐                              ‐                                 ‐   

      Miscellaneous                       978                            ‐                             978 

      Depreciation                           ‐                                 ‐   

      Efficiency Improvements              (127,225)                  127,225  Efficiency Improvements were allocate to the Programs in the budget but not tracked in actual costs.

Total Operating Expenses               814,643                610,275                   204,368  33.49%

Indirect Expenses            2,205,590             1,983,954                   221,637  11.17% The allocation of indirect expenses is based upon FTEs and expenditures in the overhead functions.

Other Non‐Operating Expenses                              ‐   

Total Expenses            6,400,078             6,173,004                   227,074  3.68%

Net Change in Assets                (49,950)                 75,616                  (125,566) ‐166.06%

Fixed Assets

     Depreciation                              ‐   

     Computer & Software CapEx                              ‐   

     Furniture & Fixtures CapEx                              ‐   

     Equipment CapEx                              ‐   

     Leasehold Improvements                              ‐   
(Incr)Dec in Fixed Asstes                          ‐                              ‐                                 ‐   

     Allocation of Fixed Assets (19,597) (75,616)                     56,020  The allocation of assets is based upon FTEs and expenditures in the overhead functions.

Total (Inc)Dec in Fixed Assets                (19,597)                (75,616)                     56,020  ‐74.08%

TOTAL CHANGE IN ASSETS                (69,546)                            0                    (69,546)

FTE's 17.00                                      17.50                         (0.50)

The 2010 Annual Budget included an offset of ($750,000) for expected efficiency savings in operations.  As noted below, ($127.2k) of the 

($750.0k) was allocated to Reliability Standards.  During the first quarter review of resource requirements throughout the Organization, 

management allocated an additional $101.5k in funding to the Standards Program to address the need for additional resources to support 

forecasted workload.



North American Electric Reliability Corporation

2010 Statement of Activities and Capital Expenditures

01/01/2010 ‐ 12/31/2010

Per Audit

COMPLIANCE OPERATIONS, 

ENFORCEMENT and ORGANIZATION 

REGISTRATION
 2010         

Actual 

 2010        

Budget 

 2010 Variance 

from Budget     

Over(Under)  Comments (Explain variances < +/‐ 10% and <$10,000)
Funding

   Assessments      12,514,444     14,312,732            (1,798,288) ‐12.56%
   Membership Fees                           ‐   
   Testing                           ‐   
   Services & Software                           ‐   
   Workshop Fees                           ‐   
   Interest                           ‐   

   Miscellaneous         404,781               (404,781) ‐100.00%

Miscellaneous Funding represents the anticipated reimbursement of costs for NERC to act as the compliance enforcement authority (CEA) for certain registered 

functions in FRCC, SPP, Texas RE and WECC.  FERC approved SERC as the CEA for FRCC and SPP, and Texas RE separated from ERCOT in mid‐2010, eliminating the 

requirement for NERC to act as the CEA in those Regions, and activity in the WECC Region was very limited in 2010.  
Total Funding      12,514,444     14,717,513            (2,203,069) ‐14.97%

Expenses
   Personnel Expenses

      Salaries        4,891,572       5,654,331               (762,758) ‐13.49%
      Payroll Taxes           315,585          378,714                 (63,129) ‐16.67%
      Employee Benefits           549,932          727,131               (177,199) ‐24.37%
      Savings & Retirement           616,041          795,620               (179,578) ‐22.57%
Total Personnel Expenses        6,373,131       7,555,795            (1,182,664) ‐15.65%
   Meeting Expenses
      Meetings             33,693             32,500                     1,193  3.67%
      Travel           669,113          890,917               (221,804) ‐24.90% Due to 11.5 fewer FTEs than budgeted in this Program.

      Conference Calls             34,338               5,000                   29,338  586.75% Over budget spend due to the increased use of webinars to educate stakeholders and are being used instead of face‐to‐face meetings.
Total Meeting Expenses           737,144          928,417               (191,273) ‐20.60%
   Operating Expenses

      Consultants & Contracts            435,930       1,100,000               (664,070) ‐60.37%

$343.3k for software development related to the Guidance/CRATS project budgeted as consulting was charged to Fixed Assets as a capital expense; $141.8k 

reduction in spend related to the audit of the Regional Entity compliance programs; $200k in subject matter experts for enforcement and investigations was 

identified as efficiency savings as explained in the summary Review of 2010 Year End Audited Statment of Activities under Operating Expenses and was not 

utilized.   
      Rent & Improvements                     ‐                              ‐   

      Office Costs             82,176             42,500                   39,676  93.35%

Cell phone/air card charges, which in prior years were budgeted totally in G&A, were higher than the amount allocated; Office supplies and express shipping 

charges primarily for telecommuters were not budgeted.

      Professional Services             25,510                      ‐                    25,510 

Legal fees related to FERC filings on the CMEP for FRCC, SPP, Texas RE and WECC and on TFE processing.  The estimated fees associated with the use of outside 

counsel are budgeted in the Legal Department, but actual costs are recorded to the Program area supported by the service.
      Miscellaneous                4,006                      ‐                      4,006 

      Depreciation           175,916             26,494                 149,422  563.98%

Development of the Guidance/CRATS database was budgeted as consulting, but actuals were charged to Fixed Assets as a capital expense resulting in increased 

depreciation expense above budget.
      Efficiency Improvements        (293,503)                293,503  ‐100.00% Efficiency Improvements were allocate to the Programs in the budget but not tracked in actual costs.
Total Operating Expenses           723,537          875,491               (151,954) ‐17.36%

Indirect Expenses        4,443,615       5,186,621               (743,006) ‐14.33% The allocation of indirect expenses is based upon FTEs and expenditures in the overhead functions.  Actual primarily lower due to fewer FTEs than budgeted. 

Other Non‐Operating Expenses                           ‐   

Total Expenses      12,277,427     14,546,324            (2,268,897) ‐15.60%

Net Change in Assets           237,017          171,188                   65,829  38.45%

Fixed Assets
     Depreciation (175,916) (26,494)              (149,422)

     Computer & Software CapEx 343,347  0                 343,347  Cost to develop new modules in the Guidance/CRATS database recorded as a fixed asset but were budgeted in Consultants and Contracts as noted above.
     Furniture & Fixtures CapEx 0                            ‐   
     Equipment CapEx 0                            ‐   
     Leasehold Improvements 0                            ‐   
(Incr)Dec in Fixed Asstes         (167,431)            26,494               (193,925)

     Allocation of Fixed Assets (39,481) (197,683)                158,201  ‐80.03% The allocation of assets is based upon FTEs and expenditures in the overhead functions.

Total (Inc)Dec in Fixed Assets         (206,912)        (171,188)                (35,724) 20.87%

TOTAL CHANGE IN ASSETS             30,105                     (0)                  30,105 

FTE's 34.25                            45.75                   (11.50)

One component of NERC's review of the organizational structure and resource allocation was the establishment of the CIP department which is reported in the 

Situation Awareness and Infrastructure Security Program.  To provide need resources, 7 FTEs budgeted in Compliance were transferred to CIP.  The remaining 4.5 

under budget FTEs is related to attrition and timing of new hires.  The percentage variance in Employee Benefits is higher than Salaries due to lower actual costs 

for medical benefits than the amount budgeted.  Retirement costs were also lower due to the timing of new hires delaying elibility in the Plan.

During the first quarter of 2010, NERC's management undertook a comprehensive review of NERC's organizational structure and resource allocation.  During this 

process, management reallocated resources to the Critical Infrastructure Protection ("CIP") department as explained under Personnel Expenses below.  As a 

result of this reallocation, assessment funding allocated to Compliance was reduced.



North American Electric Reliability Corporation

2010 Statement of Activities and Capital Expenditures

01/01/2010 ‐ 12/31/2010

Per Audit

RELIABILITY ASSESSMENTS and 

PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS
 2010         

Actual 

 2010          

Budget 

2010 Variance 

from Budget      

Over(Under)  Comments (Explain variances < +/‐ 10% and <$10,000)

Funding

   Assessments        4,687,978           6,381,859             (1,693,881) ‐26.54%

   Membership Fees                            ‐   

   Testing                            ‐   

   Services & Software           328,594               250,000                    78,594  31.44% Funding from the sale of GADS software and services higher than budget.

   Workshop Fees                      ‐                               ‐   

   Interest                            ‐   

   Miscellaneous                            ‐   

Total Funding        5,016,572           6,631,859             (1,615,287) ‐24.36%

Expenses

   Personnel Expenses

      Salaries        1,737,221           2,146,240                 (409,019) ‐19.06%

      Payroll Taxes           108,201               133,043                   (24,842) ‐18.67%

      Employee Benefits           175,305               264,460                   (89,155) ‐33.71% In addition to 3.0 fewer FTEs than budgeted, the average cost of medical benefits used for the budget was higher than actual.  

      Savings & Retirement           212,137               307,407                   (95,270) ‐30.99% In addition to 3.0 fewer FTEs than budgeted, the timing of new hires resulted in delayed entry into NERC's retirement program.

Total Personnel Expenses        2,232,864           2,851,150                 (618,286) ‐21.69%

   Meeting Expenses

      Meetings             10,445               200,000                 (189,555) ‐94.78% Meetings were held at stakeholder offices instead of hotels and the increased used of conference calls in place of face‐to‐face meetings.

      Travel           286,101               420,000                 (133,899) ‐31.88% Fewer FTEs than budgeted.

      Conference Calls             29,451                 10,000                    19,451  194.51% Additional webinars and conference calls in place of face‐to‐face meetings.

Total Meeting Expenses           325,998               630,000                 (304,002) ‐48.25%

   Operating Expenses

      Consultants & Contracts            691,610           1,149,400                 (457,790) ‐39.83%

$283.5k under budget in various projects planned, such as the modeling initiative and SPCS support; tools needed for automated reliability reports 

and centralized data collection were budgeted as Contract Expense, but $143.7k of actual costs were recorded in Office Costs as software license 

fees.  $71.9k spent on two projects budgeted for 2011 (DADS and the Spare Equipment Database).

      Rent & Improvements                        ‐                               ‐   

      Office Costs           219,074                 51,650                  167,424  324.15% Software license fees budgeted as Contract Expense as noted above.

      Professional Services             12,650                         ‐                      12,650 

Outstide counsel fees to review various contracts for GADS, TADS and DADS.  All outside counsel fees budgeted in the Legal and Regulatory 

Program.

      Miscellaneous                4,289                         ‐                         4,289 

      Depreciation             36,384                 68,129                   (31,744) ‐46.59% Analysis software was not purchased, reducing depreciation.

      Efficiency Improvements            (129,952)                 129,952  Efficiency Improvements were allocate to the Programs in the budget but not tracked in actual costs.

Total Operating Expenses           964,008           1,139,227                 (175,218) ‐15.38%

Indirect Expenses        1,686,628           1,813,900                 (127,273) ‐7.02% The allocation of indirect expenses is based upon FTEs and expenditures in the overhead functions.   

Other Non‐Operating Expenses                            ‐   

Total Expenses        5,209,498           6,434,277             (1,224,779) ‐19.04%

Net Change in Assets          (192,926)              197,581                 (390,508) ‐197.64%

Fixed Assets

     Depreciation (36,384) (68,129)                   31,744 

     Computer & Software CapEx 41,936  196,575                 (154,639) Analysis software not purchased.

     Furniture & Fixtures CapEx 0                             ‐   

     Equipment CapEx 0                             ‐   

     Leasehold Improvements 0                             ‐   

(Incr)Dec in Fixed Asstes              (5,552)            (128,447)                 122,895 

     Allocation of Fixed Assets (14,986) (69,135)                   54,149  The allocation of assets is based upon FTEs and expenditures in the overhead functions.

Total (Inc)Dec in Fixed Assets            (20,537)            (197,581)                 177,044  ‐89.61%

TOTAL CHANGE IN ASSETS          (213,464)                        ‐                  (213,464)

FTE's                13.00                   16.00                       (3.00)

Reduced Salaries and Payroll Tax Expenses are related to 3.0 fewer FTEs in the Program than budgeted.

During management's first quarter of resource requirements, 3 FTEs budgeted in the Reliability Assessments and Performance Analysis Program 

were reallocated to other Programs.  As a result, Assessment Funding allocated to this Program was reduced. 



North American Electric Reliability Corporation

2010 Statement of Activities and Capital Expenditures

01/01/2010 ‐ 12/31/2010

Per Audit

TRAINING, EDUCATION and 

OPERATOR CERTIFICATION
 2010         

Actual 

 2010         

Budget 

 2010 Variance from 

Budget          

Over(Under)  Comments (Explain variances < +/‐ 10% and <$10,000)

Funding

   Assessments       1,128,746         1,502,381                        (373,635) ‐24.87%

   Membership Fees                       ‐                                       ‐   

   Testing       2,182,291         1,118,750                      1,063,541  95.07%

At the end of 2009, Testing Fees, Certificate Renewal Fees and Continuing Education provider fees were increased to more closely recover the 

costs of these programs, including overhead.  In addition to the fee increase, there was a significant increase in the number of Testing Fees 

collected.

   Services & Software                       ‐                                       ‐   

   Workshop Fees           191,200               92,500                            98,700  $75k for NASPI workshops not budgeted.  Other workshops had higher attendance than budgeted. 

   Interest                       ‐                                       ‐   

   Miscellaneous                       ‐                                       ‐   

Total Funding       3,502,237         2,713,631                          788,606  29.06%

Expenses

   Personnel Expenses

      Salaries           568,101            730,840                        (162,739) ‐22.27%

      Payroll Taxes             38,419               51,656                          (13,237) ‐25.63%

      Employee Benefits             56,129            103,427                          (47,297) ‐45.73% In addition to 2.0 fewer FTEs than budgeted, the average cost of medical benefits used for the budget was higher than actual.  

      Savings & Retirement             71,541            102,347                          (30,806) ‐30.10% Related to 2.0 fewer FTEs than budgeted.

Total Personnel Expenses           734,190            988,270                        (254,079) ‐25.71%

   Meeting Expenses

      Meetings           161,309            187,500                          (26,191) ‐13.97% Fewer face‐to‐face meetings held in 2010 than budgeted.

      Travel             22,280               72,225                          (49,945) ‐69.15% Fewer FTEs than budget and fewer meetings held than budget.

      Conference Calls             58,154               80,000                          (21,846) ‐27.31% NERC changed online meeting providers and reduced the monthly basic service cost budgeted and charged to the Training Program.

Total Meeting Expenses           241,743            339,725                          (97,982) ‐28.84%

   Operating Expenses

      Consultants & Contracts            318,001            563,800                        (245,799) ‐43.60%

$75.0k budgeted for PCGC advanced certification was not utilized based upon input from the Operating Committee.  The balance of the under 

run was due to delays in implementation of planned course development as requirements are better defined in an effort to enhance overall 

training effectiveness.

      Rent & Improvements                       ‐                                       ‐   

      Office Costs             58,050               59,300                            (1,250) ‐2.11%

      Professional Services                       ‐                                       ‐   

      Miscellaneous                  184                        ‐                                   184 

      Depreciation                       ‐                                       ‐   

      Efficiency Improvements            (31,869)                           31,869  Efficiency Improvements were allocate to the Programs in the budget but not tracked in actual costs.

Total Operating Expenses           376,235            591,231                        (214,996) ‐36.36%

Indirect Expenses           616,268            765,239                        (148,971) The allocation of indirect expenses is based upon FTEs and expenditures in the overhead functions.   

Other Non‐Operating Expenses                                    ‐   

Total Expenses       1,968,436         2,684,465                        (716,029) ‐26.67%

Net Change in Assets       1,533,801               29,166                      1,504,635  5158.81%

Fixed Assets

     Depreciation 0  0                                     ‐   

     Computer & Software CapEx 0                                     ‐   

     Furniture & Fixtures CapEx 0                                     ‐   

     Equipment CapEx 0                                     ‐   

     Leasehold Improvements 0                                     ‐   

(Incr)Dec in Fixed Asstes                      ‐                          ‐                                       ‐   

     Allocation of Fixed Assets (5,476) (29,166)                           23,691  The allocation of assets is based upon FTEs and expenditures in the overhead functions.

Total (Inc)Dec in Fixed Assets             (5,476)            (29,166)                           23,691 

TOTAL CHANGE IN ASSETS       1,528,325                       (0)                     1,528,325 

FTE's 4.75                                  6.75                               (2.00)

Reduced Salaries and Payroll Tax Expenses are related to 2.0 fewer FTEs in the Program than budgeted.

During management's first quarter of resource requirements, 2 FTEs budgeted in the Training and Education Program were reallocated to other 

Programs.  As a result, Assessment Funding allocated to this Program was reduced. 



North American Electric Reliability Corporation

2010 Statement of Activities and Capital Expenditures

01/01/2010 ‐ 12/31/2010

Per Audit

SITUATION AWARENESS and 

INFRASTRUCTURE SECURITY

 2010           

Actual 

2010           

Budget 

 2010 Variance 

from Budget     Comments (Explain variances < +/‐ 10% and <$10,000)

Funding

   Assessments          11,913,231             8,148,935            3,764,296  46.19%

   Membership Fees                         ‐   

   Testing                         ‐   

   Services & Software                  18,622                 18,622  FIST Royalties and TSIN fees not budgeted.

   Workshop Fees                           ‐                            ‐   

   Interest                         ‐   

   Miscellaneous                         ‐   

Total Funding          11,931,853             8,148,935            3,782,919  46.42%

Expenses

   Personnel Expenses

      Salaries            2,613,051             1,453,624            1,159,427  79.76%

      Payroll Taxes                146,980                   87,221                 59,760  68.52%

      Employee Benefits                239,308                 155,987                 83,320  53.41%

      Savings & Retirement                292,913                 197,761                 95,153  48.11%

Total Personnel Expenses            3,292,253             1,894,593            1,397,660  73.77% All Personnel Expenses over budget as a result of reallocation of 10.75 FTEs to this Program.

   Meeting Expenses

      Meetings                177,634                 300,000             (122,366) ‐40.79% In addition to reducing the number of face‐to‐face meetings, the cost of quarterly standing committee meetings was reduced

      Travel                364,416                 220,161               144,255  65.52% Increased travel related to added FTEs.

      Conference Calls                  44,428                            ‐                   44,428  Conference calls and webinars in place of face‐to‐face meetings.

Total Meeting Expenses                586,478                 520,161                 66,317  12.75%

   Operating Expenses

      Consultants & Contracts             4,268,832             4,606,157             (337,325) ‐7.32%

NASPI project $142.2k under budget; TFE processing under budget $114.9k as this work primarily handled by the Regional Entities; 

remaining under budget spend in CIP department due to delays in the start of a number of planned initiatives

      Rent & Improvements                           ‐                            ‐   

      Office Costs                  66,063                 148,000                (81,937) ‐55.36% Primarily related to budget for purchase of published information and commissioned specialized papers which did not occur.

      Professional Services                  16,819                            ‐                   16,819 

Outside counsel review of contracts for reliability tools and SAFNR.  All outside counsel fees budgeted in the Legal & Regulatory 

Program.

      Miscellaneous                    1,040                            ‐                     1,040 

      Depreciation                  47,917                   45,884                   2,033 

      Efficiency Improvements              (167,451)              167,451  Efficiency Improvements were allocate to the Programs in the budget but not tracked in actual costs.

Total Operating Expenses            4,400,671             4,632,590             (231,919) ‐5.01%

Indirect Expenses            2,659,682             1,105,346            1,554,337  The allocation of indirect expenses is based upon FTEs and expenditures in the overhead functions.   

Other Non‐Operating Expenses                         ‐   

Total Expenses          10,939,084             8,152,690            2,786,394  34.18%

Net Change in Assets                992,769                   (3,755)              996,525 

Fixed Assets

     Depreciation (47,917) (45,884)                 (2,033)

     Computer & Software CapEx 2,312  0                   2,312 

     Furniture & Fixtures CapEx 0                          ‐   

     Equipment CapEx 0                          ‐   

     Leasehold Improvements 0                          ‐   

(Incr)Dec in Fixed Asstes                  45,605                   45,884                     (279) ‐0.61%

     Allocation of Fixed Assets (23,631) (42,129)                18,498  The allocation of assets is based upon FTEs and expenditures in the overhead functions.

Total (Inc)Dec in Fixed Assets                  21,974                     3,755                 18,219  485.18%

TOTAL CHANGE IN ASSETS            1,014,743                           (0)           1,014,743 

FTE's 20.50                                         9.75                   10.75 

During the first quarter of 2010, NERC's management undertook a comprehensive review of NERC's organizational structure and 

resource allocation.  During this process, management reallocated FTE and Consulting/Contract resources to Situation Awareness 

and Infrastructure Security, ("SAIS") and to the Critical Infrastructure Protection ("CIP") department (included in SAIS).  As a result of 

this reallocation, assessment funding allocted to SAIS was increased.
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01/01/2010 ‐ 12/31/2010

Per Audit

GENERAL and ADMINISTRATIVE  2010        

Actual 

 2010          

Budget 

2010 Variance 

from Budget      

Over(Under)  Comments (Explain variances < +/‐ 10% and <$10,000)

Funding

   Assessments         469,043              469,043                               0  0.00%

   Membership Fees                            ‐   

   Testing                            ‐   

   Services & Software                            ‐   

   Workshop Fees                            ‐   

   Interest           20,793                10,000                     10,793  107.93% Increased earnings due to investment of $10.2M in Penalties received in the later part of 2009.

   Miscellaneous             3,901                       3,901 

Total Funding         493,737              479,043                     14,694  3.07%

Expenses

   Personnel Expenses

      Salaries      1,546,086              870,200                   675,886  77.67%

      Payroll Taxes           78,079                39,376                     38,703  98.29%

      Employee Benefits         189,982              141,485                     48,497  34.28% $30.8k relocation expenses and $10.5k for education and training budgeted in HR

      Savings & Retirement         (78,319)             112,630                 (190,949) ‐169.54% 2010 expense was offset by $258.8k in forfeitures of unvested employer retirement contributions

Total Personnel Expenses      1,735,828          1,163,691                   572,137  49.17%

   Meeting Expenses

      Meetings         158,977              172,200                   (13,223) ‐7.68%

      Travel         243,862              168,500                     75,362  44.73% Related to additional FTEs and increased travel by the CEO and Board of Trustees.

      Conference Calls           64,066                85,000                   (20,934) ‐24.63% Budget and actual costs previously recorded in G&A were allocated to the Program areas.  The budget in G&A was over stated. 

Total Meeting Expenses         466,905              425,700                     41,205  9.68%

   Operating Expenses

      Consultants & Contracts              4,000            (300,000)                  304,000  ‐101.33% Loss of revenue from TOOF for administrative and support services.

      Rent & Improvements      1,005,233              967,134                     38,100  3.94%

      Office Costs         403,300              597,500                 (194,200) ‐32.50% Telephone and internet expense budgeted in G&A were recorded in Information Technology to be consistent with IT's oversight 

      Professional Services         980,294              815,000                   165,294  20.28%

Board of Trustee compensation $58.6k over budget due to increased Trustee attendance at Regional and industry meetings and an 

unbudgeted search fee of $62.0k; unbudgeted fees of $5.5k related to Canadian Trustee tax status and research of 501c3 status.  

      Miscellaneous           69,954                  4,000                     65,954  1648.85% Provision for uncollected accounts receivable related to unpaid assessments and GADS Services.

      Depreciation         118,589                95,286                     23,303  24.46%

Leasehold improvements and purchase of furniture occurred in 2009 after submission of the 2010 budget and were not included in the 

budget for depreciation.

      Efficiency Improvements                            ‐   

Total Operating Expenses      2,581,370          2,178,920                   402,450  18.47%

Indirect Expenses    (4,784,103)        (3,758,310)             (1,025,792) All expenses allocated to the Statutory Programs.

Other Non‐Operating Expenses                            ‐   

Total Expenses                    ‐                 10,000                   (10,000) ‐100.00%

Net Change in Assets         493,737              469,043                     24,694  5.26%

Fixed Assets

     Depreciation (118,589) (95,286)                  (23,303) See comment above for Depreciation.

     Computer & Software CapEx 6,199  0                       6,199 

     Furniture & Fixtures CapEx 17,751  100,000                   (82,249) Budget was for added cubicles for increasing staff.  The expense was not incurred due to the relocation of NERC's headquarters.

     Equipment CapEx 0  0                             ‐   

     Leasehold Improvements 41,831  0                     41,831  Buildout of additional offices in DC not budgeted.

(Incr)Dec in Fixed Asstes           52,808                (4,714)                    57,522  ‐12.20165

     Allocation of Fixed Assets (52,808) 4,714                   (57,522) Net asset change allocated to the Statutory Programs.

Total (Inc)Dec in Fixed Assets                    ‐                           ‐                               ‐   

TOTAL CHANGE IN ASSETS         493,737              469,043                     24,694 

FTE's 6.00                                 4.00                         2.00 

As part of management's review of NERC'S organizational structure and to address feedback from the Three Year Performance 

Assessment, 2.0 FTEs were allocated from other Program Areas.  Performance based incentive expense also exceeded budget as a result 

of the achievement of corporate, deparmental and personal goals.
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LEGAL and REGULATORY  2010            

Actual 

 2010         

Budget 

2010 Variance 

from Budget     

Over(Under)  Comments (Explain variances < +/‐ 10% and <$10,000)

Funding

   Assessments                          ‐   

   Membership Fees                          ‐   

   Testing                          ‐   

   Services & Software                          ‐   

   Workshop Fees                          ‐   

   Interest                          ‐   

   Miscellaneous                          ‐   

Total Funding                           ‐                         ‐                             ‐   

Expenses

   Personnel Expenses

      Salaries             1,365,478         1,237,000                128,478  10.39%

Primarily due to the change to accrual accounting and higher than budgeted 2010 performance based incentive compensation tied to

corporate, departmental and individual performance results. 
      Payroll Taxes                   64,011               61,813                    2,199  3.56%

      Employee Benefits                 115,492             134,415                 (18,924) ‐14.08% The average cost of medical benefits used for the budget was higher than actual experience. 

      Savings & Retirement                 152,402             159,601                   (7,199) ‐4.51%

Total Personnel Expenses             1,697,382         1,592,829                104,553  6.56%

   Meeting Expenses

      Meetings                     4,864                       ‐                      4,864 

There were meetings of the Legal Advisory committee, Trade Association meetings, and various other meetings that were not budgeted 

this year.

      Travel                   51,472               65,000                 (13,528) ‐20.81% Less travel to Canada than planned.

      Conference Calls                     2,964                       ‐                      2,964 

Total Meeting Expenses                   59,300               65,000                   (5,700) ‐8.77%

   Operating Expenses

      Consultants & Contracts                    79,215             108,000                 (28,785) ‐26.65% Canadian affairs required less time than budgeted.

      Rent & Improvements                      ‐                             ‐   

      Office Costs                   25,143               17,500                    7,643  43.67% Cell phone/air card charges, which in prior years were budgeted totally in G&A, were higher than the amount allocated.

      Professional Services                 445,635             550,000              (104,365) ‐18.98%

Outside Counsel expense is budgeted in the Legal and Regulatory program area, but the actual invoice is charged to the applicable 

program where the service was performed.  

      Miscellaneous                        686                       ‐                          686 

      Depreciation                      ‐                             ‐   

      Efficiency Improvements                      ‐                             ‐   

Total Operating Expenses                 550,678             675,500              (124,822) ‐18.48%

Indirect Expenses            (2,307,361)       (2,333,329)                 25,968  All expenses allocated to the Statutory Programs.

Other Non‐Operating Expenses                          ‐   

Total Expenses                           ‐                         ‐                            (0)

Net Change in Assets                           ‐                         ‐                              0 

Fixed Assets

     Depreciation 0  0                           ‐   

     Computer & Software CapEx 0                           ‐   

     Furniture & Fixtures CapEx 0                           ‐   

     Equipment CapEx 0                           ‐   

     Leasehold Improvements 0                           ‐   

(Incr)Dec in Fixed Asstes                           ‐                         ‐                             ‐   

     Allocation of Fixed Assets 0                           ‐   

Total (Inc)Dec in Fixed Assets                           ‐                         ‐                             ‐   

TOTAL CHANGE IN ASSETS                           ‐                         ‐                              0 

FTE's 7.00                                        7.00                           ‐   



North American Electric Reliability Corporation

2010 Statement of Activities and Capital Expenditures

01/01/2010 ‐ 12/31/2010

Per Audit

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY  2010           

Actual 

 2010           

Budget 

2010 Variance 

from Budget    

Over(Under)  Comments (Explain variances < +/‐ 10% and <$10,000)

Funding

   Assessments                         ‐   

   Membership Fees                         ‐   

   Testing                         ‐   

   Services & Software                         ‐   

   Workshop Fees                         ‐   

   Interest                         ‐   

   Miscellaneous                         ‐   

Total Funding                          ‐                             ‐                            ‐   

Expenses

   Personnel Expenses

      Salaries               849,827                789,767                 60,060  7.60% Lower salary expense due to fewer FTEs offset by performance based incentive expense higher than budgeted.

      Payroll Taxes                 48,669                  55,091                  (6,421) ‐11.66% Fewer FTEs than budgeted.

      Employee Benefits               139,972                124,003                 15,969  12.88% Education and Training budgeted in Human Resources, but actuals charged to the appropriate program.

      Savings & Retirement               107,264                112,477                  (5,213) ‐4.63%

Total Personnel Expenses           1,145,733             1,081,337                 64,396  5.96%

   Meeting Expenses

      Meetings                          ‐                            ‐   

      Travel                 23,002                  20,000                    3,002  15.01%

      Conference Calls                   4,424                           ‐                     4,424 

Total Meeting Expenses                 27,426                  20,000                    7,426  37.13%

   Operating Expenses

      Consultants & Contracts                190,824                325,000             (134,176) ‐41.28% Expenses related to programming support were less than anticipated.

      Rent & Improvements                          ‐                            ‐   

      Office Costs               823,484                577,525               245,959  42.59%

$468.8k for internet expense that was budgeted in General and Administration but charged to IT due to IT's oversight responsibility.  NERC's 

actual over budget spend for internet expense was $389.4K due to an increase in bandwidth and added carrier redundancy that occurred after 

the budget was submitted.   This variance is offset by a favorable variance in Computer Supplies and Maintenance as a result of purchases 

being delayed in anticipation of the relocation of the NERC headquarters.  

      Professional Services                          ‐                            ‐   

      Miscellaneous                   1,629                           ‐                     1,629 

      Depreciation               367,885                515,445             (147,560) The under budget variance in capital expenditures account for this favorable variance.

      Efficiency Improvements                         ‐   

Total Operating Expenses           1,383,822             1,417,970                (34,148) ‐2.41%

Indirect Expenses          (2,556,982)          (2,519,307)               (37,674) 1.50% All expenses allocated to the Statutory Programs.

Other Non‐Operating Expenses                         ‐   

Total Expenses                          ‐                             ‐                             0 

Net Change in Assets                          ‐                             ‐                           (0)

Fixed Assets

     Depreciation (367,885) (515,445)              147,560  The under budget variance in capital expenditures account for this favorable variance.

     Computer & Software CapEx 453,180  906,210             (453,030)

Information Technology delayed significant purchases and extended the life of current equipment to utilize the budget towards the cost of a 

new data center.  Contracts for the new data center were signed in 2011.

     Furniture & Fixtures CapEx 0  0                          ‐   

     Equipment CapEx 70,545  0                 70,545  Budgeted in Computer and Software CapEx.

     Leasehold Improvements 0  0                          ‐   

(Incr)Dec in Fixed Asstes             (155,840)             (390,765)              234,925 

     Allocation of Fixed Assets 155,840  390,765             (234,925) Net asset change allocated to the Statutory Programs.

Total (Inc)Dec in Fixed Assets                          ‐                             ‐                            ‐   

TOTAL CHANGE IN ASSETS                          ‐                             ‐                           (0)

FTE's 7.00                                          7.75                    (0.75)



North American Electric Reliability Corporation

2010 Statement of Activities and Capital Expenditures

01/01/2010 ‐ 12/31/2010

Per Audit

HUMAN RESOURCES  2010            

Actual 

 2010            

Budget 

 2010 Variance 

from Budget       

Over(Under)  Comments (Explain variances < +/‐ 10% and <$10,000)

Funding

   Assessments                              ‐   

   Membership Fees                              ‐   

   Testing                              ‐   

   Services & Software                              ‐   

   Workshop Fees                              ‐   

   Interest                              ‐   

   Miscellaneous                              ‐   

Total Funding                            ‐                               ‐                                 ‐   

Expenses

   Personnel Expenses

      Salaries                422,671                 384,337                      38,334  9.97% Additonal 0.75 FTE and performance based incentive expense higher than budgeted.

      Payroll Taxes                  24,913                   22,206                        2,707  12.19%

      Employee Benefits                  35,367                 202,560                  (167,193) ‐82.54%

Relocation and Education Reimbursement expenses were under budget because they are budgeted in HR but are charged to the 

Program where the employee works; medical benefits budgeted for all FTEs but not all in HR are enrolled.

      Savings & Retirement                  45,017                   41,809                        3,208  7.67%

Total Personnel Expenses                527,968                 650,912                  (122,944) ‐18.89%

   Meeting Expenses

      Meetings                     9,315                             ‐                          9,315  Numerous employee informational meetings were held throughout the year and were not budgeted.

      Travel                  17,691                      5,000                      12,691  253.82% Increased travel incurred with hiring new employees.

      Conference Calls                        561                             ‐                              561 

Total Meeting Expenses                  27,567                      5,000                      22,567  451.35%

   Operating Expenses

      Consultants & Contracts                   42,344                 350,000                  (307,656) ‐87.90%

Executive search fees and executive staff development and training not utilized as planned.  Actual spend for market compensation 

study.

      Rent & Improvements                            ‐                                 ‐   

      Office Costs                  13,713                      3,000                      10,713  357.11% Cell phone/air card charges, which in prior years were budgeted totally in G&A, were higher than the amount allocated.

      Professional Services                  69,394                             ‐                        69,394 

This unbudgeted expense is for legal and accounting services, Outside Counsel expenses are budgeted in Legal and Regulatory and 

Accounting services represent the cost of the HRIS system which was budgeted as a fixed asset but was expensed..

      Miscellaneous                     2,996                             ‐                          2,996 

      Depreciation                            ‐                                 ‐   

      Efficiency Improvements                              ‐   

Total Operating Expenses                128,448                 353,000                  (224,552) ‐63.61%

Indirect Expenses              (683,983)           (1,008,912)                   324,929  ‐32.21% All expenses allocated to the Statutory Programs.

Other Non‐Operating Expenses                              ‐   

Total Expenses                            ‐                               ‐                                 ‐   

Net Change in Assets                            ‐                               ‐                                 ‐   

Fixed Assets

     Depreciation 0  0                               ‐   

     Computer & Software CapEx 0  20,000                    (20,000)

Human Resources Information System (HRIS) planned as software CapEx purchase implemented through payroll provider and charged 

to Professional Services.

     Furniture & Fixtures CapEx 0                               ‐   

     Equipment CapEx 0                               ‐   

     Leasehold Improvements 0                               ‐   

(Incr)Dec in Fixed Asstes                            ‐                   (20,000)                     20,000 

     Allocation of Fixed Assets 0  20,000                    (20,000) Net asset change allocated to the Statutory Programs.

Total (Inc)Dec in Fixed Assets                            ‐                               ‐                                 ‐   

TOTAL CHANGE IN ASSETS                            ‐                               ‐                                 ‐   

FTE's 4.25                                            3.50                           0.75 



North American Electric Reliability Corporation

2010 Statement of Activities and Capital Expenditures

01/01/2010 ‐ 12/31/2010

Per Audit

ACCOUNTING and FINANCE   2010        

Actual 

 2010          

Budget 

2010 Variance 

from Budget     

Over(Under)  Comments (Explain variances < +/‐ 10% and <$10,000)

Funding

   Assessments                           ‐   

   Membership Fees                           ‐   

   Testing                           ‐   

   Services & Software                           ‐   

   Workshop Fees                           ‐   

   Interest                           ‐   

   Miscellaneous                           ‐   

Total Funding                    ‐                           ‐                              ‐   

Expenses

   Personnel Expenses

      Salaries         828,771              812,808                   15,963  1.96% Lower salary expense due to fewer FTEs offset by performance based incentive expense higher than budgeted.

      Payroll Taxes           43,819                54,854                 (11,036) ‐20.12% Fewer FTEs than budgeted.

      Employee Benefits         104,468              129,142                 (24,674) ‐19.11% The average cost of medical benefits budgeted per employee was higher than actual. 

      Savings & Retirement           89,058              109,647                 (20,589) ‐18.78% Fewer FTEs than budgeted and due to the timing of new hires eligibility in retirement programs was delayed. 

Total Personnel Expenses     1,066,116          1,106,451                 (40,335) ‐3.65%

   Meeting Expenses

      Meetings                 142                  4,000                    (3,858) ‐96.46%

      Travel           26,734                19,000                     7,734  40.70% Increased travel to BOT meetings and additional meetings held with the Regional Entity Budget Group and with FERC.  

      Conference Calls             1,680                         ‐                       1,680 

Total Meeting Expenses           28,555                23,000                     5,555  24.15%

   Operating Expenses

      Consultants & Contracts                         ‐                              ‐   

      Rent & Improvements                        ‐                              ‐   

      Office Costs             8,164                  4,000                     4,164  104.09%

      Professional Services         174,302              100,000                   74,302  74.30%

Outside Counsel fees related to various budget related filings including the Texas RE revised 2010 budget, the WECC revised 2010 

budget,  and the 2009 true‐up filing are charged to Finance but are budgeted in Legal and Regulatory

      Miscellaneous                   45                         ‐                             45 

      Depreciation             2,174                  1,750                         424 

      Efficiency Improvements                        ‐                              ‐   

Total Operating Expenses         184,685              105,750                   78,935  74.64%

Indirect Expenses    (1,279,356)        (1,235,201)                (44,154) 3.57% All expenses allocated to the Statutory Programs.

Other Non‐Operating Expenses                           ‐   

Total Expenses                    ‐                           ‐                             (0)

Net Change in Assets                    ‐                           ‐                               0 

Fixed Assets

     Depreciation (2,174) (1,750)                      (424)

     Computer & Software CapEx 2,312  0                     2,312 

     Furniture & Fixtures CapEx 0                            ‐   

     Equipment CapEx 0                            ‐   

     Leasehold Improvements 0                            ‐   

(Incr)Dec in Fixed Asstes               (138)                 1,750                    (1,888)

     Allocation of Fixed Assets 138  (1,750)                    1,888  Net asset change allocated to the Statutory Programs.

Total (Inc)Dec in Fixed Assets                    ‐                           ‐                              ‐   

TOTAL CHANGE IN ASSETS                    ‐                           ‐                               0 

FTE's 6.75                                  8.50                      (1.75)
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RELIABILITY 
ORGANIZATION 

2774 Cleveland Avenue N   •  Roseville, MN  55113   •  Phone (651) 855-1760   •  Fax (651) 855-1712   •  www.midwestreliability.org 

Sue Clarke, VP of Finance and Administration 
P:  (651) 855-1707 
F:  (651) 855-1712 

E:  sa.clarke@midwestreliability.org  
 
 

May 20, 2011                  
 
 
Mr. Michael Walker 
Ms. Susan Turpen 
North American Electric Reliability Corporation (NERC) 
116-390 Village Blvd. 
Princeton, NJ  08540-5721 
 
RE: 2010 Budget Variance Explanations Based on Audited Financials 
 
Dear Mr. Walker and Ms. Turpen: 
 
MRO staff reports the audited final numbers to be approximately 5% under budget ($408k).  The 
key contributors for this underage were under spending in external consultants, and a planned 
deferral in launching a software initiative.  
 
Change in Assets 
Change in Assets were ($620,508) under budget for 2010.  This compares to the approved 
($212,629) cash reserve as planned. The under budget amount was an additional ($407,879) over 
what was originally forecasted by MRO staff. The following are the major areas of budget variances: 
 

• $377,737 – Personnel Expenses   
Personnel expenses were over budget for 2010, but were offset by the underage in Consulting 
and Contracts expenses.  Consulting and Contracts expenses were under budget by 
($405,879), and included the cost of TFE Management and Administration.  MRO 
determined to source this function by adding additional CIP personnel to meet the growing 
needs in this area of the Compliance Department, in addition to the outside consulting 
contracted from July through December 2010. 
 
MRO shifted the Vacation expenses from Employee Paid Benefits (“Fringes”) to Salaries to 
be consistent with NERC for comparability purposes; therefore, MRO was under budget in 
Employee Benefits expenses for 2010.  
 
MRO allocated the specific salaries based on the FTE’s assigned to that program, which 
includes MRO average costs of benefits, savings and retirement. The summary page reflects 
the sum of salary, tax, benefits, savings and retirement costs for all employees. The reader 
should understand that MRO manages total organization-wide benefit costs rather than 
individual employee benefit costs.  
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• ($158,506) – Meeting Expenses 

Meeting expenses were under budget for 2010 due to lower than anticipated costs for 
meetings and workshops – MRO carried out the number of workshops as planned, but 
overall, meeting costs were lower because of some costs savings.    
 

• ($432,668) – Operating Expenses 
Operating expenses were under budget for 2010. As noted above, Consulting and Contracts 
expenses were under budget, which offset the overage in Personnel expenses for 2010 with 
the addition of CIP personnel. 
 

Statutory Programs 
MRO has no non-statutory activities in 2010; and therefore, no statutory funding was used for non-
statutory activities and no indirect costs were allocated from non-statutory to statutory.  
 
Cash Reserves 
No Cash Reserves were used in 2010. 

 
 
If you have any questions regarding this report, please contact me at 651-855-1707. 
 
Thank you, 
 

Sue Clarke 
 
Sue Clarke 
 
 

Cc: Daniel Skaar, MRO 
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2010 Statement of Activities Summary

Statutory Only
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(In Whole Dollars)

2010 Actual 2010 Budget 2010 Variance
Funding
ERO Funding -                                     -                                     -                                         
ERO Assessments 7,503,747                         7,503,747                         -                                         
Penalty Sanctions 75,487                               75,000                               487                                         
Total ERO Funding 7,579,234                         7,578,747                         487                                         

   Membership Fees & Non-Stat Assessments -                                     -                                     -                                         
   Testing Fees -                                     -                                     -                                         
   Services & Software -                                     -                                     -                                         
 Workshops -                                     -                                     -                                         
   Interest -                                     -                                     -                                         
   Miscellaneous -                                     -                                     -                                         
Total Funding 7,579,234                         7,578,747                         487                                         

Expenses
   Personnel Expenses
      Salaries 3,502,759                         3,083,706                         419,053                                 
      Payroll Taxes 229,837                             231,899                             (2,062)                                    
      Employee Benefits 422,623                             561,066                             (138,443)                                
      Savings & Retirement 600,093                             500,904                             99,189                                   
Total Personnel Expenses 4,755,312                         4,377,575                         377,737                                 

   Meeting Expenses
      Meetings 83,055                               140,495                             (57,440)                                  
      Travel 428,130                             529,196                             (101,066)                                
Total Meeting Expenses 511,185                             669,691                             (158,506)                                

   Operating Expenses
      Consultants & Contracts 589,236                             995,115                             (405,879)                                
      Office Rent 204,225                             228,300                             (24,075)                                  
      Office Costs 364,685                             427,557                             (62,872)                                  
      Professional Services 279,191                             277,530                             1,661                                      
      Miscellaneous -                                     -                                     -                                         
      Depreciation 388,496                             330,000                             58,496                                   
Total Operating Expenses 1,825,834                         2,258,502                         (432,668)                                

Total Direct Expenses 7,092,330                         7,305,768                         (213,438)                                

Total Indirect Expenses -                                     -                                     98,528                                   

Other Non-Operating Expenses -                                     -                                     -                                         

Total Expenses 7,092,330                         7,305,768                         (114,910)                                

Change in Assets 486,904                             272,979                             213,925                                 

Fixed Assets
Depreciation (388,496)                           (330,000)                           (58,496)                                  
Computer & Software CapEx 191,797                             365,350                             (173,553)                                
Furniture & Fixtures CapEx 13,004                               25,000                               (11,996)                                  
Equipment CapEx -                                     -                                     -                                         
Leasehold Improvements 50,091                               -                                     50,091                                   
Change in Fixed Assets 133,604                             (60,350)                             193,954                                 

Allocation of Fixed Assets -                                     -                                     -                                         

TOTAL CHANGE IN ASSETS 620,508                             212,629                             407,879                                 

FTE 30.50                                 27.75                                 2.75                                        

Nose Count 33.50                                 



MIDWEST RELIABILITY ORGANIZATION
2010 Statement of Activities Summary

Reliability Standards

Page 2 of 12 5/20/2011

(In Whole Dollars)

2010 Actual 2010 Budget 2010 Variance Comments - Explain variances that are +/- 10%
Funding
ERO Funding -                                   -                                   -                                        
ERO Assessments 434,869                           434,869                           -                                        0%
Penalty Sanctions 4,509                               4,480                               29                                         1%
Total ERO Funding 439,378                           439,349                           29                                         

   Membership Fees & Non-Stat Assessments -                                   -                                   -                                         
   Testing Fees -                                   -                                   -                                         
   Services & Software -                                   -                                   -                                         
 Workshops -                                   -                                   -                                        
   Interest -                                   -                                   -                                         
   Miscellaneous -                                   -                                   -                                         
Total Funding 439,378                           439,349                           29                                         

Expenses

   Personnel Expenses
The 2010 Budget was prepared on a program experience using department averages. The 2010 Actual was prepared based on 
cost per individual working within the program. Therefore, budget costs may be inadequate.

      Salaries 126,910                           157,600                           (30,690)                                 -19% Less work performed by MRO staff in this area than anticipated.
      Payroll Taxes 8,864                               11,581                             (2,717)                                   -23% The 2010 Budget for Payroll Tax costs were inadequate.

      Employee Benefits 11,845                             37,262                             (25,417)                                 -68% The 2010 Budget was prepared including the vacation benefit in benefits while the actual vacation costs were included in salaries.
      Savings & Retirement 25,894                             20,200                             5,694                                    28% The 2010 Budget for Saving and Retirement costs were inadequate.
Total Personnel Expenses 173,513                           226,643                           (53,130)                                 

   Meeting Expenses

      Meetings 8,606                               4,800                               3,806                                    79%
In 2010, the Standard Committee had prepared a new charter and the new direction resulted in more activity, the committee had 
more meetings than anticipated.

      Travel 25,651                             21,000                             4,651                                    22%
In 2010, the Standard Committee had prepared a new charter and the new direction resulted in more activity, the committee had 
more travel than anticipated.

Total Meeting Expenses 34,257                             25,800                             8,457                                    

   Operating Expenses
      Consultants & Contracts 12,000                             12,000                             -                                        0%
      Office Rent -                                   -                                   -                                         
      Office Costs 13,643                             19,000                             (5,357)                                   -28% Office Costs were reduced to offset the higher travel and meeting costs.  (Training was 84% under budget.)
      Professional Services -                                   -                                   -                                         
      Miscellaneous -                                   -                                   -                                         
      Depreciation -                                   -                                   -                                         
Total Operating Expenses 25,643                             31,000                             (5,357)                                   

Total Direct Expenses 233,414                           283,443                           (50,030)                                 

Total Indirect Expenses 142,987                           155,049                           (12,061)                                 The allocation of indirect expenses was based upon FTEs and expenditures in the overhead functions.

Other Non-Operating Expenses -                                   -                                   -                                        

Total Expenses 376,401                           438,492                           (62,091)                                 

Change in Assets 205,965                           155,906                           50,059                                  

Fixed Assets
Depreciation -                                   -                                   -                                         
Computer & Software CapEx -                                   -                                   -                                         
Furniture & Fixtures CapEx -                                   -                                   -                                         
Equipment CapEx -                                   -                                   -                                         
Leasehold Improvements -                                   -                                   -                                         
Change in Fixed Assets -                                   -                                   -                                        

Allocation of Fixed Assets 6,755                               (857)                                 7,612                                    The allocation of assets was based upon FTEs and expenditures in the overhead functions.

TOTAL CHANGE IN ASSETS 212,720                           155,049                           57,671                                  

FTE 1.27                                 1.35                                 (0.08)                                     -6%

Nose Count 1.00                                 



MIDWEST RELIABILITY ORGANIZATION
2010 Statement of Activities Summary

Compliance and Organization Registration and Certification
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(In Whole Dollars)

2010 Actual 2010 Budget 2010 Variance Comments - Explain variances that are +/- 10%
Funding
ERO Funding -                                   -                                   -                                        
ERO Assessments 4,645,677                        4,645,677                        -                                        0%
Penalty Sanctions 45,426                             45,133                             293                                       1%
Total ERO Funding 4,691,103                        4,690,810                        293                                       

   Membership Fees & Non-Stat Assessments -                                   -                                   -                                         
   Testing Fees -                                   -                                   -                                         
   Services & Software -                                   -                                   -                                         
 Workshops -                                   -                                   -                                        
   Interest -                                   -                                   -                                         
   Miscellaneous -                                   -                                   -                                         
Total Funding 4,691,103                        4,690,810                        293                                       

Expenses

   Personnel Expenses
The 2010 Budget was prepared on a program experience using department averages. The 2010 Actual was prepared based on 
cost per individual working within the program. Therefore, budget costs may be inadequate.

      Salaries 1,754,924                        1,567,964                        186,960                                12% Higher than budgeted FTE which is offset by lower consulting and contract fees.
      Payroll Taxes 118,916                           123,368                           (4,452)                                   -4% The 2010 Budget for Payroll Tax costs were inadequate.

      Employee Benefits 181,848                           294,567                           (112,719)                               -38% The 2010 Budget was prepared including the vacation benefit in benefits while the actual vacation costs were included in salaries.
      Savings & Retirement 289,869                           265,016                           24,853                                  9% The 2010 Budget for Saving and Retirement costs were inadequate.
Total Personnel Expenses 2,345,557                        2,250,915                        94,642                                  

   Meeting Expenses

      Meetings 30,355                             52,195                             (21,840)                                 -42%
MRO was able to negotiate reduced fees for room rental and more favorable catering costs working with one specific site. As 
the number of meetings increased at this site, it resulted in an overall reduction of meeting costs. 

      Travel 165,137                           111,686                           53,451                                  48%
Travel expenses are higher than budgeted because it was assumed the CIP audits would require one week onsite, but instead 
have been requiring two weeks onsite. Travel expense also higher than budgeted due to more FTEs than budgeted.

Total Meeting Expenses 195,492                           163,881                           31,611                                  

   Operating Expenses
      Consultants & Contracts 324,863                           647,500                           (322,637)                               -50% Lower than budgeted consulting and contract fees are offset by higher than budgeted personnel costs.
      Office Rent -                                   -                                   -                                         
      Office Costs 56,296                             57,909                             (1,613)                                   -3%
      Professional Services 8,480                               -                                   8,480                                     
      Miscellanoues -                                   -                                   -                                         
      Depreciation -                                   -                                   -                                         
Total Operating Expenses 389,639                           705,409                           (315,770)                               

Total Direct Expenses 2,930,688                        3,120,205                        (189,517)                               

Total Indirect Expenses 1,673,062                        1,561,970                        111,092                                The allocation of indirect expenses was based upon FTEs and expenditures in the overhead functions.

Other Non-Operating Expenses -                                   -                                   -                                        

Total Expenses 4,603,750                        4,682,175                        (78,425)                                 

Change in Assets 1,760,415                        1,570,605                        189,810                                

Fixed Assets
Depreciation -                                   -                                   -                                         
Computer & Software CapEx -                                   -                                   -                                         
Furniture & Fixtures CapEx -                                   -                                   -                                         
Equipment CapEx -                                   -                                   -                                         
Leasehold Improvements -                                   -                                   -                                         
Change in Fixed Assets -                                   -                                   -                                        

Allocation of Fixed Assets 79,042                             (8,635)                              87,678                                  The allocation of assets was based upon FTEs and expenditures in the overhead functions.

TOTAL CHANGE IN ASSETS 1,839,457                        1,561,970                        277,488                                

FTE 14.86                               13.60                               1.26                                      

Nose Count 16.00                               
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Reliability Assessment and Performance Analysis
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(In Whole Dollars)

2010 Actual 2010 Budget 2010 Variance Comments - Explain variances that are +/- 10%
Funding
ERO Funding -                                   -                                   -                                        
ERO Assessments 1,783,605                        1,783,605                        -                                        0%
Penalty Sanctions 21,377                             21,239                             138                                       1%
Total ERO Funding 1,804,982                        1,804,844                        138                                       

   Membership Fees & Non-Stat Assessments -                                   -                                   -                                         
   Testing Fees -                                   -                                   -                                         
   Services & Software -                                   -                                   -                                         
 Workshops -                                   -                                   -                                        
   Interest -                                   -                                   -                                         
   Miscellaneous -                                   -                                   -                                         
Total Funding 1,804,982                        1,804,844                        138                                       

Expenses

   Personnel Expenses
The 2010 Budget was prepared on a program experience using department averages. The 2010 Actual was prepared based on cost per individual 
working within the program. Therefore, budget costs may be inadequate.

      Salaries 694,813                           608,776                           86,037                                  14% Actual FTEs are higher than budgeted.
      Payroll Taxes 47,756                             43,909                             3,847                                    9% The 2010 Budget for Payroll Tax costs were inadequate.

      Employee Benefits 93,262                             91,077                             2,185                                    2% The 2010 Budget was prepared including the vacation benefit in benefits while the actual vacation costs were included in salaries.
      Savings & Retirement 129,342                           89,373                             39,969                                  45% The 2010 Budget for Saving and Retirement costs were inadequate.
Total Personnel Expenses 965,172                           833,135                           132,038                                

   Meeting Expenses

      Meetings 15,029                             40,000                             (24,971)                                 -62%
MRO was able to negotiate reduced fees for room rental and more favorable catering costs working with one specific site.   As the number of meetings 
increased at this site, it resulted in an overall reduction of meeting costs. 

      Travel 68,531                             108,000                           (39,469)                                 -37% MRO budgets member travel reimbursement based on the number of committees, working groups, and standards drafting teams as though MRO will 
be attending at 100%, which has not been the case. In future BP&B, MRO will project at a lower attendance %.

Total Meeting Expenses 83,560                             148,000                           (64,440)                                 

   Operating Expenses
      Consultants & Contracts 89,957                             48,100                             41,857                                  87% The FAC Alert required additional consultants expense.  Also, the model building costs were increased over the budget. 
      Office Rent -                                   -                                   -                                         
      Office Costs 26,415                             36,500                             (10,085)                                 -28% The 2010 anticipated staff training did not take place.  
      Professional Services -                                   -                                   -                                         
      Miscellanoues -                                   -                                   -                                         
      Depreciation -                                   -                                   -                                         
Total Operating Expenses 116,372                           84,600                             31,772                                  

Total Direct Expenses 1,165,104                        1,065,735                        99,370                                  

Total Indirect Expenses 786,992                           735,045                           51,947                                  The allocation of indirect expenses was based upon FTEs and expenditures in the overhead functions.

Other Non-Operating Expenses -                                   -                                   -                                        

Total Expenses 1,952,096                        1,800,779                        151,317                                

Change in Assets 639,878                           739,109                           (99,232)                                 

Fixed Assets
Depreciation -                                   -                                   -                                         
Computer & Software CapEx -                                   -                                   -                                         
Furniture & Fixtures CapEx -                                   -                                   -                                         
Equipment CapEx -                                   -                                   -                                         
Leasehold Improvements -                                   -                                   -                                         
Change in Fixed Assets -                                   -                                   -                                        

Allocation of Fixed Assets 37,181                             (4,064)                              41,244                                  The allocation of assets was based upon FTEs and expenditures in the overhead functions.

TOTAL CHANGE IN ASSETS 677,058                           735,046                           (57,987)                                 

FTE 6.99                                 6.40                                 0.59                                      

Nose Count 9.00                                 
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Training and Education
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(In Whole Dollars)

2010 Actual 2010 Budget 2010 Variance Comments - Explain variances that are +/- 10%
Funding
ERO Funding -                                    -                                    -                                         
ERO Assessments -                                    -                                          When the 2010 BP&B was prepared the only costs that were considered were whether or not MRO would be providing an in-

house operater training program. MRO did not plan to do so, so the budget was left intentionlly at zero. During the year of 2010,  
it was determined that MRO needed to capture the training to Registered Entities through presentation opportunities at industry 
meetings and by providing lessons learned in MRO's newsletter and other publication in the Training and Education Program. 
Note that in 2010 actuals, MRO staff did keep the workshop costs in the Compliance Program, however, the other training and 
education costs were recorded in 2010, and in the 2011 BP&B all costs are included in the 2011 BP&B Training and Education 
Program.

Penalty Sanctions -                                    -                                    -                                          
Total ERO Funding -                                    -                                    -                                         

   Membership Fees & Non-Stat Assessments -                                    -                                    -                                          
   Testing Fees -                                    -                                    -                                          
   Services & Software -                                    -                                    -                                          
 Workshops -                                    -                                    -                                         
   Interest -                                    -                                    -                                          
   Miscellaneous -                                    -                                    -                                          
Total Funding -                                    -                                    -                                         

Expenses

   Personnel Expenses
The 2010 Budget was prepared on a program experience using department averages. The 2010 Actual was prepared based on 
cost per individual working within the program. Therefore, budget costs may be inadequate.

      Salaries 17,887                               -                                    17,887                                    Actual FTEs are higher than budgeted.
      Payroll Taxes 773                                    -                                    773                                         The 2010 Budget for Payroll Tax costs were inadequate.

      Employee Benefits 1,595                                 -                                    1,595                                      The 2010 Budget was prepared including the vacation benefit in benefits while the actual vacation costs were included in salaries.
      Savings & Retirement 2,959                                 -                                    2,959                                      The 2010 Budget for Saving and Retirement costs were inadequate.
Total Personnel Expenses 23,214                               -                                    23,214                                   

   Meeting Expenses
      Meetings -                                    -                                    -                                          
      Travel 738                                    -                                    738                                         
Total Meeting Expenses 738                                    -                                    738                                        

   Operating Expenses
      Consultants & Contracts -                                    -                                    -                                          
      Office Rent -                                    -                                    -                                          
      Office Costs -                                    -                                    -                                          
      Professional Services -                                    -                                    -                                          
      Miscellanoues -                                    -                                    -                                          
      Depreciation -                                    -                                    -                                          
Total Operating Expenses -                                    -                                    -                                         

Total Direct Expenses 23,952                               -                                    23,952                                   

Total Indirect Expenses -                                    -                                    -                                         

Other Non-Operating Expenses -                                    -                                    -                                         

Total Expenses 23,952                               -                                    23,952                                   

Change in Assets (23,952)                             -                                    (23,952)                                  

Fixed Assets
Depreciation -                                    -                                    -                                          
Computer & Software CapEx -                                    -                                    -                                          
Furniture & Fixtures CapEx -                                    -                                    -                                          
Equipment CapEx -                                    -                                    -                                          
Leasehold Improvements -                                    -                                    -                                          
Change in Fixed Assets -                                    -                                    -                                         

Allocation of Fixed Assets -                                    -                                    -                                         

TOTAL CHANGE IN ASSETS (23,952)                             -                                    (23,952)                                  

FTE 0.08                                   -                                    0.08                                       

Nose Count
No one staff is assigned directly to Training and Education, but rather a number of staff allocateds part of their time in this 
progaram.
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(In Whole Dollars)

2010 Actual 2010 Budget 2010 Variance Comments - Explain variances that are +/- 10%
Funding
ERO Funding -                                    -                                    -                                         
ERO Assessments 426,968                            426,968                            -                                         0%
Penalty Sanctions 4,175                                4,148                                27                                          1%
Total ERO Funding 431,143                            431,116                            27                                          

   Membership Fees & Non-Stat Assessments -                                    -                                    -                                          
   Testing Fees -                                    -                                    -                                          
   Services & Software -                                    -                                    -                                          
 Workshops -                                    -                                    -                                         
   Interest -                                    -                                    -                                          
   Miscellaneous -                                    -                                    -                                          
Total Funding 431,143                            431,116                            27                                          

Expenses

   Personnel Expenses
The 2010 Budget was prepared on a program experience using department averages. The 2010 Actual was prepared based on cost 
per individual working within the program. Therefore, budget costs may be inadequate.

      Salaries 53,913                              123,143                            (69,230)                                  -56% Less work performed by MRO staff in this area than anticipated.
      Payroll Taxes 3,362                                7,990                                (4,628)                                    -58% The 2010 Budget for Payroll Tax costs were inadequate.

      Employee Benefits 8,417                                23,721                              (15,304)                                  -65% The 2010 Budget was prepared including the vacation benefit in benefits while the actual vacation costs were included in salaries.
      Savings & Retirement 10,434                              18,274                              (7,840)                                    -43% The 2010 Budget for Saving and Retirement costs were inadequate.
Total Personnel Expenses 76,126                              173,128                            (97,002)                                  

   Meeting Expenses
      Meetings -                                    8,500                                (8,500)                                    -100% There was no CIP workshop as anticipated when the 2010 Budget was prepared.
      Travel 4,657                                13,900                              (9,243)                                    -66% Less travel due to less activity by MRO staff than anticipated.
Total Meeting Expenses 4,657                                22,400                              (17,743)                                  

   Operating Expenses
      Consultants & Contracts -                                    -                                    -                                          
      Office Rent -                                    -                                    -                                          
      Office Costs 1,815                                25,230                              (23,415)                                  -93% Functional training costs are included in office costs and less training took place than anticipated .
      Professional Services -                                    -                                    -                                          
      Miscellanoues -                                    -                                    -                                          
      Depreciation 8,498                                20,000                              (11,502)                                  -58% The allocation in the budget was inaccurate. See IT depreciation line was underbudget.
Total Operating Expenses 10,313                              45,230                              (34,917)                                  

Total Direct Expenses 91,096                              240,758                            (149,662)                                

Total Indirect Expenses 45,035                              143,563                            -                                         The allocation of indirect expenses was based upon FTEs and expenditures in the overhead functions.

Other Non-Operating Expenses -                                    -                                    -                                         

Total Expenses 136,131                            384,321                            (149,662)                                

Change in Assets 340,047                            190,358                            149,689                                 

Fixed Assets
Depreciation (8,498)                               (20,000)                             11,502                                   -58% Note: the overall depreciation is under budget based on the 2010 Budget preparation trending in 2009.
Computer & Software CapEx -                                    66,000                              (66,000)                                  -100% MRO did not pursue additional Situation Awareness initiatives in 2010 even though it was considered a possibility in 2010 BP&B planning.
Furniture & Fixtures CapEx -                                    -                                    -                                          
Equipment CapEx -                                    -                                    -                                          
Leasehold Improvements -                                    -                                    -                                          
Change in Fixed Assets 8,498                                (46,000)                             54,498                                   

Allocation of Fixed Assets 2,128                                (794)                                  2,921                                     The allocation of assets was based upon FTEs and expenditures in the overhead functions.

TOTAL CHANGE IN ASSETS 350,673                            143,564                            207,108                                 

FTE 0.40                                  -                                    0.40                                       

Nose Count 1.00                                  
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Committees and Member Forums
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(In Whole Dollars)

2010 Actual 2010 Budget 2010 Variance Comments - Explain variances that are +/- 10%
Funding
ERO Funding
ERO Assessments -                                  -                                        
Penalty Sanctions -                                        
Total ERO Funding -                                  -                                  -                                       

   Membership Fees & Non-Stat Assessments -                                        
   Testing Fees -                                        
   Services & Software -                                        
 Workshops -                                       
   Interest -                                        
   Miscellaneous -                                        
Total Funding -                                  -                                  -                                       

Expenses

   Personnel Expenses
The 2010 Budget was prepared on a program experience using department averages. The 2010 Actual was prepared based on 
cost per individual working within the program. Therefore budget costs may be inadequate.

      Salaries 134,683                           127,859                           6,823                                   5% Actual FTEs are higher than budgeted.
      Payroll Taxes 7,073                               10,702                             (3,629)                                  -34% The 2010 Budget for Payroll Tax costs were inadequate.
      Employee Benefits 14,923                             8,115                               6,808                                   84% The 2010 Budget was prepared including the vacation benefit in benefits while the actual vacation costs were included in salaries.
      Savings & Retirement 25,437                             21,404                             4,033                                   19% The 2010 Budget for Saving and Retirement costs were inadequate.
Total Personnel Expenses 182,115                           168,080                           14,035                                  

   Meeting Expenses
      Meetings 183                                  183                                       

      Travel 115,885                           180,100                           (64,215)                                -36%

MRO budgets member travel reimbursement based on the number of committees, working groups, and standards drafting 
teams as though MRO will be attending at 100%, which has not been the case. In future BP&B MRO will project at a lower 
attendance %.

Total Meeting Expenses 116,068                           180,100                           (64,032)                                

   Operating Expenses
      Consultants & Contracts -                                        
      Office Rent -                                        
      Office Costs -                                        
      Professional Services -                                        
      Miscellanoues -                                        
      Depreciation -                                        
Total Operating Expenses -                                  -                                  -                                       

Total Direct Expenses 298,183                           348,180                           (49,997)                                

Total Indirect Expenses (298,184)                          (348,180)                          49,996                                  The allocation of indirect expenses was based upon FTEs and expenditures in the overhead functions.

Other Non-Operating Expenses -                                       

Total Expenses (1)                                    (1)                                    (1)                                         

Change in Assets 1                                      1                                      1                                          

Fixed Assets
Depreciation -                                  -                                  -                                        
Computer & Software CapEx -                                        
Furniture & Fixtures CapEx -                                        
Equipment CapEx -                                        
Leasehold Improvements -                                        
Change in Fixed Assets -                                  -                                  -                                       

Allocation of Fixed Assets -                                  -                                  -                                       The allocation of assets was based upon FTEs and expenditures in the overhead functions.

TOTAL CHANGE IN ASSETS 1                                      1                                      1                                          

FTE 0.86                                 0.65                                 0.21                                     

Nose Count No one staff is assigned directly to Member Forum, but rather a number of staff allocateds part of their time in this progaram.



MIDWEST RELIABILITY ORGANIZATION
2010 Statement of Activities Summary

General and Administrative

 Page 8 of 12 5/20/2011, 3:15 PM

(In Whole Dollars)

2010 Actual 2010 Budget 2010 Variance Comments - Explain variances that are +/- 10%
Funding
ERO Funding -                                   -                                   -                                        
ERO Assessments 212,628                           212,628                           -                                        0%
Penalty Sanctions -                                   -                                   -                                         
Total ERO Funding 212,628                           212,628                           -                                        

   Membership Fees & Non-Stat Assessments -                                   -                                   -                                         
   Testing Fees -                                   -                                   -                                         
   Services & Software -                                   -                                   -                                         
 Workshops -                                   -                                   -                                        
   Interest -                                   -                                   -                                         
   Miscellaneous -                                   -                                   -                                         
Total Funding 212,628                           212,628                           -                                        

Expenses

   Personnel Expenses
The 2010 Budget was prepared on a program experience using department averages. The 2010 Actual was prepared based on 
cost per individual working within the program. Therefore, budget costs may be inadequate.

      Salaries 161,138                           170,250                           (9,112)                                   -5% Actual FTEs are lower than budgeted.
      Payroll Taxes 5,797                               5,608                               189                                       3% The 2010 Budget for Payroll Tax costs were inadequate.

      Employee Benefits 13,509                             26,408                             (12,898)                                 -49% The 2010 Budget was prepared including the vacation benefit in benefits while the actual vacation costs were included in salaries.
      Savings & Retirement 27,744                             23,961                             3,783                                    16% The 2010 Budget for Saving and Retirement costs were inadequate.
Total Personnel Expenses 208,188                           226,227                           (18,039)                                 

   Meeting Expenses

      Meetings 28,874                             35,000                             (6,126)                                   -18%
MRO was able to negotiate reduced fees for room rental and more favorable catering costs working with one specific site.  As 
the number of meetings increased at this site, it resulted in an overall reduction of meeting costs. 

      Travel 45,011                             85,000                             (39,989)                                 -47%
MRO budgets member travel reimbursement based on the number of BOD and Strategic meetings as though MRO will be 
attending at 100%, which has not been the case. In future BP&B, MRO will project at a lower attendance %.

Total Meeting Expenses 73,885                             120,000                           (46,115)                                 

   Operating Expenses
      Consultants & Contracts 4,500                               60,000                             (55,500)                                 -93% MRO staff reduced the amount of usage of the media consultant. 
      Office Rent -                                   -                                   -                                         
      Office Costs 62,570                             58,000                             4,570                                    8%
      Professional Services -                                   -                                   -                                         
      Miscellanoues -                                   -                                   -                                         
      Depreciation -                                   -                                   -                                         
Total Operating Expenses 67,070                             118,000                           (50,930)                                 

Total Direct Expenses 349,143                           464,227                           (115,084)                               

Total Indirect Expenses (349,143)                          (464,227)                          115,084                                The allocation of indirect expenses was based upon FTEs and expenditures in the overhead functions.

Other Non-Operating Expenses -                                   -                                   -                                        

Total Expenses -                                   -                                   -                                        

Change in Assets 212,628                           212,628                           -                                        

Fixed Assets
Depreciation -                                   -                                   -                                         
Computer & Software CapEx -                                   -                                   -                                         
Furniture & Fixtures CapEx -                                   -                                   -                                         
Equipment CapEx -                                   -                                   -                                         
Leasehold Improvements -                                   -                                   -                                         
Change in Fixed Assets -                                   -                                   -                                        

Allocation of Fixed Assets -                                   -                                   -                                        The allocation of assets was based upon FTEs and expenditures in the overhead functions.

TOTAL CHANGE IN ASSETS 212,628                           212,628                           -                                        

FTE 0.56                                 1.50                                 (0.94)                                     

Nose Count 2.00                                 
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Legal and Regulatory
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(In Whole Dollars)

2010 Actual 2010 Budget 2010 Variance Comments - Explain variances that are +/- 10%
Funding
ERO Funding -                                    -                                    -                                        
ERO Assessments -                                    -                                    -                                         
Penalty Sanctions -                                    -                                    -                                         
Total ERO Funding -                                    -                                    -                                        

   Membership Fees & Non-Stat Assessments -                                    -                                    -                                         
   Testing Fees -                                    -                                    -                                         
   Services & Software -                                    -                                    -                                         
 Workshops -                                    -                                    -                                        
   Interest -                                    -                                    -                                         
   Miscellaneous -                                    -                                    -                                         
Total Funding -                                    -                                    -                                        

Expenses

   Personnel Expenses
The 2010 Budget was prepared on a program experience using department averages. The 2010 Actual was prepared based on cost per 
individual working within the program. Therefore, budget costs may be inadequate.

      Salaries 112,012                            12,500                              99,512                                   796% Actual FTEs are higher than budgeted.
      Payroll Taxes 5,696                                1,218                                4,478                                     368% The 2010 Budget for Payroll Tax costs were inadequate.

      Employee Benefits 5,740                                818                                   4,922                                     601% The 2010 Budget was prepared including the vacation benefit in benefits while the actual vacation costs were included in salaries.
      Savings & Retirement 11,863                              1,690                                10,172                                   602% The 2010 Budget for Saving and Retirement costs were inadequate.
Total Personnel Expenses 135,311                            16,227                              119,085                                 

   Meeting Expenses
      Meetings -                                    -                                    -                                         
      Travel 73                                     4,320                                (4,247)                                   -98% Expected  travel to the PUCs within the MRO footprint did not excelerate as quickly as thought when preparing the 2010 BP&B.
Total Meeting Expenses 73                                     4,320                                (4,247)                                   

   Operating Expenses

      Consultants & Contracts -                                    111,000                            (111,000)                               -100%
These dollars are budgeted to maintain outside consultants to provide advice to the President, Board of Directors, and staff on legal and 
regulatory  matters affecting MRO. In the calendar year of 2010. no such situations arose.

      Office Rent -                                    -                                    -                                         
      Office Costs 415                                   -                                    415                                         
      Professional Services 201,951                            225,000                            (23,049)                                 -10%
      Miscellanoues -                                    -                                    -                                         
      Depreciation -                                    -                                    -                                         
Total Operating Expenses 202,366                            336,000                            (133,634)                               

Total Direct Expenses 337,750                            356,547                            (18,796)                                 

Total Indirect Expenses (337,750)                           (356,546)                           18,796                                   The allocation of indirect expenses was based upon FTEs and expenditures in the overhead functions.

Other Non-Operating Expenses -                                    -                                    -                                        

Total Expenses -                                    1                                       -                                        

Change in Assets -                                    (1)                                      -                                        

Fixed Assets
Depreciation -                                    -                                    -                                         
Computer & Software CapEx -                                    -                                    -                                         
Furniture & Fixtures CapEx -                                    -                                    -                                         
Equipment CapEx -                                    -                                    -                                         
Leasehold Improvements -                                    -                                    -                                         
Change in Fixed Assets -                                    -                                    -                                        

Allocation of Fixed Assets -                                    -                                    -                                        The allocation of assets was based upon FTEs and expenditures in the overhead functions.

TOTAL CHANGE IN ASSETS -                                    (1)                                      -                                        

FTE 0.48                                  0.10                                  0.38                                       

Nose Count 0.50                                  
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Information Technology
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(In Whole Dollars)

2010 Actual 2010 Budget 2010 Variance Comments - Explain variances that are +/- 10%
Funding
ERO Funding -                                    -                                    -                                         
ERO Assessments -                                    -                                    -                                          
Penalty Sanctions -                                    -                                    -                                          
Total ERO Funding -                                    -                                    -                                         

   Membership Fees & Non-Stat Assessments -                                    -                                    -                                          
   Testing Fees -                                    -                                    -                                          
   Services & Software -                                    -                                    -                                          
 Workshops -                                    -                                    -                                         
   Interest -                                    -                                    -                                          
   Miscellaneous -                                    -                                    -                                          
Total Funding -                                    -                                    -                                         

Expenses

   Personnel Expenses
The 2010 Budget was prepared on a program experience using department averages. The 2010 Actual was prepared based on cost 
per individual working within the program. Therefore, budget costs may be inadequate.

      Salaries 248,316                            141,114                            107,201                                 76% More work performed by MRO staff in this area than anticipated.
      Payroll Taxes 17,518                              8,243                                9,275                                     113% The 2010 Budget for Payroll Tax costs were inadequate.

      Employee Benefits 62,470                              27,504                              34,966                                   127% The 2010 Budget was prepared including the vacation benefit in benefits while the actual vacation costs were included in salaries.
      Savings & Retirement 40,175                              20,169                              20,006                                   99% The 2010 Budget for Saving and Retirement costs were inadequate.
Total Personnel Expenses 368,479                            197,030                            171,448                                 

   Meeting Expenses
      Meetings -                                    -                                    -                                          
      Travel 1,905                                -                                    1,905                                      
Total Meeting Expenses 1,905                                -                                    1,905                                     

   Operating Expenses
      Consultants & Contracts 80,606                              91,615                              (11,009)                                  -12% MRO did not pursue all of the projects that had been planned for in the 2010 BP&B.
      Office Rent -                                          
      Office Costs 137,659                            158,418                            (20,759)                                  -13% Functional training costs are included in office costs and less training took place than anticipated .
      Professional Services -                                          
      Miscellanoues -                                          
      Depreciation 379,998                            310,000                            69,998                                   23% The allocation in the budget was inaccurate. See Situation Awareness depreciation line was overbudgeted. 
Total Operating Expenses 598,263                            560,033                            38,230                                   

Total Direct Expenses 968,647                            757,063                            211,583                                 

Total Indirect Expenses (968,647)                           (757,063)                           (211,584)                                The allocation of indirect expenses was based upon FTEs and expenditures in the overhead functions.

Other Non-Operating Expenses -                                    -                                    -                                         

Total Expenses -                                    -                                    (1)                                           

Change in Assets -                                    -                                    1                                            

Fixed Assets
Depreciation (379,998)                           (310,000)                           (69,998)                                  23%
Computer & Software CapEx 191,797                            299,350                            (107,553)                                -36% Deferred launching a software initiative.
Furniture & Fixtures CapEx 13,004                              25,000                              (11,996)                                  -48% MRO staff eliminated any discretionary spending to offset the unplanned  leasehold improvements below.
Equipment CapEx -                                    -                                    -                                          
Leasehold Improvements 50,091                              -                                    50,091                                    Reconstruction of the work area to support the additional staff that exceed the 2010 budget.
Change in Fixed Assets 125,106                            (14,350)                             139,456                                 

Allocation of Fixed Assets (125,106)                           14,350                              (139,456)                                The allocation of assets was based upon FTEs and expenditures in the overhead functions.

TOTAL CHANGE IN ASSETS -                                    -                                    1                                            

FTE 2.91                                  1.90                                  1.01                                       

Nose Count 2.00                                  
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Human Resources
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(In Whole Dollars)

2010 Actual 2010 Budget 2010 Variance Comments - Explain variances that are +/- 10%
Funding MRO includes the Human Resource function with the Accounting and Finance function.
ERO Funding -                                     -                                     -                                         
ERO Assessments -                                     -                                     -                                          
Penalty Sanctions -                                     -                                     -                                          
Total ERO Funding -                                     -                                     -                                         

   Membership Fees & Non-Stat Assessments -                                     -                                     -                                          
   Testing Fees -                                     -                                     -                                          
   Services & Software -                                     -                                     -                                          
 Workshops -                                     -                                     -                                         
   Interest -                                     -                                     -                                          
   Miscellaneous -                                     -                                     -                                          
Total Funding -                                     -                                     -                                         

Expenses
   Personnel Expenses
      Salaries -                                     -                                     -                                          
      Payroll Taxes -                                     -                                     -                                          
      Employee Benefits -                                     -                                     -                                          
      Savings & Retirement -                                     -                                     -                                          
Total Personnel Expenses -                                     -                                     -                                         

   Meeting Expenses
      Meetings -                                     -                                     -                                          
      Travel -                                     -                                     -                                          
Total Meeting Expenses -                                     -                                     -                                         

   Operating Expenses
      Consultants & Contracts -                                     -                                     -                                          
      Office Rent -                                     -                                     -                                          
      Office Costs -                                     -                                     -                                          
      Professional Services -                                     -                                     -                                          
      Miscellanoues -                                     -                                     -                                          
      Depreciation -                                     -                                     -                                          
Total Operating Expenses -                                     -                                     -                                         

Total Direct Expenses -                                     -                                     -                                         

Total Indirect Expenses -                                     -                                     -                                         

Other Non-Operating Expenses -                                     -                                     -                                         

Total Expenses -                                     -                                     -                                         

Change in Assets -                                     -                                     -                                         

Fixed Assets
Depreciation -                                     -                                     -                                          
Computer & Software CapEx -                                     -                                     -                                          
Furniture & Fixtures CapEx -                                     -                                     -                                          
Equipment CapEx -                                     -                                     -                                          
Leasehold Improvements -                                     -                                     -                                          
Change in Fixed Assets -                                     -                                     -                                         

Allocation of Fixed Assets -                                     -                                     -                                         

TOTAL CHANGE IN ASSETS -                                     -                                     -                                         

FTE -                                     -                                     -                                         

Nose Count
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(In Whole Dollars)

2010 Actual 2010 Budget 2010 Variance Comments - Explain variances that are +/- 10%
Funding
ERO Funding -                                    -                                    -                                         
ERO Assessments -                                    -                                    -                                          
Penalty Sanctions -                                    -                                    -                                          
Total ERO Funding -                                    -                                    -                                         

   Membership Fees & Non-Stat Assessments -                                    -                                    -                                          
   Testing Fees -                                    -                                    -                                          
   Services & Software -                                    -                                    -                                          
 Workshops -                                    -                                    -                                         
   Interest -                                    -                                    -                                          
   Miscellaneous -                                    -                                    -                                          
Total Funding -                                    -                                    -                                         

Expenses

   Personnel Expenses
The 2010 Budget was prepared on a program experience using department averages. The 2010 Actual was prepared based on cost 
per individual working within the program. Therefore, budget costs may be inadequate.

      Salaries 198,165                            174,500                            23,665                                   14% Actual FTEs are lower than budgeted.
      Payroll Taxes 14,083                              19,280                              (5,198)                                    -27% The 2010 Budget for Payroll Tax costs were inadequate.

      Employee Benefits 29,013                              51,594                              (22,580)                                  -44% The 2010 Budget was prepared including the vacation benefit in benefits while the actual vacation costs were included in salaries.
      Savings & Retirement 36,375                              40,817                              (4,442)                                    -11% The 2010 Budget for Saving and Retirement costs were inadequate.
Total Personnel Expenses 277,636                            286,191                            (8,554)                                    

   Meeting Expenses
      Meetings 8                                       -                                    8                                             
      Travel 542                                   5,190                                (4,648)                                    -90% MRO staff did not attend as many regional meetings as planned for in the 2010 BP&B.
Total Meeting Expenses 550                                   5,190                                (4,640)                                    

   Operating Expenses
      Consultants & Contracts 77,310                              24,900                              52,410                                   210% Hiring costs related to adding 4 senior staff employees.
      Office Rent 204,225                            228,300                            (24,075)                                  -11% Utility and building repair expenses are included in the Office Rent and both were trended higher in the budget than actual.
      Office Costs 65,872                              72,500                              (6,628)                                    -9%
      Professional Services 68,760                              52,530                              16,230                                   31% MRO has expanded our financial audits to evaluate our IT and cyber security on an annual basis.
      Miscellanoues -                                    -                                    -                                          
      Depreciation -                                    -                                    -                                          
Total Operating Expenses 416,168                            378,230                            37,938                                   

Total Direct Expenses 694,354                            669,611                            24,743                                   

Total Indirect Expenses (694,353)                           (669,611)                           (24,742)                                  The allocation of indirect expenses was based upon FTEs and expenditures in the overhead functions.

Other Non-Operating Expenses -                                    -                                    -                                         

Total Expenses 1                                       -                                    1                                            

Change in Assets (1)                                      -                                    (1)                                           

Fixed Assets
Depreciation -                                    -                                    -                                          
Computer & Software CapEx -                                    -                                    -                                          
Furniture & Fixtures CapEx -                                    -                                    -                                          
Equipment CapEx -                                    -                                    -                                          
Leasehold Improvements -                                    -                                    -                                          
Change in Fixed Assets -                                    -                                    -                                         

Allocation of Fixed Assets -                                    -                                    -                                         The allocation of assets was based upon FTEs and expenditures in the overhead functions.

TOTAL CHANGE IN ASSETS (1)                                      -                                    (1)                                           

FTE 2.09                                  2.25                                  (0.16)                                      

Nose Count 2.00                                  
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Via Email 

 
 
May 23, 2011 

 
North American Electric Reliability Corporation 
3343 Peachtree Road, NE 
Fourth Floor East Tower – Suite 400 
Atlanta, Georgia 30326 
Attention: Mr. Michael Walker - Chief Financial Officer 
 Ms. Susan Turpen - Controller 
 
Subject:   NPCC 2010 True Up Budget vs. Actual Variance Analysis  

True Up Filing Based on Audited 12/31/10 Financial Statements  
 
Dear Mike and Susan: 
 
 Enclosed is the Northeast Power Coordinating Council, Inc.’s (NPCC) submittal regarding the 
2010 NPCC budget and year-end actual cost-to-budget variances. NPCC’s independent audit 
performed by Pricewaterhouse Coopers LLP was concluded on April 26, 2011 and forwarded to 
NERC for its information and provision to FERC 
 

As you know, NPCC is a Cross-border Regional Entity which provides Regional Entity 
functions and services through its regional entity division.  The establishment of Regionally-specific 
criteria, and monitoring and enforcement of compliance with such criteria are provided through the 
criteria services division of NPCC.  The CS division is funded by assessments to the Independent 
System Operators/Balancing Authority Areas within the Region based on their respective Net Energy 
for Load.   

 
No Regional Entity division assessments were used to fund CS division activities.  Allocation 

between the RE division and CS division represents a 91/9 split for 2010 based upon total corporate 
FTEs of 27.41 in the RE division and 2.59 in the CS division.  No indirect costs were allocated from 
the CS division to the RE division and no cross subsidies exist.  In addition, NPCC does not budget for 
interest income and reports such income apportioned based upon its Regional Entity (RE) and Criteria 
Services (CS) division full time equivalent (FTE) ratio. 
 

Actual total expenses for NPCC’s RE division for 2010 were $9,596,225 which is $1,821,819 
or 16% under the 2010 operating budget of $11,418,044.  Actual total expenses for NPCC’s Criteria 
CS division for 2010 were $579,247 which is $526,102 or approximately 48% under the 2010 
operating budget of $1,105,349.  In the aggregate, actual total expenses for the NPCC RE and CS 
divisions were $10,175,472 which is $2,347,921 or nearly 19% under the 2010 total corporate budget 
of $12,523,393.  NPCC did not use operating cash reserves to fund any activities or services in 2010.   

 
Significant aggregate expense variations for the Regional Entity division are explained on the 

following page: 
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Personnel Expenses 
(Actual - $1,079,478 or 17% under budget)  
Personnel expenses were less than budget in direct salaries and organization-wide benefits due to 
staffing challenges.  NPCC was very successful in its recruiting efforts but less so with regard to 
retention of less seasoned staff resulting in staff vacancies throughout 2010. NPCC expects to 
continue to face staffing challenges for the foreseeable future and aging workforce issues but is 
confident that its dedicated staff will continue to provide all functions and services consistent with 
the Regional Delegation Agreement. 
 
Meeting and Travel Expenses 
(Actual - $252,953k or 22% under budget) 
The travel subaccount account was under budget due to significantly greater volume of meetings 
being held at the NPCC offices.  NPCC has had significant participation with regard to its meetings 
which has led to overages in that subaccount.  Savings from increased use of conference calls in 
lieu of in person meeting provided some offsetting savings. 
 
Operating Expenses 
(Actual - $475,683 or 12% under budget) 
Operating Expenses were less than budgeted due to several drivers including staff development of 
a methodology to process Technical Feasibility Exceptions which eliminated expenditures that 
could have been necessary in both the contracts and consultants subaccounts.  Efficiencies in the 
compliance audit process, including two rounds of information requests prior to onsite audits 
significantly reduced contract auditor time and expense.  Professional services including the partial 
year retention of a consultant Chairman of the Board and reduced outside counsel consultation also 
made significant contributions to under budget expenditures. 
 
No funds were budgeted in association with NPCC conducting compliance hearings and no 
hearings have been initiated to date in NPCC. 

 
Significant variances by program area are provided on a line-item basis using the template 

provided by NERC which presents actual and budgeted costs on program-by-program format.  If you 
have any questions related to this report, please don’t hesitate to contact Ms. Heidi Lewis at 
hlewis@npcc.org or at (212) 840-1070 or me via cellular at (201) 213-0073 or via email at 
jbudd@npcc.org. 
 

Sincerely, 
 

        Jennifer Budd Mattiello 

 
Jennifer Budd Mattiello 
Vice President & Chief Operating Officer 

 
JBM: jm 
 
cc:  NPCC Staff 
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Total NPCC (RE and CS Divisions)

(In Whole Dollars)

2010 Actual 2010 Budget 2010 Variance
Funding:
  ERO Funding
     ERO Assessments 11,500,438$           11,500,438$           -$                            
     Penalty Sanctions -$                        -$                            
  Total ERO Funding 11,500,438$           11,500,438$           -$                            

Membership Fees & Non-Stat Assessments 1,145,460$             1,145,478$             (18)$                            
Testing Fees -$                            -$                            -$                                
Services & Software -$                            -$                            -$                                
Workshops -$                            -$                            -$                                
Interest 22,488$                  -$                            22,488$                       
Miscellaneous -$                            -$                            -$                                
Total Funding 12,668,386$           12,645,916$           22,470$                       

Direct Expenses:
  Personnel Expenses
     Salaries 4,226,664$             4,698,506$             (471,842)$                   
     Payroll Taxes 273,463$                269,380$                4,083$                         
     Employee Benefits 862,560$                1,180,892$             (318,332)$                   
     Savings & Retirement 351,125$                988,947$                (637,822)$                   
  Total Personnel Expenses 5,713,812$             7,137,725$             (1,423,913)$                

  Meeting Expenses
     Meetings 253,600$                247,817$                5,783$                         
     Travel 621,421$                919,491$                (298,070)$                   
     Conference Calls 62,751$                  75,441$                  (12,690)$                     
  Total Meeting Expenses 937,772$                1,242,749$             (304,977)$                   

  Operating Expenses
     Consultants & Contracts 1,607,111$             1,911,665$             (304,554)$                   
     Office Rent 672,297$                685,000$                (12,703)$                     
     Office Costs 277,086$                314,755$                (37,669)$                     
     Computer and Equipment Leases 114,425$                146,500$                (32,075)$                     
     Professional Services 612,760$                869,999$                (257,239)$                   
     Miscellaneous 67,423$                  60,000$                  7,423$                         
     Depreciation 172,786$                140,000$                32,786$                       
  Total Operating Expenses 3,523,888$             4,127,919$             (604,031)$                   

Total Direct Expenses 10,175,472$           12,523,393$           (2,347,921)$                

Total Indirect Expenses 1$                           -$                        1$                                

Other Non-Operating Expenses -$                        15,000$                  (15,000)$                     

Total Expenses 10,175,473$           12,523,393$           (2,347,920)$                

Change in Assets 2,492,913$             122,523$                2,370,390$                  

Fixed Assets:
     Depreciation (172,786)$               (140,000)$               (32,786)$                     
     Computer & Software CapEx 116,000$                -$                        116,000$                     
     Furniture & Fixtures CapEx 8,627$                    20,000$                  (11,373)$                     
     Equipment CapEx 7,950$                    30,000$                  (22,050)$                     
     Leasehold Improvements -$                        20,000$                  (20,000)$                     
Change in Fixed Assets 40,209$                  70,000$                  (29,791)$                     

Allocation of Fixed Assets - - -

TOTAL CHANGE IN ASSETS 2,533,122$             192,523$                2,340,599$                  

Full-Time Equivalents 30.00 30.00 0.00



Northeast Power Coordinating Council, Inc.
2010 Statment of Activities Summary

Regional Entity Division

(In Whole Dollars)

Variance
2010 Actual 2010 Budget 2010 Variance Over/(Under)Comments - Explain variances that are +/- 10%

Funding:
  ERO Funding
     ERO Assessments 11,500,438$             11,500,438$            -$                         0%
     Penalty Sanctions -$                          -$                         -$                         
  Total ERO Funding 11,500,438$             11,500,438$            -$                         

Membership Fees & Non-Stat Assessments -$                          -$                         -$                         
Testing Fees -$                          -$                         -$                         
Services & Software -$                          -$                         -$                         
Workshops -$                          -$                         -$                         
Interest 20,547$                    -$                          20,547$                     Interest income while not budgeted is apportioned by RE/CS FTE ratio

Miscellaneous -$                          -$                         -$                         
Total Funding 11,520,985$             11,500,438$            20,547$                   

Direct Expenses:
  Personnel Expenses
     Salaries 4,022,930$               4,319,871$               (296,941)$                 -7% Salaries were under budget due to staff vacancies throughout the year 

including unanticipated staff turnover.

     Payroll Taxes 258,780$                  246,224$                 12,556$                   5%
     Employee Benefits 802,927$                  1,077,454$               (274,527)$                 -25% Employee Benefits expenses were under budget due to several staff 

opting out of health insurance coverage and staff vacancies throughout 
the year.

     Savings & Retirement 285,548$                  806,114$                  (520,566)$                 -65% Savings & Retirement were under budget due to unanticipated turnover 
and partial year hires. Employees hired after 2/6/07 must be on staff for 
the full calendar year to be eligible for annual discretionary 401k 
contribution.

  Total Personnel Expenses 5,370,185$               6,449,663$              (1,079,478)$             -17%

  Meeting Expenses
     Meetings 249,761$                  224,217$                  25,544$                    11% Meeting expenses were over budget due to increased meeting 

participation from within the membership and overall meeting volume.

     Travel 594,948$                  849,490$                  (254,542)$                 -30% Travel expenses were under budget due to a greater volume of 
meetings being held at the NPCC offices, advance hotel bookings, 
adjustments to class of hotel being used, along with meetings held via 
teleconference/webinar.

     Conference Calls 46,841$                    70,796$                    (23,955)$                   -34% Conference Calls were under budget due to NPCC negotiating less 
costly rates.

  Total Meeting Expenses 891,550$                  1,144,503$              (252,953)$                -22%

  Operating Expenses
     Consultants & Contracts 1,579,479$               1,786,325$               (206,846)$                 -12% Consultants & Contracts were under budget due to efficiencies created 

by additional staff information requests to registered entities prior to 
deploying contractors thereby reducing the time spent by exclusive 
contract auditors with regard to supporting documentation collection.

     Office Rent 613,819$                  625,850$                 (12,031)$                  -2%
     Office Costs 254,135$                  286,574$                  (32,439)$                   -11% Office Costs were under budget due to lower than anticipated real 

estate tax escalations and minimal maintenance activities. 

     Computer and Equipment Leases 104,298$                  133,802$                  (29,504)$                   -22% Computer and Equipment Leases were under budget due to fewer FTEs 
than budgeted and/or positions being filled later than planned.

     Professional Services 562,169$                  794,889$                  (232,720)$                 -29% Professional Services were under budget due to lower than anticipated  
outside counsel consultations due to retention of inhouse counsel.

     Miscellaneous 62,715$                    54,820$                    7,895$                      14% Miscellanoues expenses were over budget due to increased training for 
newer staff.

     Depreciation 157,875$                  127,913$                  29,962$                    23% Depreciation expenses were over budget due to purchase of 
supplemental air conditioning for IT facility and capitalization of 
software.

  Total Operating Expenses 3,334,490$               3,810,173$              (475,683)$                -12%

Total Direct Expenses 9,596,225$               11,418,044$            (1,821,819)$             -16%

Total Indirect Expenses 1.00$                        -$                         1.00$                       

Other Non-Operating Expenses -$                          13,705$                    (13,705)$                   -100% Actual Cost were allocated across the program areas and indirect 
functions based on FTE ratio.

Total Expenses 9,596,226$               11,418,044$            (1,821,818)$             

Change in Assets 1,924,759$               82,394$                   1,842,365$              

Fixed Assets:
     Depreciation (157,875)$                 (127,913)$                 (29,962)$                   23% Depreciation expenses were over budget due to unbudgeted purchase 

of supplemental air conditioning for IT facility and capitalization of 
software.

     Computer & Software CapEx 105,641$                  -$                          105,641$                   Upgrades to the Compliance Data Administration Application and 
website enhancements were not budgeted.  Wedsite enhancements 
spread across all program areas based on FTE ratio.



Northeast Power Coordinating Council, Inc.
2010 Statment of Activities Summary

Regional Entity Division

     Furniture & Fixtures CapEx 7,861$                      18,273$                    (10,412)$                   -57% Furniture & Fixtures CapEx were under budget due to downscale of 
office furniture requirements.

     Equipment CapEx 7,155$                      27,410$                   (20,255)$                  -74% Equipment CapEx were under budget due to negotiated discounts.
     Leasehold Improvements -$                          18,273$                   (18,273)$                  -100% NPCC made no leasehold improvements. 
Change in Fixed Assets 37,218$                    63,957$                   (26,739)$                  -42%

TOTAL CHANGE IN ASSETS 1,961,977$               146,351$                 1,815,626$              

Full-Time Equivalents 27.41 27.41 0.00



Northeast Power Coordinating Council, Inc.
2010 Statment of Activities Summary

Reliability Standards

(In Whole Dollars)

Variance
2010 Actual 2010 Budget 2010 Variance Over/(Under) Comments - Explain variances that are +/- 10%

Funding:
  ERO Funding
     ERO Assessments 1,101,945$               1,101,945$              -$                            0%
     Penalty Sanctions -$                            
  Total ERO Funding 1,101,945$               1,101,945$              -$                            

Membership Fees & Non-Stat Assessments -$                            
Testing Fees -$                            
Services & Software -$                            
Workshops -$                            
Interest 1,499$                      1,499$                           Interest income while not budgeted is apportioned by 

RE/CS FTE ratio

Miscellaneous -$                            
Total Funding 1,103,444$               1,101,945$              1,499$                         

Direct Expenses:
  Personnel Expenses
     Salaries 372,450$                  393,493$                  (21,043)$                      -5% Salaries were under budget due to at risk compensation 

component (incentive compensation) approved at less than 
100% based on corporate goal attainment and individual 
performance components.

     Payroll Taxes 24,600$                    21,049$                    3,551$                          17% Payroll Taxes were over budget due to FTE allocation ratio.
NPCC allocates total organizational tax costs rather than 
individual payroll taxes.

     Employee Benefits 73,357$                    94,757$                    (21,400)$                      -23% Employee Benefits expenses were under budget due to 
several staff opting out of health insurance coverage and 
staff vacancies throughout the year.

     Savings & Retirement 29,675$                    77,701$                    (48,026)$                      -62% Savings & Retirement were under budget due to 
unanticipated turnover and partial year hires. Employees 
hired after 2/6/07 must be on staff for the full calendar year 
to be eligible for annual discretionary 401k contribution.

  Total Personnel Expenses 500,082$                  587,000$                 (86,918)$                     

  Meeting Expenses
     Meetings 22,363$                    31,917$                    (9,554)$                        -30% Meeting expenses were under budget due to successful 

efforts to hold a greater volume of meetings at the NPCC 
and member company offices.

     Travel 71,756$                    126,532$                  (54,776)$                      -43% Travel expenses were under budget due to more meetings 
held at the NPCC offices, advance hotel bookings, 
adjustments to class of hotel being used, along with 
meetings held via teleconference/webinar.

     Conference Calls 6,004$                      12,155$                    (6,151)$                        -51% Conference Calls were under budget due to NPCC 
negotiating less costly rates.

  Total Meeting Expenses 100,123$                  170,604$                 (70,481)$                     

  Operating Expenses
     Consultants & Contracts 59,265$                    35,143$                    24,122$                        69% Consultants & Contracts were over budget due to increased 

standards activity and the Rules of Procedure mandates 
with regard to criteria consistency.

     Office Rent 45,531$                    45,667$                   (136)$                          0%
     Office Costs 18,152$                    20,910$                    (2,758)$                        -13% Office Costs were under budget due to lower than 

anticipated real estate tax escalations and minimal 
maintenance activities. 

     Computer and Equipment Leases 7,820$                      9,767$                      (1,947)$                        -20% Computer and Equipment Leases were under budget based 
upon overall FTE allocations.

     Professional Services 25,663$                    9,333$                      16,330$                        175% Professional Services were over budget due to greater than 
anticipated  activities with regard to legal services 
associated with provincial regulators filings (Ontario and 
Nova Scotia).

     Miscellaneous 3,340$                      4,000$                      (660)$                           -17% Miscellanoues expenses in dollar terms were slightly under 
budget.

     Depreciation 11,525$                    9,333$                      2,192$                          23% Depreciation expenses were over budget due to unbudgeted 
purchase of supplemental air conditioning for IT facility 
and capitalization of software.

  Total Operating Expenses 171,296$                  134,153$                 37,143$                       

Total Direct Expenses 771,501$                  892,757$                 (121,256)$                   

Total Indirect Expenses 157,632$                  215,280$                  (57,648)$                      -27% The allocation of indirect expenses is based upon FTEs and 
expenditures in the overhead functions.

Other Non-Operating Expenses -$                          1,000$                      (1,000)$                        -100% Actual Cost were allocated across the program areas and 
indirect functions based on FTE ratio

Total Expenses 929,133$                  1,108,037$              (178,904)$                   

Change in Assets 174,311$                  (6,092)$                    180,403$                     

Fixed Assets:
     Depreciation (11,525)$                   (9,333)$                     (2,192)$                        23% Depreciation expenses were over budget due to unbudgeted 

purchase of supplemental air conditioning for IT facility 
and capitalization of software.

     Computer & Software CapEx 8,000$                      -$                          8,000$                           Enhancements to standards section of the NPCC website 
were not budgeted.

     Furniture & Fixtures CapEx 574$                         1,333$                      (759)$                           -57% Under budget while significant in percentage terms is not 
considered material in dollar terms.

     Equipment CapEx 542$                         2,000$                      (1,458)$                        -73% Equipment CapEx were under budget due to negotiated discounts.

     Leasehold Improvements -$                          1,333$                     (1,333)$                       -100% NPCC made no leasehold improvements 
Change in Fixed Assets 2,409$                      4,667$                     (2,258)$                       

    Allocation of Fixed Assets 734$                         (4,667)$                     5,401$                          -116% The allocation of assets is based upon FTEs and 
expenditures in the overhead functions.

TOTAL CHANGE IN ASSETS 176,720$                  (1,425)$                    178,145$                     

Full-Time Equivalents 2.00 2.00 0.00



Northeast Power Coordinating Council, Inc.
2010 Statment of Activities Summary

Compliance and Organiztion Registration and Certification

(In Whole Dollars)

Variance
2010 Actual 2010 Budget 2010 Variance Over/(Under) Comments - Explain variances that are +/- 10%

Funding:
  ERO Funding
     ERO Assessments 6,198,595$           6,198,595$          -$                     0%
     Penalty Sanctions -$                     
  Total ERO Funding 6,198,595$           6,198,595$          -$                     

Membership Fees & Non-Stat Assessments -$                     
Testing Fees -$                     
Services & Software -$                     
Workshops -$                     
Interest 8,995$                  8,995$                   Interest income while not budgeted is apportioned by 

RE/CS FTE ratio

Miscellaneous -$                     
Total Funding 6,207,590$           6,198,595$          8,995$                 

Direct Expenses:
  Personnel Expenses
     Salaries 1,762,526$           1,971,523$           (208,997)$            -11% Salaries were under budget due to fewer actual FTEs than 

budgeted.  Additionally, at risk compensation component 
(incentive compensation) approved at less than 100% 
based on corporate goal attainment and individual 
performance components.

     Payroll Taxes 110,758$              113,655$             (2,897)$               -3%
     Employee Benefits 317,500$              523,636$              (206,136)$            -39% Employee Benefits expenses were under budget due to 

several staff opting out of health insurance coverage and 
staff vacancies throughout the year.

     Savings & Retirement 86,417$                260,791$              (174,374)$            -67% Savings and Retirement Costs were under budget due to 
fewer actual FTEs than budgeted including unanticipated 
staff turnover.

Total Personnel Expenses 2,277,201$           2,869,605$          (592,404)$           

  Meeting Expenses
     Meetings 119,488$              26,628$                92,860$                349% Meeting expenses were significantly over budget due to 

substantial increased volume of meetings and expanded 
audit scope and depth.  Participation for certain emergent 
NERC workshops was not budgeted for 2010.

     Travel 300,147$              228,521$              71,626$                31% Travel expenses were over budget due to more time 
intensive meetings and expanded audit scope.  

     Conference Calls 15,355$                11,645$                3,710$                  32% Conference Calls were over budget due to increased 
volume and use of conference calls throughout 2010 to 
assist registered entities in their compliance efforts.  The 
scope and duration of pre audit and post audit conference 
calls has increased to provide registered entities better 
understanding of the complete audit process.

  Total Meeting Expenses 434,990$              266,794$             168,196$             

  Operating Expenses
     Consultants & Contracts 974,463$              1,207,000$           (232,537)$            -19% Consultants & Contracts were under budget due to 

efficiencies created by additional staff information 
requests to registered entities prior to deploying 
contractors thereby reducing the time spent by exclusive 
contract auditors with regard to supporting documentation 
collection.

     Office Rent 261,303$              274,000$             (12,697)$             -5%
     Office Costs 107,487$              125,461$              (17,974)$              -14% Office Costs were under budget due to lower than 

anticipated real estate tax escalations and minimal 
maintenance activities. 

     Computer and Equipment Leases 44,563$                58,600$                (14,037)$              -24% Computer and Equipment Leases were under budget due to 
unanticipated staff turnover.

     Professional Services 154,917$              56,000$                98,917$                177% Professional Services were over budget due to significant  
activities associated with the Bulk Electric System 
definition and associated filings.

     Miscellaneous 26,355$                24,000$                2,355$                  10% Miscellaneous expenses were over budget due to increased 
training.

     Depreciation 69,114$                56,000$                13,114$                23% Depreciation expenses were over budget due to 
unbudgeted purchase of supplemental air conditioning for 
IT facility and capitalization of software.

  Total Operating Expenses 1,638,202$           1,801,061$          (162,859)$           

Total Direct Expenses 4,350,393$           4,943,460$          (593,067)$           

Total Indirect Expenses 945,790$              1,291,680$           (345,890)$            -27% The allocation of indirect expenses is based upon FTEs 
and expenditures in the overhead functions.

Other Non-Operating Expenses -$                      6,000$                  (6,000)$                -100% Actual Cost were allocated across the program areas and 
indirect functions based on FTE ratio

Total Expenses 5,296,183$           6,235,140$          (938,957)$           

Change in Assets 911,407$              (36,545)$             947,952$             

Fixed Assets:
     Depreciation (69,114)$              (56,000)$              (13,114)$              23% Depreciation expenses were over budget due to 

unbudgeted purchase of supplemental air conditioning for 
IT facility and capitalization of software.

     Computer & Software CapEx 44,000$                -$                      44,000$                 Upgrades to the Compliance Data Administration 
Application and website enhancements were not budgeted.

     Furniture & Fixtures CapEx 3,441$                  8,000$                  (4,559)$                -57% Furniture & Fixtures CapEx were under budget due to 
downscale of office furniture's as well as negotiated 
discounts.

     Equipment CapEx 2,980$                  12,000$               (9,020)$               -75% Equipment CapEx were under budget due to negotiated discounts.
     Leasehold Improvements -$                      8,000$                 (8,000)$               -100% NPCC made no leasehold improvements.
Change in Fixed Assets 18,693$                28,000$               (9,307)$               

    Allocation of Fixed Assets 4,405$                  (28,000)$              32,405$                -116% The allocation of assets is based upon FTEs and 
expenditures in the overhead functions.

TOTAL CHANGE IN ASSETS 930,100$              (8,545)$               938,645$             

Full-Time Equivalents 12.00 12.00 0.00



Northeast Power Coordinating Council, Inc.
2010 Statment of Activities Summary

Reliability Assessment and Performance Analysis

(In Whole Dollars)

Variance
2010 Actual 2010 Budget 2010 Variance Over/(Under) Comments - Explain variances that are +/- 10%

Funding:
  ERO Funding
     ERO Assessments 2,833,957$              2,833,957$              -$                           0%
     Penalty Sanctions -$                           
  Total ERO Funding 2,833,957$              2,833,957$              -$                           

Membership Fees & Non-Stat Assessments -$                           
Testing Fees -$                           
Services & Software -$                           
Workshops -$                           
Interest 3,673$                    3,673$                         Interest income while not budgeted is apportioned by RE/CS 

FTE ratio

Miscellaneous -$                           
Total Funding 2,837,630$              2,833,957$              3,673$                       

Direct Expenses:
  Personnel Expenses
     Salaries 884,490$                 908,665$                 (24,175)$                    -3%

     Payroll Taxes

57,154$                   50,634$                   6,520$                        13% Payroll Taxes were over budget due to FTE allocation ratio.  
NPCC allocates total organizational tax costs rather than 
individual payroll taxes.

     Employee Benefits

166,566$                 223,793$                 (57,227)$                     -26% Employee Benefits expenses were under budget due to several 
staff opting out of health insurance coverage and staff vacancies 
throughout the year.

     Savings & Retirement

69,529$                   192,172$                 (122,643)$                   -64% Savings & Retirement were under budget due to unanticipated 
turnover and partial year hires. Employees hired after 2/6/07 
must be on staff for the full calendar year to be eligible for 
annual discretionary 401k contribution.

  Total Personnel Expenses 1,177,739$              1,375,264$              (197,525)$                  

  Meeting Expenses
     Meetings 52,517$                   51,789$                   728$                          1%

     Travel 105,788$                 212,738$                 (106,950)$                   -50% Travel expenses were under budget due to more meetings held at 
the NPCC offices.

     Conference Calls 13,003$                   40,351$                   (27,348)$                     -68% Conference Calls were under budget due to lower than 
anticipated volume or necessity.

  Total Meeting Expenses 171,308$                 304,878$                 (133,570)$                  

  Operating Expenses

     Consultants & Contracts

343,353$                 396,277$                 (52,924)$                     -13% Consultants & Contracts were under budget due to increases in 
staff performance of probablistic assessments and in-house 
modeling and analysis of the power system.

     Office Rent 108,715$                 111,883$                 (3,168)$                      -3%
     Office Costs 47,656$                   51,230$                   (3,574)$                      -7%

     Computer and Equipment Leases

18,640$                   23,928$                   (5,288)$                       -22% Computer and Equipment Leases were under budget due to 
unfilled positions, positions being filled later than planned, and 
unanticipated staff turnover.

     Professional Services
62,690$                   22,867$                   39,823$                      174% Professional Services were over budget due to significant 

assessment activities associated with the Bulk Electric System 
definition.

     Miscellaneous
15,325$                   9,800$                    5,525$                        56% Miscellaneous expenses were over budget due to greater 

employee participation in industry forums.

     Depreciation

28,216$                   22,867$                   5,349$                        23% Depreciation expenses were over budget due to unbudgeted 
purchase of supplemental air conditioning for IT facility and 
capitalization of software.

  Total Operating Expenses 624,595$                 638,852$                 (14,257)$                    

Total Direct Expenses 1,973,642$              2,321,444$              (347,802)$                  

Total Indirect Expenses 386,198$                 527,436$                 (141,238)$                   -27% The allocation of indirect expenses is based upon FTEs and 
expenditures in the overhead functions.

Other Non-Operating Expenses -$                        2,450$                    (2,450)$                       -100% Actual Cost were allocated across the program areas and indirect 
functions based on FTE ratio

Total Expenses 2,359,840$              2,848,880$              (489,040)$                  

Change in Assets 477,790$                 (14,923)$                 492,713$                   

Fixed Assets:

     Depreciation

(28,216)$                 (22,867)$                 (5,349)$                       23% Depreciation expenses were over budget due to unbudgeted 
purchase of supplemental air conditioning for IT facility and 
capitalization of software.

     Computer & Software CapEx 19,600$                   -$                        19,600$                       Enhancements to reliability assessments section of the NPCC 
website were not budgeted.

     Furniture & Fixtures CapEx 1,405$                    3,267$                    (1,862)$                       -57% Furniture & Fixtures CapEx were under budget due to 
downscale of office furniture's as well as negotiated discounts.

     Equipment CapEx 1,328$                    4,900$                    (3,572)$                      -73% Equipment CapEx were under budget due to negotiated discounts.
     Leasehold Improvements -$                        3,267$                    (3,267)$                      -100% NPCC made no leasehold improvements 
Change in Fixed Assets 5,883$                    11,433$                   (5,550)$                      

    Allocation of Fixed Assets 1,799$                    (11,433)$                 13,232$                      -116% The allocation of assets is based upon FTEs and expenditures in 
the overhead functions.

TOTAL CHANGE IN ASSETS 483,673$                 (3,490)$                   487,163$                   

Full-Time Equivalents 4.90 4.90 0.00



Northeast Power Coordinating Council, Inc.
2010 Statement of Activities Summary

Training and Education

(In Whole Dollars)

Variance
2010 Actual 2010 Budget 2010 Variance Over/(Under) Comments - Explain variances that are +/- 10%

Funding:
  ERO Funding
     ERO Assessments 109,440$               109,440$               -$                      0%
     Penalty Sanctions -$                      
  Total ERO Funding 109,440$               109,440$               -$                      

Membership Fees & Non-Stat Assessments -$                      
Testing Fees -$                      
Services & Software -$                      
Workshops -$                      
Interest 75$                        75$                       Interest income while not budgeted is apportioned by RE/CS FTE ratio
Miscellaneous -$                      
Total Funding 109,515$               109,440$               75$                       

Direct Expenses:
  Personnel Expenses
     Salaries 18,332$                 19,206$                 (874)$                    -5%
     Payroll Taxes 1,213$                   1,044$                   169$                      16% Payroll Taxes were over budget due to FTE allocation ratio.  NPCC 

allocates total organizational tax costs rather than individual payroll taxes.

     Employee Benefits 4,242$                   5,278$                   (1,036)$                  -20% Employee Benefits expenses were under budget due to several staff 
opting out of health insurance coverage and staff vacancies throughout the 
year.

     Savings & Retirement 1,456$                   5,267$                   (3,811)$                  -72% Savings and Retirement Costs were under budget due to fewer actual 
FTEs than budgeted.

  Total Personnel Expenses 25,243$                 30,795$                 (5,552)$                 

  Meeting Expenses
     Meetings 1,715$                   58,346$                 (56,631)$                -97% Meeting expenses were under budget due to successful efforts to hold 

training meetings at member company meeting facilities.

     Travel 3,673$                   3,874$                   (201)$                    -5%
     Conference Calls 86$                        508$                      (422)$                     -83% Under budget while significant in percentage terms is not deemed 

material in dollar terms.

Total Meeting Expenses 5,474$                   62,728$                 (57,254)$               

  Operating Expenses
     Consultants & Contracts 1,057$                   457$                      600$                      131% Consultants & Contracts were over budget due to reimbursement for 

speakers in the training and education program area.

     Office Rent 2,245$                   2,283$                   (38)$                      -2%
     Office Costs 871$                      1,046$                   (175)$                     -17% Under budget while significant in percentage terms is not deemed 

material in dollar terms.

     Computer and Equipment Leases 389$                      488$                      (99)$                       -20% Under budget while significant in percentage terms is not deemed 
material in dollar terms.

     Professional Services (713)$                     467$                     (1,180)$                 -253% Nominal fees resulted in a credit balance to training.
     Miscellaneous 440$                      200$                      240$                      120% Over budget while significant in percentage terms is not deemed material 

in dollar terms.

     Depreciation 570$                      467$                      103$                      22% Depreciation expenses were over budget due to unbudgeted purchase of 
supplemental air conditioning for IT facility and capitalization of 
software.

  Total Operating Expenses 4,859$                   5,408$                   (549)$                    

Total Direct Expenses 35,576$                 98,981$                 (63,405)$               

Total Indirect Expenses 7,882$                   10,764$                 (2,882)$                  -27% The allocation of indirect expenses is based upon FTEs and expenditures 
in the overhead functions.

Other Non-Operating Expenses -$                       50$                        (50)$                       -100% Actual Cost were allocated across the program areas and indirect 
functions based on FTE ratio

Total Expenses 43,458$                 109,745$               (66,287)$               

Change in Assets 66,057$                 (305)$                    66,362$                

Fixed Assets:
     Depreciation (570)$                     (467)$                     (103)$                     22% Depreciation expenses were over budget due to unbudgeted purchase of 

supplemental air conditioning for IT facility and capitalization of 
software.

     Computer & Software CapEx 400$                      -$                       400$                       Enhancements to training and education section of the NPCC website 
were not budgeted.

     Furniture & Fixtures CapEx 28$                        67$                        (39)$                       -58% Furniture & Fixtures CapEx were under budget due to downscale of 
office furniture's as well as negotiated discounts.

     Equipment CapEx 27$                        100$                      (73)$                       -73% Equipment CapEx were under budget due to negotiated discounts.

     Leasehold Improvements -$                       67$                       (67)$                      -100% NPCC made no leasehold improvements 
Change in Fixed Assets 115$                      233$                     (118)$                    

    Allocation of Fixed Assets 37$                        (233)$                     270$                      -116% The allocation of assets is based upon FTEs and expenditures in the 
overhead functions.

TOTAL CHANGE IN ASSETS 66,172$                 (72)$                      66,244$                

Full-Time Equivalents 0.10 0.10 0.00



Northeast Power Coordinating Council, Inc.
2010 Statment of Activities Summary

Situation Awareness and Infrastructure Security

(In Whole Dollars)

Variance
2010 Actual 2010 Budget 2010 Variance Over/(Under) Comments - Explain variances that are +/- 10%

Funding:
ERO Funding
     ERO Assessments 1,110,147$           1,110,147$          -$                     0%
     Penalty Sanctions -$                      -$                     -$                     
Total ERO Funding 1,110,147$           1,110,147$          -$                     

Membership Fees & Non-Stat Assessments -$                     
Testing Fees -$                     
Services & Software -$                     
Workshops -$                     
Interest 1,499$                  1,499$                 Interest income while not budgeted is apportioned by RE/CS FTE 
Miscellaneous -$                     
Total Funding 1,111,646$           1,110,147$          1,499$                 

Direct Expenses:
  Personnel Expenses

     Salaries

377,899$              402,699$              (24,800)$               -6% Salaries were under budget due to at risk compensation component 
(incentive compensation) approved at less than 100% based on 
corporate goal attainment and individual performance components.

     Payroll Taxes
24,987$                21,038$                3,949$                  19% Payroll Taxes were over budget due to FTE allocation ratio.  NPCC 

allocates total organizational tax costs rather than individual 
payroll taxes.

     Employee Benefits 48,779$                53,879$               (5,100)$                -9%

     Savings & Retirement

29,852$                108,315$              (78,463)$               -72% Savings & Retirement were under budget due to cost associated 
with staffing challenges. Employees hired after 2/6/07 must be on 
staff for the full calendar year to be eligible for annual 
discretionary 401k contribution.

  Total Personnel Expenses 481,517$              585,931$             (104,414)$            

  Meeting Expenses

     Meetings
13,514$                25,917$                (12,403)$               -48% Meeting expenses were under budget due to successful efforts to 

hold meetings at the NPCC and member company offices.

     Travel

60,095$                66,902$                (6,807)$                 -10% Travel expenses were under budget due to increase in onsite 
meetings, advance hotel bookings, adjustments to class of hotel 
being used, along with meetings held via teleconference.

     Conference Calls
1,989$                  4,055$                  (2,066)$                 -51% Conference Calls were under budget due to NPCC negotiating less 

costly rates.

  Total Meeting Expenses 75,598$                96,874$               (21,276)$              

  Operating Expenses

     Consultants & Contracts

130,930$              118,143$              12,787$                11% Consultant & Contracts was over budget due to the developer and 
maintainer of the NPCC SAFNR displays, cost escalations were 
greater than budgeted.

     Office Rent
51,574$                45,667$                5,907$                  13% Office Rent was over budget due to FTE allocation ratio.  NPCC 

allocates total organizational rental costs rather than individual 
square footage.

     Office Costs 20,486$                20,910$               (424)$                   -2%

     Computer and Equipment Leases
7,822$                  9,767$                  (1,945)$                 -20% While significant in percentage terms this variance in dollar terms 

is not considered material.

     Professional Services

25,669$                9,333$                  16,336$                175% NPCC negotiated reciprical Non-Disclosure Agreements (NDAs) 
with MISO and PJM with regard to neighboring SAFNR displays.  
This effort was not budgeted.

     Miscellaneous

4,859$                  4,000$                  859$                     21% Miscellaneous expenses were over budget due to increased 
training.  While significant in percentage terms this variance in 
dollar terms is not considered material.

     Depreciation

11,525$                9,333$                  2,192$                  23% Depreciation expenses were over budget due to unbudgeted 
purchase of supplemental air conditioning for IT facility and 
capitalization of software.

  Total Operating Expenses 252,865$              217,153$             35,712$               

Total Direct Expenses 809,980$              900,958$             (90,978)$              

Total Indirect Expenses
157,632$              215,280$              (57,648)$               -27% The allocation of indirect expenses is based upon FTEs and 

expenditures in the overhead functions.

Other Non-Operating Expenses
-$                      1,000$                  (1,000)$                 -100% Actual Cost were allocated across the program areas and indirect 

functions based on FTE ratio

Total Expenses 967,612$              1,116,238$          (148,626)$            

Change in Assets 144,034$              (6,091)$                150,125$             

Fixed Assets;

     Depreciation

(11,525)$               (9,333)$                 (2,192)$                 23% Depreciation expenses were over budget due to unbudgeted 
purchase of supplemental air conditioning for IT facility and 
capitalization of software.

     Computer & Software CapEx
8,000$                  -$                      8,000$                   Enhancements to operational data section of the NPCC website 

were not budgeted.

     Furniture & Fixtures CapEx
574$                     1,333$                  (759)$                    -57% Furniture & Fixtures CapEx were under budget due to downscale 

of office furniture.

     Equipment CapEx 542$                     2,000$                 (1,458)$                -73% Equipment CapEx were under budget due to negotiated discounts.
     Leasehold Improvements -$                      1,333$                 (1,333)$                -100% NPCC made no leasehold improvements 
Change in Fixed Assets 2,409$                  4,667$                 (2,258)$                

    Allocation of Fixed Assets 734$                     (4,667)$                 5,401$                  -116% The allocation of assets is based upon FTEs and expenditures in the 
overhead functions.

TOTAL CHANGE IN ASSETS 146,443$              (1,424)$                147,867$             

Full-Time Equivalents 2.00 2.00 0.00



Northeast Power Coordinating Council, Inc.
2010 Statment of Activities Summary

Committees and Member Forums

(In Whole Dollars)

Variance
2010 Actual 2010 Budget 2010 Variance Over/(Under) Comments - Explain variances that are +/- 10%

Funding:
  ERO Funding
     ERO Assessments -$                     -$                    -$                    
     Penalty Sanctions -$                    
  Total ERO Funding -$                     -$                    -$                    

Membership Fees & Non-Stat Assessments -$                    
Testing Fees -$                    
Services & Software -$                    
Workshops -$                    
Interest 375$                     375$                      Interest income while not budgeted is apportioned by RE/CS FTE 

ratio

Miscellaneous -$                    
Total Funding 375$                     -$                    375$                    

Direct Expenses:
  Personnel Expenses
     Salaries 45,712$                47,208$               (1,496)$               -3%
     Payroll Taxes 3,021$                  3,004$                 17$                      1%
     Employee Benefits 15,956$                17,020$               (1,064)$               -6%
     Savings & Retirement 3,170$                  13,446$                (10,276)$              -76% Savings and Retirement Costs were under budget due to fewer 

actual FTEs than budgeted.

  Total Personnel Expenses 67,859$                80,678$               (12,819)$             

  Meeting Expenses
     Meetings 722$                     3,194$                  (2,472)$                -77% Meeting expenses were under budget due to successful efforts to 

hold meetings at the NPCC and member company offices.

     Travel 800$                     22,746$                (21,946)$              -96% Travel expenses were significantly under budget due to majority of 
meetings held at NPCC offices.

     Conference Calls 48$                       215$                     (167)$                   -78% Under budget while significant in percentage terms is not deemed 
material in dollar terms.

  Total Meeting Expenses 1,570$                  26,155$               (24,585)$             

  Operating Expenses
     Consultants & Contracts 5,313$                  2,286$                  3,027$                  132% Consultants & Contracts were over budget due to greater activity 

with regard to public information consultations.

     Office Rent 11,304$                11,417$               (113)$                  -1%
     Office Costs 3,844$                  5,228$                  (1,384)$                -26% Office Costs were under budget due to lower than anticipated real 

estate tax escalations. 

     Computer and Equipment Leases 1,955$                  2,442$                  (487)$                   -20% Under budget while significant in percentage terms is not deemed 
material in dollar terms.

     Professional Services 6,894$                  2,333$                  4,561$                  195% Professional Services were over budget due to greater than 
anticipated  confidentiality agreement activities.

     Miscellaneous 888$                     1,000$                  (112)$                   -11% Under budget while significant in percentage terms is not deemed 
material in dollar terms.

     Depreciation 2,886$                  2,333$                  553$                     24% Under budget while significant in percentage terms is not deemed 
material in dollar terms.

  Total Operating Expenses 33,084$                27,039$               6,045$                 

Total Direct Expenses 102,513$              134,122$             (31,609)$             

Total Indirect Expenses (102,513)$            (134,122)$            31,609$                -24% The allocation of indirect expenses is based upon FTEs and 
expenditures in the overhead functions.

Other Non-Operating Expenses -$                     250$                     (250)$                   -100% Actual Cost were allocated across the program areas and indirect 
functions based on FTE ratio

Total Expenses -$                     -$                    -$                    

Change in Assets 375$                     -$                    375$                    

Fixed Assets:
     Depreciation (2,886)$                (2,333)$                (553)$                   24% Depreciation expenses were over budget due to unbudgeted 

purchase of supplemental air conditioning for IT facility and 
capitalization of software.

     Computer & Software CapEx 2,000$                  -$                     2,000$                   Enhancements to industry forums section of the NPCC website 
were not budgeted.

     Furniture & Fixtures CapEx 143$                     333$                     (190)$                   -57% Furniture & Fixtures CapEx were under budget due to downscale of 
office furniture.

     Equipment CapEx 135$                     500$                    (365)$                  -73% Equipment CapEx were under budget due to negotiated discounts.
     Leasehold Improvements -$                     333$                    (333)$                  -100% NPCC made no leasehold improvements 
Change in Fixed Assets 608$                     1,167$                 (559)$                  

    Allocation of Fixed Assets (608)$                   (1,167)$                559$                     -48% The allocation of assets is based upon FTEs and expenditures in the 
overhead functions.

TOTAL CHANGE IN ASSETS 983$                     1,167$                 (184)$                  

Full-Time Equivalents 0.50 0.50 0.00



Northeast Power Coordinating Council, Inc.
2010 Statment of Activities Summary

General and Administrative

(In Whole Dollars)

Variance
2010 Actual 2010 Budget 2010 Variance Over/(Under) Comments - Explain variances that are +/- 10%

Funding:
  ERO Funding
     ERO Assessments 146,354$             146,354$            -$                    0%
     Penalty Sanctions -$                    
  Total ERO Funding 146,354$             146,354$            -$                    

Membership Fees & Non-Stat Assessments -$                    
Testing Fees -$                    
Services & Software -$                    
Workshops -$                    
Interest 1,432$                 1,432$                  Interest income while not budgeted is apportioned by RE/CS FTE 

ratio

Miscellaneous -$                    
Total Funding 147,786$             146,354$            1,432$                

Expenses:
  Personnel Expenses
     Salaries 44,154$               49,992$              (5,838)$               -12% Salaries were under budget due to fewer actual FTEs than budgeted.
     Payroll Taxes 2,908$                 1,619$                 1,289$                 80% Payroll Taxes were over budget due to FTE allocation ratio.  NPCC 

allocates total organizational tax costs rather than individual payroll 
taxes.

     Employee Benefits 5,998$                 10,750$               (4,752)$                -44% Employee Benefits expenses were under budget due to several staff 
opting out of health insurance coverage and staff vacancies 
throughout the year.

     Savings & Retirement 26,771$               14,469$               12,302$               85% Savings and Retirement expenses were over budget due to the above 
mention staff tunover.

  Total Personnel Expenses 79,831$               76,830$              3,001$                

  Meeting Expenses
     Meetings 1,232$                 871$                    361$                    41% Over budget while significant in percentage terms is not deemed 

material in dollar terms.

     Travel 28,912$               6,206$                 22,706$               366% Travel expenses were over budget due to North America wide search 
efforts and interviews of Board Chair candidates brought to NPCC's 
New York City office.

     Conference Calls 186$                    147$                    39$                      27% Conference Calls were over budget due to increase use of conference 
calls throughout 2010.

  Total Meeting Expenses 30,330$               7,224$                23,106$              

  Operating Expenses
     Consultants & Contracts 22,092$               8,732$                 13,360$               153% Consultants & Contracts were over budget due actuarial coordination 

work required by PWC for the independent audit of financial 
statements.

     Office Rent 42,805$               43,600$              (795)$                  -2%
     Office Costs 17,747$               19,969$               (2,222)$                -11% Office Costs were under budget due to lower than anticipated real 

estate tax escalations. 

     Computer and Equipment Leases 7,470$                 9,277$                 (1,807)$                -19% Computer and Equipment Leases were under budget due to extension 
of various leases to coterminate with others.

     Professional Services 33,803$               8,913$                 24,890$               279% Professional Services were over budget due to greater than 
anticipated  activities in support of corporate governance changes.

     Miscellaneous 3,110$                 3,820$                 (710)$                   -19% Under budget while significant in percentage terms is not deemed 
material in dollar terms.

     Depreciation 11,006$               8,913$                 2,093$                 23% Depreciation expenses were over budget due to purchases of 
supplemental air conditioning for IT facility and capitalization of 
software.

  Total Operating Expenses 138,033$             103,224$            34,809$              

Total Direct Expenses 248,194$             188,233$            59,961$              

Total Indirect Expenses (248,194)$            (188,232)$            (59,962)$              32% The allocation of indirect expenses is based upon FTEs and 
expenditures in the overhead functions.

Other Non-Operating Expenses -$                     955$                    (955)$                   -100% Actual Cost were allocated across the program areas and indirect 
functions based on FTE ratio

Total Expenses -$                     1$                        (1)$                      

Change in Assets 147,786$             146,353$            1,433$                

Fixed Assets:
     Depreciation (11,006)$              (8,913)$                (2,093)$                23% Depreciation expenses were over budget due to unbudgeted purchase 

of supplemental air conditioning for IT facility and capitalization of 
software.

     Computer & Software CapEx 7,641$                 -$                     7,641$                  Enhancements to Board of Directors and members only section of 
the NPCC website were not budgeted.

     Furniture & Fixtures CapEx 548$                    1,273$                 (725)$                   -57% Furniture & Fixtures CapEx were under budget due to downscale of 
office furniture's as well as negotiated discounts.

     Equipment CapEx 517$                    1,910$                (1,393)$               -73% Equipment CapEx were under budget due to negotiated discounts.
     Leasehold Improvements -$                     1,273$                (1,273)$               -100% NPCC made no leasehold improvements 
Change in Fixed Assets 2,300$                 4,457$                (2,157)$               

TOTAL CHANGE IN ASSETS 150,086$             150,810$            (724)$                  

    Allocation of Fixed Assets (2,300)$                (4,457)$                2,157$                 -48% The allocation of assets is based upon FTEs and expenditures in the 
overhead functions.

Full-Time Equivalents 1.91 1.91 0.00



Northeast Power Coordinating Council, Inc.
2010 Statment of Activities Summary

Legal and Regulatory

(In Whole Dollars)

Variance
2010 Actual 2010 Budget 2010 Variance Over/(Under) Comments - Explain variances that are +/- 10%

Funding:
  ERO Funding
     ERO Assessments -$                       -$                      
     Penalty Sanctions -$                      
  Total ERO Funding -$                       -$                      -$                      

Membership Fees & Non-Stat Assessments -$                      
Testing Fees -$                      
Services & Software -$                      
Workshops -$                      
Interest -$                      
Miscellaneous -$                      
Total Funding -$                       -$                      -$                      

Direct Expenses:
  Personnel Expenses
     Salaries -$                      
     Payroll Taxes -$                      
     Employee Benefits -$                      
     Savings & Retirement -$                      
Total Personnel Expenses -$                       -$                       -$                       Personnel Expenses for this function are budgeted and recorded 

under General and Administrative.

  Meeting Expenses
      Meetings -$                      
      Travel -$                      
     Conference Calls -$                      
  Total Meeting Expenses -$                       -$                      -$                      

  Operating Expenses
     Consultants & Contracts -$                      
     Office Rent -$                      
     Office Costs -$                      
     Computer and Equipment Leases -$                      
     Professional Services 201,628$               456,833$               (255,205)$              -56% Professional Services were under budget due to retention of on-

staff counsel resulting in significantly lower Legal Fees.  

     Miscellaneous -$                      
     Depreciation -$                      
Total Operating Expenses 201,628$              456,833$               (255,205)$             

Total Direct Expenses 201,628$              456,833$               (255,205)$             

Total Indirect Expenses (201,628)$              (456,833)$              255,205$               -56% The allocation of indirect expenses is based upon FTEs and 
expenditures in the overhead functions.

Other Non-Operating Expenses -$                       -$                      -$                      

Total Expenses -$                       -$                      -$                      

Change in Assets -$                       -$                      -$                      

Fixed Assets
     Depreciation -$                       -$                      -$                      
     Computer & Software CapEx -$                      
     Furniture & Fixtures CapEx -$                      
     Equipment CapEx -$                      
     Leasehold Improvements -$                      
Change in Fixed Assets -$                       -$                      -$                      

    Allocation of Fixed Assets -$                       -$                       -$                       The allocation of assets is based upon FTEs and expenditures in 
the overhead functions.

TOTAL CHANGE IN ASSETS -$                       -$                      -$                      

Full-Time Equivalents 0.00 0.00 0.00



Northeast Power Coordinating Council, Inc.
2010 Statment of Activities Summary

Information Technology

(In Whole Dollars)

Variance
2010 Actual 2010 Budget 2010 Variance Over/(Under) Comments - Explain variances that are +/- 10%

Funding:
  ERO Funding
     ERO Assessments -$                     -$                    -$                    
     Penalty Sanctions -$                    
  Total ERO Funding -$                     -$                    -$                    

Membership Fees & Non-Stat Assessments -$                    
Testing Fees -$                    
Services & Software -$                    
Workshops -$                    
Interest 1,499$                  1,499$                   Interest income while not budgeted is apportioned by RE/CS FTE 

ratio
Miscellaneous -$                    
Total Funding 1,499$                  -$                    1,499$                 

Direct Expenses:
  Personnel Expenses
     Salaries 300,816$              307,758$             (6,942)$               -2%
     Payroll Taxes 19,862$                19,673$               189$                    1%
     Employee Benefits 90,130$                89,491$               639$                    1%

     Savings & Retirement

23,040$                85,894$                (62,854)$              -73% Savings & Retirement were under budget due to unanticipated 
turnover and partial year hires. Employees hired after 2/6/07 must 
be on staff for the full calendar year to be eligible for annual 
discretionary 401k contribution.

  Total Personnel Expenses 433,848$              502,816$             (68,968)$             

  Meeting Expenses
     Meetings 24,310$                12,777$                11,533$                90% Meeting expenses were over budget due to unbudgeted participation 

in the cyber security workshop.

     Travel 14,746$                90,985$                (76,239)$              -84% Travel expenses were under budget due to heavy reliance on 
meetings held via teleconference/webinar.

     Conference Calls 9,783$                  860$                     8,923$                  1038% Conference Calls were significantly over budget due to increase use 
of CIP conference calls throughout 2010.

  Total Meeting Expenses 48,839$                104,622$             (55,783)$             

  Operating Expenses

     Consultants & Contracts
21,508$                9,143$                  12,365$                135%

New website development initiated earlier than budgeted.  
Additional support of IT infrastructure required.

     Office Rent 45,186$                45,667$               (481)$                  -1%
     Office Costs 19,095$                20,910$               (1,815)$               -9%
     Computer and Equipment Leases 7,821$                  9,767$                  (1,946)$                -20% Computer and Equipment Leases were under budget based upon 

overall FTE allocations.

     Professional Services 27,157$                9,333$                  17,824$                191% Website enhancements and development more extensive than 
envisioned.

     Miscellaneous 3,575$                  4,000$                  (425)$                   -11% Miscellanoues expenses were under budget due to workload 
impacting training opportunities.

     Depreciation 11,525$                9,333$                  2,192$                  23% Depreciation expenses were over budget due to unbudgeted 
purchase of supplemental air conditioning for IT facility and 
capitalization of software.

  Total Operating Expenses 135,867$              108,153$             27,714$               

Total Direct Expenses 618,554$              716,591$             (98,037)$             

Total Indirect Expenses
(618,554)$            (716,591)$            98,037$                -14% The allocation of indirect expenses is based upon FTEs and 

expenditures in the overhead functions.

Other Non-Operating Expenses
-$                     1,000$                  (1,000)$                -100% Actual Cost were allocated across the program areas and indirect 

functions based on FTE ratio

Total Expenses -$                     -$                    -$                    

Change in Assets 1,499$                  -$                    1,499$                 

Fixed Assets:

     Depreciation
(11,525)$              (9,333)$                (2,192)$                23% Depreciation expenses were over budget due to unbudgeted 

purchase of supplemental air conditioning for IT facility and 
capitalization of software.

     Computer & Software CapEx 8,000$                  -$                    8,000$                 Enhancements to implement web portal were not budgeted.

     Furniture & Fixtures CapEx
574$                     1,333$                  (759)$                   -57%

Furniture & Fixtures CapEx were under budget due to downscale of 
office furniture's as well as negotiated discounts.

     Equipment CapEx 542$                     2,000$                 (1,458)$               -73% Equipment CapEx were under budget due to negotiated discounts.
     Leasehold Improvements -$                     1,333$                 (1,333)$               -100% NPCC made no leasehold improvements 
Change in Fixed Assets 2,409$                  4,667$                 (2,258)$               

    Allocation of Fixed Assets (2,409)$                (4,667)$                2,258$                  -48% The allocation of assets is based upon FTEs and expenditures in the 
overhead functions.

TOTAL CHANGE IN ASSETS 3,908$                  4,667$                 (759)$                  

Full-Time Equivalents 2.00 2.00 0.00



Northeast Power Coordinating Council, Inc.
2010 Statment of Activities Summary

Human Resources

(In Whole Dollars)

Variance
2010 Actual 2010 Budget 2010 Variance Over/(Under) Comments - Explain variances that are +/- 10%

Funding:
  ERO Funding
     ERO Assessments -$                    -$                   -$                   
     Penalty Sanctions -$                   
  Total ERO Funding -$                    -$                   -$                   

Membership Fees & Non-Stat Assessments -$                   
Testing Fees -$                   
Services & Software -$                   
Workshops -$                   
Interest 750$                    750$                     Interest income while not budgeted is apportioned by RE/CS FTE 

ratio
Miscellaneous -$                   
Total Funding 750$                    -$                   750$                   

Direct Expenses:
  Personnel Expenses
     Salaries 115,011$             118,109$            (3,098)$              -3%
     Payroll Taxes 7,600$                 7,866$                (266)$                 -3%
     Employee Benefits 36,200$               38,344$              (2,144)$              -6%
     Savings & Retirement 8,413$                 33,599$               (25,186)$             -75% Savings and Retirement Costs were under budget due to fewer 

actual FTEs than budgeted. 

  Total Personnel Expenses 167,224$             197,918$            (30,694)$            

  Meeting Expenses
     Meetings 12,497$               6,389$                 6,108$                 96% Meeting expenses were over budget due to various search efforts 

conducted over the year included work associated with retention of 
successor Chairman of the Board.

     Travel 7,228$                 45,493$               (38,265)$             -84% Travel expenses were under budget due to advance bookings, 
adjustments to class of hotel being used, along with meetings held 
via teleconference.

     Conference Calls 293$                    430$                    (137)$                  -32% Under budget while significant in percentage terms is not considered 
material in dollar terms.

  Total Meeting Expenses 20,018$               52,312$              (32,294)$            

  Operating Expenses
     Consultants & Contracts 10,749$               4,572$                 6,177$                 135% Consultants & Contracts were over budget due to NPCC's human 

resource and background check requirements increasing to a higher 
level than anticipated.

     Office Rent 22,578$               22,833$              (255)$                 -1%
     Office Costs 9,813$                 10,455$              (642)$                 -6%
     Computer and Equipment Leases 3,909$                 4,883$                 (974)$                  -20% Computer and Equipment Leases were under budget due to 

extension of various leases to coterminate with others.

     Professional Services 11,716$               4,667$                 7,049$                 151% Professional Services were over budget due to greater than 
anticipated  activities in support of retention of successor Chairman 
of the Board.

     Miscellaneous 2,668$                 2,000$                 668$                    33% Over budget while significant in percentage terms is not considered 
material in dollar terms.

     Depreciation 5,754$                 4,667$                 1,087$                 23% Depreciation expenses were over budget due to purchases of 
supplemental air conditioning for IT facility and capitalization of 
software.

  Total Operating Expenses 67,187$               54,077$              13,110$              

Total Direct Expenses 254,429$             304,807$            (50,378)$            

Total Indirect Expenses (254,429)$           (304,805)$           50,376$               -17% The allocation of indirect expenses is based upon FTEs and 
expenditures in the overhead functions.

Other Non-Operating Expenses -$                    500$                    (500)$                  -100% Actual Cost were allocated across the program areas and indirect 
functions based on FTE ratio

Total Expenses -$                    2$                      (2)$                     

Change in Assets 750$                    (2)$                     752$                   

Fixed Assets:
     Depreciation (5,754)$               (4,667)$               (1,087)$               23% Depreciation expenses were over budget due to unbudgeted 

purchase of supplemental air conditioning for IT facility and 
capitalization of software.

     Computer & Software CapEx 4,000$                 -$                    4,000$                  Enhancements to organizational policy section of the NPCC website 
were not budgeted.

     Furniture & Fixtures CapEx 287$                    667$                    (380)$                  -57% Furniture & Fixtures CapEx were under budget due to downscale of 
office furniture's as well as negotiated discounts.

     Equipment CapEx 271$                    1,000$                (729)$                 -73% Equipment CapEx were under budget due to negotiated discounts.
     Leasehold Improvements -$                    667$                   (667)$                 -100% NPCC made no leasehold improvements 
Change in Fixed Assets 1,196$                 2,333$                (1,137)$              

    Allocation of Fixed Assets (1,196)$               (2,335)$               1,139$                 -49% The allocation of assets is based upon FTEs and expenditures in the 
overhead functions.

TOTAL CHANGE IN ASSETS 1,946$                 2,331$                (385)$                 

Full-Time Equivalents 1.00 1.00 0.00



Northeast Power Coordinating Council, Inc.
2010 Statment of Activities Summary

Accounting and Finance

(In Whole Dollars)

Variance
2010 Actual 2010 Budget 2010 Variance Over/(Under) Comments - Explain variances that are +/- 10%

Funding:
  ERO Funding
     ERO Assessments -$                   -$                  -$                  
     Penalty Sanctions -$                  
  Total ERO Funding -$                   -$                  -$                  

Membership Fees & Non-Stat Assessments -$                  -$                  
Testing Fees -$                  -$                  
Services & Software -$                  -$                  
Workshops -$                  -$                  
Interest 750$                   -$                   750$                    Interest income while not budgeted is apportioned by RE/CS FTE ratio

Miscellaneous -$                  -$                  
Total Funding 750$                   -$                  750$                  

Direct Expenses:
  Personnel Expenses
     Salaries 101,540$            101,218$            322$                  0%
     Payroll Taxes 6,677$                6,642$                35$                    1%
     Employee Benefits 44,199$              20,506$              23,693$              116% Employee Benefits expenses were over budget due to overlaping hire due to 

advance notice of voluntary seperation.

     Savings & Retirement 7,225$                14,460$              (7,235)$              -50% Savings & Retirement were under budget due to unanticipated turnover and 
partial year hire. Employees hired after 2/6/07 must be on staff for the full 
calendar year to be eligible for annual discretionary 401k contribution.

  Total Personnel Expenses 159,641$            142,826$            16,815$             

  Meeting Expenses
      Meetings 1,403$                6,389$                (4,986)$              -78% Meeting expenses were under budget due to lower than anticipated volume of 

meetings in this area.

      Travel 1,803$                45,493$              (43,690)$            -96% Travel expenses were under budget due to advance bookings, adjustments to 
class of hotel being used, along with meetings held via teleconference.

     Conference Calls 94$                     430$                   (336)$                 -78% Under budget while significant in percentage terms is not considered material 
in dollar terms.

  Total Meeting Expenses 3,300$                52,312$              (49,012)$           

  Operating Expenses
     Consultants & Contracts 10,749$              4,572$                6,177$                135% Consultants & Contracts were over budget due to higher than expected audit 

fees.

     Office Rent 22,578$              22,833$              (255)$                -1%
     Office Costs 8,984$                10,455$              (1,471)$              -14% Office Costs were under budget due to lower than anticipated real estate tax 

escalations. 

     Computer and Equipment Leases 3,909$                4,883$                (974)$                 -20% Under budget while significant in percentage terms is not considered material 
in dollar terms.

     Professional Services 12,745$              214,810$            (202,065)$          -94% Professional Services were under budget due to deferral of transition from 
MIP fund accounting to Great Plains.

     Miscellaneous 2,155$                2,000$                155$                  8%
     Depreciation 5,754$                4,667$                1,087$                23% Depreciation expenses were over budget due to purchases of supplemental air 

conditioning for IT facility and capitalization of software.

  Total Operating Expenses 66,874$              264,220$            (197,346)$         

Total Direct Expenses 229,815$            459,858$            (230,043)$         

Total Indirect Expenses (229,815)$          (459,857)$          230,042$            -50% The allocation of indirect expenses is based upon FTEs and expenditures in 
the overhead functions.

Other Non-Operating Expenses -$                   500$                   (500)$                 -100% Actual Cost were allocated across the program areas and indirect functions 
based on FTE ratio

Total Expenses -$                   1$                      (1)$                    

Change in Assets 750$                   (1)$                    751$                  

Fixed Assets:
     Depreciation (5,754)$              (4,667)$              (1,087)$              23% Depreciation expenses were over budget due to unbudgeted purchase of 

supplemental air conditioning for IT facility and capitalization of software.

     Computer & Software CapEx 4,000$                -$                   4,000$                 Enhancements to user interface for finance and accounting section of the 
NPCC website were not budgeted.

     Furniture & Fixtures CapEx 287$                   667$                   (380)$                 -57% Furniture & Fixtures CapEx were under budget due to downscale of office 
furniture's as well as negotiated discounts.

     Equipment CapEx 271$                   1,000$                (729)$                -73% Equipment CapEx were under budget due to negotiated discounts.
     Leasehold Improvements -$                   667$                  (667)$                -100% NPCC made no leasehold improvements 
Change in Fixed Assets 1,196$                2,333$                (1,137)$             

    Allocation of Fixed Assets (1,196)$              (2,334)$              1,138$                -49% The allocation of assets is based upon FTEs and expenditures in the overhead 
functions.

TOTAL CHANGE IN ASSETS 1,946$                2,332$                (386)$                

Full-Time Equivalents 1.00 1.00 0.00



Northeast Power Coordinating Council, Inc.
2010 Statment of Activities Summary

Criteria Services Division

(In Whole Dollars)

2010 Actual 2010 Budget 2010 Variance
Funding:
  ERO Funding
     ERO Assessments -$                            
     Penalty Sanctions -$                            
  Total ERO Funding -$                         -$                         -$                            

Membership Fees & Non-Stat Assessme 1,145,460$              1,145,478$              (18)$                            
Testing Fees -$                            
Services & Software -$                            
Workshops -$                            
Interest 1,941$                     -$                         1,941$                         
Miscellaneous -$                            
Total Funding 1,147,401$              1,145,478$              1,923$                         

Direct Expenses:
  Personnel Expenses
     Salaries 203,734$                 378,635$                 (174,901)$                   
     Payroll Taxes 14,683$                   23,156$                   (8,473)$                       
     Employee Benefits 59,633$                   103,438$                 (43,805)$                     
     Savings & Retirement 65,577$                   182,833$                 (117,256)$                   
  Total Personnel Expenses 343,627$                 688,062$                 (344,435)$                   

  Meeting Expenses
     Meetings 3,839$                     23,600$                   (19,761)$                     
     Travel 26,473$                   70,001$                   (43,528)$                     
     Conference Calls 15,910$                   4,645$                     11,265$                       
  Total Meeting Expenses 46,222$                   98,246$                   (52,024)$                     

  Operating Expenses
      Consultants & Contracts 27,632$                   125,340$                 (97,708)$                     
      Office Rent 58,478$                  59,150$                  (672)$                          
      Office Costs 22,951$                   28,181$                   (5,230)$                       
     Computer and Equipment Leases 10,127$                   12,698$                   (2,571)$                       
      Professional Services 50,591$                   75,110$                   (24,519)$                     
     Miscellaneous 4,708$                     5,180$                     (472)$                          
      Depreciation 14,911$                   12,087$                   2,824$                         
  Total Operating Expenses 189,398$                 317,746$                 (128,348)$                   

Total Direct Expenses 579,247$                 1,105,349$              (526,102)$                   

Total Indirect Expenses -$                         -$                         -$                            

Other Non-Operating Expenses -$                         1,295$                     (1,295)$                       

Total Expenses 579,247$                 1,105,349$              (526,102)$                   

Change in Assets 568,154$                 40,129$                   528,025$                     

Fixed Assets:
     Depreciation (14,911)$                 (12,087)$                 (2,824)$                       
     Computer & Software CapEx 10,359$                  -$                        10,359$                       
     Furniture & Fixtures CapEx 766$                       1,727$                    (961)$                          
     Equipment CapEx 795$                       2,590$                    (1,795)$                       
     Leasehold Improvements -$                        1,727$                    (1,727)$                       
Change in Fixed Assets 2,991$                    6,043$                    (3,052)$                       

TOTAL CHANGE IN ASSETS 571,145$                46,172$                  524,973$                     

Full-Time Equivalents 2.59 2.59 0.00
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PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, 300 Madison Avenue, New York, NY 10017
T:(646) 471- 3000, F:(813) 207 3999, www.pwc.com/us

To the Board of Directors and the Members of
Northeast Power Coordinating Council, Inc.

In our opinion, the accompanying statements of financial position and the related statements of
activities and cash flows present fairly, in all mat
Northeast Power Coordinating Council, Inc. (the “Company”), as of December
2009, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended
conformity with accounting principles
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall fi
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
April 26, 2011

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, 300 Madison Avenue, New York, NY 10017
3000, F:(813) 207 3999, www.pwc.com/us

Report of Independent Auditors

and the Members of
Northeast Power Coordinating Council, Inc.

accompanying statements of financial position and the related statements of
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of

Northeast Power Coordinating Council, Inc. (the “Company”), as of December
and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended

conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We

these statements in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of

l misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall fi
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

accompanying statements of financial position and the related statements of
erial respects, the financial position of

Northeast Power Coordinating Council, Inc. (the “Company”), as of December 31, 2010 and
and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in

generally accepted in the United States of America.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We

these statements in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of

l misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.



Northeast Power Coordinating Council, Inc.
Statements of Financial Position
December 31, 2010 and 2009

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

2

2010 2009

Assets
Cash 3,319,034$ 1,342,198$

Restricted cash 1,318,083 543,932

Investments 2,210,830 2,210,529

Prepaid expenses 180,383 167,150

Other assets 27,305 40,009

Equipment and leasehold improvements, less accumulated

depreciation and amortization of

$365,179 and $194,444, respectively 1,263,698 1,301,857

Total assets 8,319,333$ 5,605,675$

Liabilities and Net assets
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 926,730$ 725,069$

Accrued liability for pension 2,084,658 2,658,480

Deferred revenue - 326,771

Deferred rent 755,086 646,637

Total liabilities 3,766,474 4,356,957

Net assets
Unrestricted net assets 4,552,859 1,248,718

Total net assets 4,552,859 1,248,718

Total liabilities and net assets 8,319,333$ 5,605,675$



Northeast Power Coordinating Council, Inc.
Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2010 and 2009

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

3

2010 2009

Revenue
Membership dues 1,145,460$ 1,012,775$

Regional entity ERO funding 11,500,439 10,008,885

Penalty sanctions 811,000 -

Interest income 22,488 13,190

Total revenue 13,479,387 11,034,850

Opera ting expenses
Salaries and employee benefits 6,027,231 5,226,442

Administrative and consultant fees 1,672,873 1,308,416

Professional fees 528,970 616,486

Meetings and travel 874,796 797,730

Telephone and telecommunications 208,478 264,020

Office supplies and expense 171,382 342,851

Equipment leases 114,426 150,005

Rent expense 632,276 505,345

Insurance expense 26,402 14,911

Miscellaneous 67,423 35,876

Depreciation and amortization 172,784 129,855

Total operating expenses 10,497,041 9,391,937

Change in net assets before non-operating expenses 2,982,346 1,642,913

Non-opera ting income (expense)
Pension change other than net periodic pension cost 321,795 254,975

Increase in net assets 3,304,141 1,897,888

Net assets (deficit)
Beginning of year 1,248,718 (649,170)

End of year 4,552,859$ 1,248,718$



Northeast Power Coordinating Council, Inc.
Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2010 and 2009

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

4

2010 2009

Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets 3,304,141$ 1,897,888$

Depreciation and amortization 172,784 129,855

Loss on abandonment of fixed assets - 20,844

(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses (13,233) 23,337

Decrease in other assets 10,355 28,250

Increase in accrued expenses and other liabilities 201,661 18,513

Decrease in accrued liability for pension (573,822) (293,770)

(Decrease) increase in deferred revenue (326,771) 74,795

Increase in deferred rent 108,449 106,322

Net cash provided by operating activities 2,883,564 2,006,034

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of equipment and leasehold improvements (132,577) (761,436)

Restricted cash (774,151) (42,871)

Net cash (used for) investing activities (906,728) (804,307)

Net increase in cash 1,976,836 1,201,727

Cash and cash equivalents
Beginning of year 1,342,198 140,471

End of year 3,319,034$ 1,342,198$



Northeast Power Coordinating Council, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009

5

1. Background

Northeast Power Coordinating Council, Inc. ("NPCC" or the "Company") is a New York State not-
for-profit corporation whose purpose is to promote and enhance the reliable and efficient operation
of the international, interconnected bulk power system in Northeastern North America through its
regional entity and criteria services divisions. The Company's regional entity division is responsible
for the development of regional reliability standards and compliance assessment and enforcement
of continent-wide and regional reliability standards, coordination of system planning, design and
operations, and assessment of reliability. These responsibilities are pursuant to an agreement with
the North American Electric Reliability Corporation ("NERC"), an Electric Reliability Organization
("ERO"), under authority of the U.S. Federal Energy Regulatory Commission ("FERC"), and by
Memoranda of Understanding with applicable Canadian Provincial regulatory and/or governmental
authorities. The Company's criteria services division establishes regionally-specific criteria, and
monitors and enforces compliance with such criteria. In the development of regionally-specific
reliability criteria, the Company, to the extent possible, facilitates attainment of fair, effective and
efficient competitive electric markets.

The Company is primarily funded through the NERC based on the regional entity division annual
business plan and budget submitted to and approved by the FERC and Canadian provincial
regulatory and/or governmental authorities. The Company's criteria services division is funded by
regional independent system operators or balancing authority areas and operates on assessments
to and funded from these entities based upon a "Net Energy for Load" formula.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting
For the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company used the accrual basis of
accounting in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Cash
The Company's cash balance consists of its operating checking account, as well as a savings
account.

Restricted Cash
Restricted cash represents amounts in deposit accounts funded with penalties levied and received
for non-compliance within NPCC U.S., and amounts in deposit accounts for collateralizing a letter
of credit as security for NPCC’s office lease. At times, cash balances may be in excess of
depository insurance limits.

Equipment and Leasehold Improvements
Equipment and leasehold improvements are stated at cost. Depreciation of furniture and computer
equipment is computed on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the applicable
assets. Amortization of leasehold improvements is computed on the straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of the applicable assets, or over the term of the related lease, whichever is
less.
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Revenue Recognition
For the criteria services division, membership in the Company is on a calendar year basis. There
are no fees assessed to full members other than those members that are Independent System
Operators or Balancing Authority Areas. Assessments received are recorded as income in the
year to which the membership applies irrespective of when billed or collected. For the regional
entity division, membership in the Company is on a calendar year basis. There are no fees
assessed to general members. Funding mechanisms provided through U.S. regulatory and
Canadian governmental and/or regulatory agreements provide for quarterly remittances through
the North American Electric Reliability Corporation. Assessments received are recorded as income
in the year to which the Business Plan and Budget applies irrespective of when billed or collected.
Penalty sanctions are recorded as income when levied and the appeals process has been waived
or is concluded.

Rent Expense
The Company’s office lease which commenced in 2009 contains predetermined increases and
decreases in the rentals payable during the lease term. Rent expense is recognized on a straight-
line basis over the lease term. The difference between the rent expense charged to operations
during the year and the amount payable under the lease during that year is recorded as “Deferred
rent” on the Statements of Financial Position. Deferred rent also includes the landlord’s
contribution toward the cost of leasehold improvements, which is being amortized over the lease
term. The unamortized balance of the landlord’s contribution at December 31, 2010 is
approximately $480,000.

Income Taxes
The Company has been classified as exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c) (6) of
the Internal Revenue Code.

Use of Estimates
The Company uses estimates and assumptions in preparing these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and
expenses. Actual results could vary from the estimates that are used.

3. Investments

The Company’s primary banking relationship is with JP Morgan Chase. Prior to 2009, both
regional entity (ERO funded) and criteria services (Regional Independent System
Operators/Balancing Authority Areas – ISO/BAAs) revenues were invested in a JPMorgan 100%
U.S. Treasury Security Money Market Fund (the "Fund”). The Fund aims to provide the highest
possible level of current income while still maintaining liquidity and providing maximum safety of
principal. The Fund is a money market fund managed to meet the requirements of Rule 2a-7 under
the Investment Company Act of 1940. The Fund is not insured or guaranteed by the FDIC or any
other government agency. In late 2008, the Fund was closed to additional investments.
Subsequent excess cash is being deposited into a savings account with JP Morgan Chase.

The Fund invests solely in debt securities of the U.S. Treasury, including Treasury bills, bonds and
notes. These investments carry different interest rates, maturities and issue dates. The National
Association of Insurance Commissioner ("NAIC"), Moody's, Fitch IBCA and S&P ratings signify that
the Fund has historically had a superior capacity to maintain a net asset value of $1.00 per share.
The ratings do not eliminate the risks associated with investing in the Fund. The NAIC "approved"
status indicates that the Fund meets certain pricing and quality guidelines. Management has
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determined that the likelihood of sustaining losses from money market funds to be remote based
on the marketability of the underlying investment of the funds.

At December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company owned 2,210,830 and 2,210,529 units of $1 par
value per unit, respectively. In 2010 and 2009, the funds earned average yields of 0.01% and 0%,
respectively. Investment income earned on the Fund is reinvested into units of the Fund on a
monthly basis.

4. Equipment and Leasehold Improvements

Equipment and leasehold improvements at December 31, 2010 and 2009 consists of the following:

Depreciable
Life 2010 2009

Furniture 10 years 201,518$ 192,892$

Computer equipment 3 years 336,668 328,718

Leasehold improvements 15 years (see note 2) 974,691 974,691

1,512,877 1,496,301

Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization (365,179) (194,444)

1,147,698 1,301,857

Website development not yet in service 116,000 -

1,263,698$ 1,301,857$

In 2010 and 2009, depreciation and amortization expense totaled $172,784 and $129,855,
respectively.

5. Pension Plan

The Company has a trusteed, noncontributory defined benefit pension plan (the “Plan”) covering
employees hired prior to February 6, 2007. The Company had budgeted for contributions of
$700,000 and $464,210 for 2010 and 2009, respectively. Based upon a funding deficiency and
recommendations of the Pension Committee, and as approved by the NPCC Board of Directors, a
supplemental contribution of $100,000 was made for plan year 2009, for a total contribution of
$564,210. The total contribution for 2010 was $700,000.

The following tables provide information with respect to the defined benefit plan as of and for the
years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009:

2010 2009

Components of net periodic benefit cost
Service cost 236,054$ 206,007$

Interest cost 433,409 399,697

Expected return on plan assets (371,694) (272,054)

Amortization of prior service cost 20,532 -

Recognized actuarial loss 150,205 191,766

Net periodic benefit cost 468,506$ 525,416$
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2010 2009

Change in benefit obligation
Benefit obligation at beginning of year 7,226,423$ 6,276,822$

Service cost 236,054 206,007

Interest cost 433,409 399,697

Amendments 242,279 -

Actuarial loss 26,679 445,889

Benefits paid (101,992) (101,992)

Benefit obligation at end of year 8,062,852$ 7,226,423$

Change in fa ir value of plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 4,567,943$ 3,324,572$

Actual return on plan assets 812,242 781,153

Company contribution 700,000 564,210

Benefits paid (101,992) (101,992)

Fair value of plan assets at end of year 5,978,193$ 4,567,943$

Funded sta tus at end of year (2,084,659)$ (2,658,480)$

Amounts recognized in unrestricted net assets consist of
Loss (2,130,022)$ (2,694,096)$

Prior service cost (221,747) -
(2,351,769)$ (2,694,096)$

Changes in unrestricted assets recognized in
non-operating expenses

Net (gain)/loss (413,869)$ (63,210)$

Prior service cost 242,279 -

Amortization of net gain/(loss) (150,205) (191,766)

(321,795)$ (254,976)$

Amounts of unrestricted net assets expected
to be recognized in net periodic benefit cost in 2011

Amortization of loss 180,938$

W eighted-average assumptions as of December 31
used for obliga tion

Discount Rate 5.75 % 6.00 %

Expected Return on Plan Assets 7.50 % 7.50 %

Rate of Compensation Increase 4.00 % 4.25 %

W eighted-average assumptions as of December 31
used for net periodic benefit cost

Discount Rate 6.00 % 6.25 %

Expected Return on Plan Assets 7.50 % 7.50 %

Rate of Compensation Increase 4.25 % 4.25 %

The accumulated benefit obligation at December 31, 2010 and 2009 was $5,769,210 and
$5,030,641, respectively.
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The Company determines its expected return on plan assets assumption by evaluating both
historical returns of major asset classes and current market factors. Current market factors include
inflation and interest rates, as well as asset diversification.

The Company's defined benefit plan weighted average asset allocation at December 31, 2010 and
2009 by asset category is as follows:

Allocation Allocation
Percentage Percentage

2010 2009

Equity Securities 68.3 % 57.8 %

Debt Securities 30.8 % 26.7 %

Cash 0.9 % 15.5 %
100.0 % 100.0 %

The Company's defined benefit plan invests primarily in equity and debt securities that are based
upon levels of risk and provide for necessary liquidity requirements. The long-term objective is to
limit the variability of its pension funding. The Company's plan assets are measured against
benchmarks established by the Pension Committee, which has the authority to recommend
changes as deemed appropriate.

Investments in actively traded equity and debt securities are valued using market prices in active
markets. Their valuations are obtained from real-time quotes for transactions in active exchange
markets involving identical assets. There were no securities for which the fair value was based on
other observable or unobservable inputs. At December 31, 2010, the plan assets consisted of
$43,654 of cash and cash equivalents, $3,109,999 of domestic equities, $882,132 of international
equities, $1,578,458 of corporate bonds, and $267,085 of commodity funds and $96,865 of public
real estate investment trust investments.

At December 31, 2010, the Company's target allocation percentages for plan assets were
approximately 63% equity securities, 33% debt securities and 4% other securities. The targets
may be adjusted periodically to reflect current market conditions and trends as well as inflation
levels, interest rates and trends thereof.

Expected employer contribution for the year ended December 31, 2011 is $600,000.

Benefits expected to be paid in cash in subsequent years ending December 31 are as follows:

2011 121,202$

2012 210,352

2013 203,102

2014 339,593

2015 338,122

2016-2020 1,788,279
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6. Savings and Supplemental Plans

The Company maintains a 401(k) plan for which all employees are immediately eligible upon hire.
Within this plan, an employee can contribute 2% or greater of his or her compensation up to the
IRS limit set for this plan. The Company's policy is to contribute on the employee’s behalf 100% of
the employee's contribution of the first 3% of his or her compensation, and 50% of his or her
contribution for the next 2% of compensation. Additionally, for those employees joining the
Company after February 6, 2007, and upon completion of a full calendar year of service, such
employees become eligible for a discretionary contribution to be considered annually by the Board
of Directors. The discretionary contribution for 2010 and 2009 was 6% of base compensation and
totaled $63,408 for 2010 and $63,475 for 2009. Company contributions to the 401(k) plan were
$133,094 and $111,856 for 2010 and 2009, respectively. During 2010, the Company adopted a
supplemental plan for employees who were not eligible to receive the same percentage level of
retirement benefits as other employees under the 401(k) plan due to IRS compensation limits. The
Company contributed $19,900 to this supplemental plan for 2010.

7. Leases

The Company is obligated under long-term operating leases for the rental of office facilities and
certain equipment. NPCC executed office and equipment leases with effective rental dates starting
in 2009 coordinated with its relocation of offices within New York City. NPCC’s office lease
provides for additional rent based on increases in real estate taxes and operating expenses over
base amounts. The office lease expires on April 30, 2024 and includes an option to renew for five
years. The office lease provides for security in the form of a collateralized letter of credit in the
amount of $500,000 at lease inception and reduced amounts in future years. NPCC executed
computer and equipment leases effective March, 2009 with expiration dates through March, 2012.
In addition, the Company rents certain other equipment on a month-to-month basis. Rental
expense for office facilities and equipment totaled $746,702 and $655,350 for 2010 and 2009,
respectively.

Future minimum rental payments required under the Company's long-term operating leases as of
December 31, 2010 are as follows:

Office Other
Space Leases Total

Year ending December 31
2011 612,357$ 125,875$ 738,232$

2012 612,357 31,469 643,826

2013 612,357 - 612,357

2014 652,380 - 652,380

2015 672,392 - 672,392

Thereafter 5,843,267 - 5,843,267

9,005,110$ 157,344$ 9,162,454$
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8. Functional Expenses

During 2010 and 2009 salaries and employee benefits consist of the following:

2010 2009

President, COO and technical staff 4,069,565$ 3,409,291$

Administrative support 157,100 154,900

Payroll taxes, insurance, pension and

educational assistance 1,800,566 1,662,251

Total salaries and employee benefits 6,027,231$ 5,226,442$

9. Other Expenses

The Company incurs various costs for administrative, consultant and professional services. Such
costs amounted to $2,201,843 and $1,924,902 in 2010 and 2009, respectively, and consist of the
following:

2010 2009

Consultants 1,073,228$ 979,843$

Accounting, legal and other services 1,120,240 936,221

Pension administration 8,375 8,838

Total administrative, consultant and
professional fees 2,201,843$ 1,924,902$

These costs are reflected in “Administrative and consultant fees” and “Professional fees” in the
Statements of Activities.

10. Related Party Transactions

The NERC, through agreements with the FERC in the U.S. and Canadian Provincial regulatory
and/or governmental agreements within Canada, delegates enforcement authority to eight
Regional Entities. NPCC is the cross-border regional entity for Northeastern North America.
NERC was certified as the “Electric Reliability Organization” by the FERC on July 20, 2006. As of
June 18, 2007, the U.S. FERC granted NERC the legal authority to enforce reliability standards
with all U.S. users, owners, and operators of the bulk power system, and made compliance with
those standards mandatory and enforceable. NERC relies on the diverse and collective expertise
of industry participants to improve the reliability of the bulk power system. These entities account
for virtually all the electricity supplied in the United States, Canada, and a portion of Baja California
Norte, Mexico. NERC is subject to audit by the U.S. FERC and governmental and/or regulatory
authorities in Canada. NERC funded the Regional Entities based upon Business Plans and
Budgets submitted to and approved by FERC in the U.S. and Canadian regulatory and/or
governmental authorities.
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NPCC’s criteria services division was fully funded by regional independent system operator or
balancing authority areas and operated on assessments to and funded from these six entities.
Dues were based upon a “Net Energy for Load” funding formula. During 2010 and 2009, total
membership dues billed amounted to $1,145,460 and $1,012,775, respectively.

2010 Total 2009 Total
Description Percent Share Percent Share

Hydro-Quebec TransEnergie 28.54 % 326,919$ 28.40 % 287,643$

Independent Electricity System Operator 22.47 % 257,443 22.63 % 229,184

ISO-New England, Inc. 19.92 % 228,133 19.99 % 202,412

New Brunswick System Operator 2.14 % 24,482 2.22 % 22,529

New York Independent System Operator 25.03 % 286,771 24.88 % 251,976

Nova Scotia Power Inc. 1.90 % 21,712 1.88 % 19,031

Total Member Fees 100.00 % 1,145,460$ 100.00 % 1,012,775$

11. Subsequent Events

Management has evaluated, for potential recognition and disclosure, events subsequent to the
date of the Statement of Financial Position through April 26, 2011, the date the financial statements
were available to be issued.
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Tricia Kritzberg 
Controller 

 
801-883-6866 

tkritzberg@wecc.biz 

May 23, 2011 

 

Mr. Michael Walker 
Ms. Susan Turpen 
North American Electric Reliability Corporation (NERC) 
116-390 Village Blvd. 
Princeton, NJ 08540-5721 
 

RE: 2010 Budget Variance Explanations Based on Audited Financials 

The Western Electricity Coordinating Council’s (WECC) audited financial statements show that 
WECC’s Statutory Total Change in Assets for the year ended December 31, 2010 is over 
budget by $858,000. In its fourth quarter variance report, WECC reported being under budget 
by $474,000. As part of the audit process, WECC accrued several large expenditures that 
primarily related to grant transactions. WECC is over budget only because its revenue from 
grants is not currently equal to its expenditures related to the grants. There is a delay in 
reimbursement of expenses by the Department of Energy due to the structure of the grants. 
This delay causes a temporary loss on grant activities, but will equalize over the three-year term 
of the grants. 

Also, in 2010 WECC conducted a thorough review of its fixed assets and identified several that 
did not have a useful life that warranted depreciation. Therefore, WECC has written off several 
fixed assets resulting in expense transactions that are not cash related.  

WECC has one non-statutory activity, the Western Renewable Energy Generation Information 
System (WREGIS). WECC uses a fund accounting system that allows costs to be segregated 
between statutory and non-statutory activities to ensure that no statutory funding is used for 
non-statutory activities. These same principles of segregating costs are also used to ensure that 
costs are segregated to federal grant activities in accordance with federal cost accounting 
requirements.  

In 2010, WECC allocated indirect costs to its non-statutory activity based on full-time 
equivalents (FTE). Indirect costs include the Board of Directors and its Standing Committees, 
General and Administrative, Legal, Information Technology, Human Resources, and Finance 
programs. These costs are allocated to WREGIS based on the ratio of total WREGIS FTEs to 
total operating program FTEs.  

Significant variances related to the statutory budget are explained by line item, based on 
program specific budgets and actual results. A summary of significant overall variances is 
described below. Year-end variances greater than $10,000 and 10 percent are explained below, 
in addition to any other variances that are noteworthy. 

WECC did not use cash reserves during 2010. 
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FUNDING 

• Grant Funding ($13.7 million under budget) 
o Grant funding is received as reimbursement for costs incurred on grant activities. 

At the time the 2010 budget was developed, WECC was in negotiation with the 
Department of Energy for these grants. The actual start date for the grants was 
later than originally anticipated, resulting in fewer costs being incurred than 
initially anticipated.  

• Workshops ($400,000 under budget) 
o Workshop revenue was under budget due to lower than anticipated attendance 

at workshops and training sessions. 
•  Interest ($277,000 over budget) 

o Interest was not budgeted in 2010 due to the instability and volatility of the 
financial markets at the time the budget was prepared. Actual interest earnings 
were $227,000.  

• Miscellaneous ($49,000 under budget) 
o Projected revenue from the Lawrence Berkeley National Labs in relation to 

congestion studies was not realized. 

EXPENSES 

• Salaries ($1.5 million under budget) 
o Salaries are under budget due to vacancies in budgeted positions. The 

vacancies are the result of timing of new hires and normal turnover. 
• Payroll Taxes ($476,000 under budget) 

o Payroll taxes fluctuate with salaries.  
o WECC’s estimates of payroll taxes as part of its 2010 budget process resulted in 

higher budget amounts than actual results. 
• Employee Benefits ($584,000 under budget) 

o Benefits fluctuate with salaries.  
o WECC is under budget due to lower than anticipated enrollment in benefit 

programs among existing employees as well as unfilled vacancies. 
• Retirement Costs ($188,000 under budget) 

o Retirement Costs fluctuate with salaries. 
o  WECC is under budget due to lower than anticipated participation in its 401(k) 

program as well as unfilled vacancies. 
• Meetings ($673,000 under budget) 

o Meeting costs associate with the Regional Transmission Expansion Planning 
(RTEP) grant were lower than anticipated due to the date of signing the grant 
being later than anticipated. 

o Lower than anticipated attendance at training and workshops resulted in lower 
meeting costs. 

o WECC realized costs savings on meetings as a result of increased utilization of 
its new Salt Lake City office and meeting facilities. 
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• Travel ($380,000 under budget) 
o Travel is lower than budgeted due to vacancies in budgeted positions and normal 

turnover. 
o Travel between WECC’s three locations and executive travel to regional and 

national meetings was lower than anticipated. 
• Consultants and Contracts ($10 million under budget) 

o Consultants and contracts related to the grants were not incurred due to the 
grants being signed later than originally anticipated. These costs will be incurred 
in 2011-2013.  

• Office Rent ($79,000 under budget) 
o Office rent is under budget due to WECC signing the leases for the expansion of 

the Reliability Control Offices at a date later than anticipated. 
• Office Costs ($886,000 over budget) 

o Costs associated with license agreements, maintenance contracts, and small 
equipment purchases were budgeted as fixed assets but are more appropriately 
charged to office costs.  

o A review of WECC’s fixed assets revealed certain assets that did not fit WECC’s 
definition of fixed assets, and therefore they were written off. 

• Professional Services ($321,000 over budget) 
o Professional services are over budget due to the purchase of an Errors and 

Omissions insurance policy that was not budgeted in 2010. 
• Miscellaneous ($451,000 over budget) 

o Miscellaneous costs are over budget due to the recognition of a contingent 
liability associated with WECC’s registered function. 

• Depreciation ($2.8 million over budget) 
o Depreciation was not budgeted in 2010. 

• Indirect Expenses ($57,000 under budget) 
o Indirect expenses are under budget due to lower than anticipated FTEs in 

WREGIS and lower than anticipated overhead expenses. 

FIXED ASSETS 

• Depreciation ($2.8 million over budget) 
o Depreciation was not budgeted in 2010. 

• Computer & Software CapEx ($1 million under budget) 
o A review of WECC’s fixed assets revealed certain assets that did not fit WECC’s 

definition of fixed assets, therefore they were written off. 
o Costs associated with license agreements, maintenance contracts, and small 

equipment purchases were budgeted as fixed assets but are more appropriately 
charged to office costs.  

• Furniture and Fixtures CapEx ($268,000 over budget) 
o Costs associated with furnishing the new Salt Lake City office and meeting 

facilities were not budgeted. 
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• Equipment CapEx ($20,000 under budget)  
o Equipment purchases related to the grants were not incurred due to the grants 

being signed at a date later than anticipated. 
• Leasehold Improvements ($137,000 over budget) 

o Leasehold improvements related to the new Salt Lake City office and meeting 
facilities were not budgeted. 

o Leasehold improvements related to the grants were lower than anticipated due to 
the signing of the grant contracts being later than anticipated. These costs will be 
incurred in 2011. 

Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions. 

Thank you,  

 

Tricia Kritzberg 

Controller 

 



WESTERN ELECTRICITY COORDINATING COUNCIL
2010 Statement of Activities Summary

Audited
(In Whole Dollars)

 2010 Actual  2010 Budget  2010 Variance 
Funding

ERO Funding
ERO Assessments  $        39,132,442  $        39,132,458  $                        (16)
Penalty Sanctions                              -   

Total ERO Funding 39,132,442$         39,132,458$         (16)$                         

   Membership Fees & Non-Stat              1,035,810              1,087,943                     (52,133)
   Grant Funding              6,267,559            19,926,124              (13,658,565)
   Services & Software                     4,605                           -                           4,605 

 Workshops                 914,490              1,323,900                   (409,410)
   Interest                 276,680                           -                       276,680 
   Miscellaneous                   12,445                   61,000                     (48,715)

Total Funding 47,644,031$         61,531,425$         (13,887,554)$           

Expenses
   Personnel Expenses
      Salaries            17,948,619            19,604,251                (1,655,632)
      Payroll Taxes              1,218,223              1,707,938                   (489,715)
      Employee Benefits              2,242,395              2,850,342                   (607,947)
      Savings & Retirement              1,159,822              1,357,477                   (197,655)
Total Personnel Expenses 22,569,059$         25,520,009$         (2,950,950)$             

   Meeting Expenses
      Meetings                 857,253              1,547,013                   (689,760)
      Travel              1,460,555              1,864,222                   (403,667)
      Conference Calls                 128,796                 138,980                     (10,184)
Total Meeting Expenses 2,446,604$           3,550,215$           (1,103,611)$             

   Operating Expenses
      Consultants & Contracts              7,963,731            18,068,677              (10,104,946)
      Office Rent              1,501,992              1,581,000                     (79,008)
      Office Costs              4,505,334              3,528,312                     977,022 
      Professional Services              1,391,901              1,102,297                     289,604 
      Miscellaneous                 452,081                           -                       452,081 
      Depreciation              2,768,144                           -                    2,768,144 
Total Operating Expenses 18,583,183$         24,280,286$         (5,697,103)$             

Total Direct Expenses 43,598,846$         53,350,510$         (9,751,664)$             

Indirect Expenses                            0                           (2)                                2 

Other Non-Operating Expenses 2,938,196$           2,966,207$           (28,011)$                  

Change in Assets 1,106,989$           5,214,711$           (4,107,882)$             

Fixed Assets
Depreciation             (2,768,144)                           -                  (2,768,144)
Computer & Software CapEx              1,358,399              2,442,645                (1,084,246)
Furniture & Fixtures CapEx                 267,534                           -                       267,534 
Equipment CapEx                           -                     20,000                     (20,000)
Leasehold Improvements              1,674,660              1,537,667                     136,993 

Change in Fixed Assets (532,449)$             (4,000,312)$          3,467,863$              

Allocation of Fixed Assets                           -                             -                                -   

Change in Fixed Assets (532,449)$             (4,000,312)$          3,467,863$              

TOTAL CHANGE IN ASSETS 574,540$              1,214,399$           (640,019)$                

 FTEs                     181.3                     186.9                           (5.6)



WESTERN ELECTRICITY COORDINATING COUNCIL
2010 Statement of Activities Summary

Statutory Only
(In Whole Dollars)

 2010 Actual  2010 Budget  2010 Variance 
Funding

ERO Funding
ERO Assessments  $        39,132,441  $        39,132,455  $                        (14)
Penalty Sanctions                           -                             -                                -   

Total ERO Funding 39,132,441$         39,132,455$         (14)$                         

   Membership Fees & Non-Stat                           -                             -                                -   
   Grant Funding              6,267,559            19,926,124              (13,658,565)
   Services & Software                           -                             -                                -   

 Workshops                 914,490              1,315,100                   (400,610)
   Interest                 276,680                           -                      276,680 
   Miscellaneous                   12,285                   61,000                     (48,715)

Total Funding 46,603,455$         60,434,679$         (13,831,224)$           

Expenses
   Personnel Expenses
      Salaries            17,710,304            19,254,204                (1,543,900)
      Payroll Taxes              1,200,525              1,676,434                   (475,909)
      Employee Benefits              2,215,646              2,799,460                   (583,814)
      Savings & Retirement              1,145,086              1,332,974                   (187,888)
Total Personnel Expenses 22,271,561$         25,063,073$         (2,791,512)$             

   Meeting Expenses
      Meetings                 853,762              1,527,070                   (673,308)
      Travel              1,449,771              1,829,350                   (379,579)
      Conference Calls                 128,796                 138,480                       (9,684)
Total Meeting Expenses 2,432,329$           3,494,900$           (1,062,571)$             

   Operating Expenses
      Consultants & Contracts              7,955,963            17,981,636              (10,025,673)
      Office Rent              1,501,992              1,581,000                     (79,008)
      Office Costs              4,344,153              3,458,053                    886,100 
      Professional Services              1,360,621              1,039,280                    321,341 
      Miscellanoues                 451,000                           -                      451,000 
      Depreciation              2,768,144                           -                   2,768,144 
Total Operating Expenses 18,381,873$         24,059,969$         (5,678,096)$             

Total Direct Expenses 43,085,763$         52,617,942$         (9,532,179)$             

Indirect Expenses                (307,469)                (364,177)                      56,708 

Other Non-Operating Expenses 2,938,196$           2,966,207$           (28,011)$                  

Change in Assets 886,966$              5,214,708$           (4,327,742)$             

Fixed Assets
Depreciation             (2,768,144)                           -                  (2,768,144)
Computer & Software CapEx              1,358,399              2,442,645                (1,084,246)
Furniture & Fixtures CapEx                 267,534                           -                      267,534 
Equipment CapEx                           -                     20,000                     (20,000)
Leasehold Improvements              1,674,660              1,537,667                    136,993 

Change in Fixed Assets (532,449)$             (4,000,312)$          3,467,863$              

Allocation of Fixed Assets                           -                             -                                -   

Change in Fixed Assets (532,449)$             (4,000,312)$          3,467,863$              

TOTAL CHANGE IN ASSETS 354,517$              1,214,396$           (859,879)$                

 FTEs                     177.3                     181.9                           (4.6)



WESTERN ELECTRICITY COORDINATING COUNCIL
2010 Statement of Activities Summary

Reliability Standards
(In Whole Dollars)

 2010 Actual  2010 Budget  2010 Variance Comments - Explain variances that are +/- 10%
Funding

ERO Funding
ERO Assessments  $              738,926  $              738,927  $                           (1) 0.00%

Penalty Sanctions                                -    

Total ERO Funding 738,926$              738,927$              (1)$                            

   Membership Fees & Non-Stat                                -    

   Grant Funding                                -    

   Services & Software                                -    

 Workshops                                -   
   Interest                                -    

   Miscellaneous                                -    

Total Funding 738,926$              738,927$              (1)$                            

Expenses
   Personnel Expenses
      Salaries                  434,606                  385,467                       49,139 12.75% Salary  expenses were higher than budgeted due to adjustments to existing salaries to ensure retention.  

      Payroll Taxes                    28,379                    34,692                        (6,313) -18.20% Payroll taxes were estimated at an amount higher than actual results

      Employee Benefits                    45,187                    43,626                         1,561 3.58%

      Savings & Retirement                    36,630                    26,983                         9,647 35.75% Retirement benefits were higher than budgeted due to higher salaries.

Total Personnel Expenses 544,802$              490,768$              54,034$                    

   Meeting Expenses
      Meetings                      5,039                      4,000                         1,039 25.98% Meetings wer higher than budgeted due to increased attendance at meetings

      Travel                    44,507                    12,000                       32,507 270.89% Travel was higher than budgeted due to more frequent attendance at standards meetings.

      Conference Calls                    14,302                      5,760                         8,542 148.30% Conference calls were higher than budgeted due to higher attendance on conference call meetings.

Total Meeting Expenses 63,848$                21,760$                42,088$                    

   Operating Expenses
      Consultants & Contracts                            -                                  -    

      Office Rent                            -                                  -    

      Office Costs                      8,105                      2,200                         5,905 268.41% Office costs were higher than budgeted due to increased use of internet technology while traveling.

      Professional Services                         410                             410  

      Miscellanoues                            -                                  -    

      Depreciation                            -                                  -    

Total Operating Expenses 8,515$                   2,200$                   6,315$                      
 

Total Direct Expenses 617,165$              514,728$              102,437$                  
 

Indirect Expenses                  230,602                  218,505                       12,097 5.54%

 

Other Non-Operating Expenses -$                               

 

Change in Assets (108,840)$             5,694$                   (114,535)$                 

Fixed Assets
Depreciation                                -    
Computer & Software CapEx                                -    
Furniture & Fixtures CapEx                                -    
Equipment CapEx                                -    
Leasehold Improvements                                -    

Change in Fixed Assets -$                           -$                           -$                              

Allocation of Fixed Assets
                  (17,550)                     (5,694)                      (11,856) 208.22% Allocation of assets is based on FTE and expenditures in overhead functions.  See General and 

Administrative function. 

Change in Fixed Assets (17,550)$               (5,694)$                 (11,856)$                   

TOTAL CHANGE IN ASSETS (126,391)$             0$                          (126,391)$                 

 FTEs                                   3.0                                   3.0                                         -   



WESTERN ELECTRICITY COORDINATING COUNCIL
2010 Statement of Activities Summary

Compliance and Organization Registration and Certification
(In Whole Dollars)

 2010 Actual  2010 Budget  2010 Variance Comments - Explain variances that are +/- 10%
Funding

ERO Funding
ERO Assessments  $        12,985,970  $        12,985,975  $                          (5) 0.00%

Penalty Sanctions                              -    

Total ERO Funding 12,985,970$         12,985,975$         (5)$                           

   Membership Fees & Non-Stat                              -    

   Grant Funding                              -    

   Services & Software                              -    

 Workshops                 245,100                 400,000                   (154,900) -38.73% Workshop revenue was lower than budgeted due to lower than anticipated attedance at CUG and CIPUG meetings.

   Interest                              -    

   Miscellaneous                              -    

Total Funding 13,231,070$         13,385,975$         (154,905)$                

Expenses
   Personnel Expenses
      Salaries              4,283,562              5,060,109                   (776,547) -15.35% Salaries are under budget due to vacancy in budgeted positions and normal turnover.

      Payroll Taxes                 296,538                 438,047                   (141,509) -32.30% Payroll Taxes fluctuate with salaries

      Employee Benefits                 405,768                 582,670                   (176,902) -30.36% Employee Benefits fluctuate with salaries.

      Savings & Retirement                 254,854                 348,605                     (93,751) -26.89% Retirement fluctuates with salaries

Total Personnel Expenses 5,240,722$           6,429,432$           (1,188,710)$             

   Meeting Expenses
      Meetings                 173,128                 425,000                   (251,872) -59.26% Meeting expenses were lower than budgeted due to lower than anticipated attendance at CUG and CIPUG meetings

      Travel                 493,860                 762,350                   (268,490) -35.22% Travel was lower than budgeted due to vacancies in budgeted positions and normal turnover.

      Conference Calls                   28,505                   45,500                     (16,995) -37.35% Conference calls were lower than budgeted due to lower attendance at compliance meetings held by phone

Total Meeting Expenses 695,493$              1,232,850$           (537,357)$                

   Operating Expenses
      Consultants & Contracts              1,334,300              1,467,500                   (133,200) -9.08% Consultants are lower than budgeted due to the utilization of existing employees for tasks budgeted to be performed by 

consultants.

      Office Rent                     1,980                           -                          1,980  

      Office Costs                 344,187                 178,550                    165,637 92.77% Office costs were higher than budgeted due to expensed equipment and furnitue purchases that were unbudgeted

      Professional Services                   44,665                 155,000                   (110,335) -71.18% Professional services were lower than budgeted as a result of budgeted Hearings costs not being realized.

      Miscellanoues                           -                             -                                -    

      Depreciation                 145,683                           -                      145,683  Depreciation was not budgeted in 2010

Total Operating Expenses 1,870,815$           1,801,050$           69,765$                   

Total Direct Expenses 7,807,030$           9,463,332$           (1,656,302)$             

Indirect Expenses              3,612,762              3,641,750                     (28,988) -0.80%

Other Non-Operating Expenses -$                             

Change in Assets 1,811,278$           280,893$              1,530,385$              

Fixed Assets
Depreciation                (145,683)                           -                     (145,683)   Depreciation was not budgeted in 2010 

Computer & Software CapEx                   95,121                 186,000                     (90,879) -48.86%

Furniture & Fixtures CapEx                  (12,812)                     (12,812)  

Equipment CapEx                           -                                -    
Leasehold Improvements                           -                                -    

Change in Fixed Assets 63,374$                (186,000)$             249,374$                 

Allocation of Fixed Assets                (274,954)                  (94,893)                   (180,061) 189.75% Allocation of assets is based on FTE and expenditures in overhead functions.  

Change in Fixed Assets (211,580)$             (280,893)$             69,313$                   

TOTAL CHANGE IN ASSETS 1,599,698$           0$                        1,599,698$              

 FTEs                               47.0                               50.0                                    (3.0)

A review of WECC's fixed assets revealed certain assets that did not fit WECC's definition of a fixed asset, therefore 

they were written off.



WESTERN ELECTRICITY COORDINATING COUNCIL
2010 Statement of Activities Summary

Reliability Assessment and Performance Analysis

(In Whole Dollars)

 2010 Actual  2010 Budget  2010 Variance Comments - Explain variances that are +/- 10%
Funding

ERO Funding
ERO Assessments  $          4,772,132  $          4,772,132  $                             - 0.00%

Penalty Sanctions                               -    

Total ERO Funding 4,772,132$           4,772,132$           -$                             

   Membership Fees & Non-Stat                               -    

   Grant Funding              1,385,744              3,991,879                (2,606,135) -65.29%

   Services & Software                                    -                                 -    

 Workshops                           -                                 -   
   Interest                           -                                 -    

   Miscellaneous                           -                     50,000                     (50,000) -100.00% Projected revenue from Lawrence Berkeley National Labs in relation to congestion studies was not 
realized

Total Funding 6,157,876$           8,814,011$           (2,656,135)$             

Expenses
   Personnel Expenses
      Salaries              1,518,337              1,907,620                   (389,283) -20.41% Salaries are under budget due to vacancy in budgeted positions and normal turnover.

      Payroll Taxes                 108,833                 170,159                     (61,326) -36.04% Payroll Taxes fluctuate with salaries

      Employee Benefits                 215,806                 236,888                     (21,082) -8.90%

      Savings & Retirement                 125,948                 132,346                       (6,398) -4.83%

Total Personnel Expenses 1,968,924$           2,447,013$           (478,089)$                

   Meeting Expenses
      Meetings                   96,801                 416,850                   (320,049) -76.78% Meeting costs associated with the grant were not incurred due to a slower than anticipated ramp-up 

of grant activities

      Travel                 132,823                 149,500                     (16,677) -11.16% Travel costs associated with the grant were not incurred due to a slower than anticipated ramp-up of 
grant activities

      Conference Calls                   33,855                   28,320                         5,535 19.54% Participation and frequency of conference calls were higher than anticipated.

Total Meeting Expenses 263,479$              594,670$              (331,191)$                

   Operating Expenses
      Consultants & Contracts                 874,745              3,568,631                (2,693,886) -75.49% Consultants and Contracts associated with the grant were not incurred due to a slower than 

anticipated ramp-up of activities

      Office Rent                           -                             -                                 -    

      Office Costs                 243,347                 444,000                   (200,653) -45.19% Costs associated with maintenace agreements on PMUs were not incurred due to the signing of the 
WISP grant.

      Professional Services                   16,367                           -                         16,367  Non-Affiliated Director fees were paid for participation on committees related to the grant.

      Miscellanoues                           -                             -                                 -    

      Depreciation                           -                             -                                 -    

Total Operating Expenses 1,134,459$           4,012,631$           (2,878,172)$             

Total Direct Expenses 3,366,862$           7,054,314$           (3,687,452)$             

Indirect Expenses              1,460,478              1,684,309                   (223,831) Allocation of indirect costs is based on FTE and expenditures in overhead functions.  

Other Non-Operating Expenses -$                             

Change in Assets 1,330,536$           75,388$                1,255,148$              

Fixed Assets
Depreciation                               -    
Computer & Software CapEx                  (47,000)                   11,500                     (58,500) -508.70%

Furniture & Fixtures CapEx                               -    

Equipment CapEx
                  20,000                     (20,000) -100.00% Equipment purchases related to the grant were not incurred due to a slower than anticipated ramp-up 

of activities
Leasehold Improvements                               -    

Change in Fixed Assets 47,000$                (31,500)$               78,500$                   

Allocation of Fixed Assets                (111,151)                  (43,888)                     (67,263) Allocation of assets is based on FTE and expenditures in overhead functions.

Change in Fixed Assets (64,151)$               (75,388)$               11,237$                   

TOTAL CHANGE IN ASSETS 1,266,384$           -$                          1,266,384$              

 FTEs                       19.0                       23.1                           (4.1)

Grant funding is received as a reimbursement for costs incurred on grant activities.  WECC did not 
incur as many costs as anticipated.  These costs will be incurred in 2011 - 2013.

A review of WECC's fixed assets revealed certain assets that did not fit WECC's definition of a fixed 
asset, therefore they were written off.

A review of WECC's fixed assets revealed certain assets that did not fit WECC's definition of a fixed 
asset, therefore they were written off.



WESTERN ELECTRICITY COORDINATING COUNCIL
2010 Statement of Activities Summary

Training and Education(In Whole Dollars)

 2010 Actual  2010 Budget  2010 Variance Comments - Explain variances that are +/- 10%
Funding

ERO Funding
ERO Assessments  $              250,557  $              250,557  $                             - 0.00%

Penalty Sanctions                               -    

Total ERO Funding 250,557$              250,557$              -$                              

   Membership Fees & Non-Stat                               -    

   Grant Funding                               -    

   Services & Software                               -    

 Workshops                  669,390                  915,100                    (245,710) -26.85% Lower than anticipated attendance at training and workshops has resulted in lower revenue.

   Interest                               -    

   Miscellaneous                               -    

Total Funding 919,947$              1,165,657$           (245,710)$                 

Expenses
   Personnel Expenses
      Salaries                    91,390                  327,543                    (236,153) -72.10% Salaries are under budget due to vacancies in budgeted positions. 

      Payroll Taxes                      4,500                    23,284                      (18,784) -80.67% Payroll taxes fluctuate with salaries.

      Employee Benefits                  (15,943)                    36,835                      (52,778) -143.28% Benefits fluctuate with salaries.  Also, in order to obtain an accurate view of revenue and costs 
associated with training, WECC's training department charges other departments for employee 
attendance.  The costs associated with employee attendance is applied to the department budget as 
a employee benefit.  The revenue is applied to the benefit account in the Training department in order 
to ensure the inter-departmental transfer is eliminated on WECC's consolidated financial reports.

      Savings & Retirement                    10,334                    18,110                        (7,776) -42.94% Retirement costs fluctuate with salaries.

Total Personnel Expenses 90,281$                405,772$              (315,491)$                 

   Meeting Expenses
      Meetings                  211,660                  278,000                      (66,340) -23.86% Lower than anticipated attendance at training and workshops has resulted in lower meeting costs.

      Travel                    34,538                    24,000                       10,538 43.91% Trainer and administrative support travel to off-site training sessions was higher than anticipated.

      Conference Calls                             6                      2,000                        (1,994) -99.70% Conference calls were not required for training sessions.

Total Meeting Expenses 246,204$              304,000$              (57,796)$                   

   Operating Expenses
      Consultants & Contracts                    75,464                    98,000                      (22,536) -23.00% In-house trainers were used instead of consultants for more training sessions than anticipated.

      Office Rent                            -                              -                                 -    

      Office Costs                  220,898                    14,320                     206,578 1442.58% WECC installed numerous computers and purchased simulator licenses for its new training center in 
Salt Lake City.  

      Professional Services                            -                              -                                 -    

      Miscellanoues                            -                              -                                 -    

      Depreciation                      1,053                            -                           1,053  

Total Operating Expenses 297,415$              112,320$              185,095$                  

Total Direct Expenses 633,900$              822,092$              (188,192)$                 

Indirect Expenses                  115,301                  254,922                    (139,621) Allocation of indirect costs is based on FTE and expenditures in overhead functions.  

Other Non-Operating Expenses -$                              

Change in Assets 170,746$              88,643$                82,103$                    

Fixed Assets
Depreciation                    (1,053)                            -                          (1,053)  

Computer & Software CapEx                    82,000                      (82,000) -100.00% Costs associated with the purchase of computers for training center were expensed as Office Costs.

Furniture & Fixtures CapEx                               -    
Equipment CapEx                               -    
Leasehold Improvements                               -    

Change in Fixed Assets 1,053$                  (82,000)$               83,053$                    

Allocation of Fixed Assets                    (8,775)                    (6,643)                        (2,132)

Change in Fixed Assets (7,722)$                 (88,643)$               80,921$                    

TOTAL CHANGE IN ASSETS 163,024$              -$                          163,024$                  

 FTEs                                  1.5                                  3.5                                     (2.0)



WESTERN ELECTRICITY COORDINATING COUNCIL
2010 Statement of Activities Summary

Situation Awareness and Infrastructure Security

(In Whole Dollars)

 2010 Actual  2010 Budget  2010 Variance Comments - Explain variances that are +/- 10%
Funding

ERO Funding
ERO Assessments  $        19,170,461  $        19,170,469  $                          (8) 0.00%

Penalty Sanctions                              -    

Total ERO Funding 19,170,461$         19,170,469$         (8)$                           

   Membership Fees & Non-Stat                              -    

   Grant Funding              4,879,115            15,811,845              (10,932,730) -69.14%

   Services & Software                              -    

 Workshops                              -   
   Interest                              -    

   Miscellaneous                              -    

Total Funding 24,049,576$         34,982,314$         (10,932,738)$           

Expenses
   Personnel Expenses
      Salaries              7,481,695              7,390,968                      90,727 1.23%

      Payroll Taxes                 521,739                 668,926                   (147,187) -22.00% Payroll taxes were estimated at an amount higher than actual results

      Employee Benefits                 692,513                 829,599                   (137,086) -16.52% Benefits are under budget due to lower than anticipated enrollment by existing employees

      Savings & Retirement                 460,504                 520,276                     (59,772) -11.49% Retirement costs are under budget due to lower than anticipated employee participation in the 401(k) 

Total Personnel Expenses 9,156,451$           9,409,770$           (253,319)$                

   Meeting Expenses
      Meetings                        681                           -                             681  

      Travel                 309,691                 216,000                      93,691 43.38% Travel between the reliability coordination centers resulted in higher than anticipated travel costs.

      Conference Calls                     7,016                   10,000                       (2,984) -29.84% Conference calls are lower than budget due to lower frequency and participation than anticipated.

Total Meeting Expenses 317,388$              226,000$              91,388$                   

   Operating Expenses
      Consultants & Contracts              5,480,061            12,623,025                (7,142,964) -56.59% Consultants and Contracts associated with the grant were not incurred due to a slower than anticipated 

ramp-up of activities.  These costs will be incurred in 2011-2012.

      Office Rent                 506,252                 596,000                     (89,748) -15.06% Office rent was lower than budgeted due to signing the lease expansion for the RCs at a date later than 

anticipated.

      Office Costs              2,390,858              1,763,338                    627,520 35.59% Costs associated with licenses and maintenance agreements were budgeted to fixed assets, but are 

more appropriately charged to office costs.  Additionally, a review of WECC's fixed assets revealed 

certain assets that did not fit WECC's definition of fixed assets, therefore they were written off.

      Professional Services                 166,989                   15,000                    151,989 1013.26% Legal fees associated with the negotiation of grant-related contracts were higher than anticipated.

      Miscellaneous                 450,000                           -                      450,000  Miscellaneous costs are over budget due to the recognition of a contingent liability associated with 

WECC’s registered function.

      Depreciation              1,854,611                           -                    1,854,611  Depreciation was not budgeted in 2010.

Total Operating Expenses 10,848,771$         14,997,363$         (4,148,592)$             
 

Total Direct Expenses 20,322,610$         24,633,133$         (4,310,523)$             
 

Indirect Expenses              4,319,919              3,833,280                    486,639 12.70% Allocation of indirect costs is  based on FTE and expenditures in overhead functions.  

 

Other Non-Operating Expenses 2,938,196$           2,966,207$           (28,011)$                  -0.94%

 

Change in Assets (3,531,148)$          3,549,694$           (7,080,843)$             

Fixed Assets
Depreciation             (1,854,611)                (1,854,611)   Depreciation was not budgeted in 2010. 

Computer & Software CapEx              1,206,634              1,893,145                   (686,512) -36.26%

Furniture & Fixtures CapEx                  (96,488)                     (96,488)  

Equipment CapEx                           -                                -    
Leasehold Improvements                 578,106              1,537,667                   (959,561) -62.40%

Change in Fixed Assets 166,360$              (3,430,812)$          3,597,172$              

Allocation of Fixed Assets                (397,805)                (118,882)                   (278,923) 234.62% Allocation of assets is based on FTE and expenditures in overhead functions.  

Change in Fixed Assets (231,446)$             (3,549,694)$          3,318,248$              

TOTAL CHANGE IN ASSETS (3,762,594)$          0$                        (3,762,594)$             

 FTEs                               68.0                               62.6                                     5.4 

Grant funding is received as a reimbursement for costs incurred on grant activities.  WECC did not 

incur as many costs as anticipated.  These costs will be incurred in 2011 - 2012.

 Costs associated with the build out of the RC were lower than anticipated due to the ramp-up of grant 

activities.  These costs will be incurred in 2011 and will be reimbursed with grant funds. 

A review of WECC's fixed assets revealed certain assets that did not fit WECC's definition of a fixed 

asset, therefore they were written off.



WESTERN ELECTRICITY COORDINATING COUNCIL
2010 Statement of Activities Summary

Committee and Member Forums

(In Whole Dollars)

 2010 Actual  2010 Budget  2010 Variance Comments - Explain variances that are +/- 10%
Funding

ERO Funding
ERO Assessments  $                            -  

Penalty Sanctions                              -    

Total ERO Funding -$                         -$                         -$                             

   Membership Fees & Non-Stat                              -    

   Grant Funding                     2,700                 122,400                   (119,700) -97.79%

   Services & Software                              -    

 Workshops                              -   
   Interest                              -    

   Miscellaneous                              -    

Total Funding 2,700$                  122,400$              (119,700)$                

Expenses
   Personnel Expenses
      Salaries                 832,430                 738,970                      93,460 12.65% Salaries are higher than anticipated due to increased FTE resulting from hiring new positions as earlier 

than anticipated and salary adjustments in existing positions.

      Payroll Taxes                   50,603                   66,507                     (15,904) -23.91% Payroll taxes were estimated at an amount higher than actual results

      Employee Benefits                   83,071                   84,655                       (1,584) -1.87%

      Savings & Retirement                   51,220                   51,728                          (508) -0.98%

Total Personnel Expenses 1,017,324$           941,861$              75,463$                   

   Meeting Expenses
      Meetings                 351,191                 380,220                     (29,029) -7.63%

      Travel                 194,005                 255,900                     (61,895) -24.19% Travel costs were lower than anticipated due to increased utilization of conference calls and the Salt 

Lake meeting facilities.

      Conference Calls                   32,548                   30,900                        1,648 5.33%

Total Meeting Expenses 577,744$              667,020$              (89,276)$                  

   Operating Expenses
      Consultants & Contracts                   70,276                 152,480                     (82,204) -53.91% Costs associated with consulting on the VGS grant were not incurred due to a slower than anticipated 

ramp-up of grant activities

      Office Rent                           -                             -                                -    

      Office Costs                 115,805                 108,500                        7,305 6.73%

      Professional Services                 506,107                 395,000                    111,107 28.13% Legal costs associated with the Governance and Nominating Committee review of WECC's bylaws 

were higher than anticipated

      Miscellaneous                           -                             -                                -    

      Depreciation                           -                                -    

Total Operating Expenses 692,188$              655,980$              36,208$                   

Total Direct Expenses 2,287,256$           2,264,861$           22,395$                   

Indirect Expenses             (2,284,556)             (2,142,461)                   (142,095)

Other Non-Operating Expenses -$                             

Change in Assets -$                         0$                        (0)$                           

Fixed Assets
Depreciation                              -    
Computer & Software CapEx                  (48,000)                   50,000                     (98,000) -196.00%

Furniture & Fixtures CapEx                              -    
Equipment CapEx                              -    
Leasehold Improvements                              -    

Change in Fixed Assets 48,000$                (50,000)$               98,000$                   

Allocation of Fixed Assets                  (48,000)                   50,000                     (98,000)

Change in Fixed Assets -$                         -$                         -$                             

TOTAL CHANGE IN ASSETS -$                         0$                        (0)$                           

 FTEs                                 7.5                                 7.0                                     0.5 

Grant funding is received as a reimbursement for costs incurred on grant activities.  WECC did not 

incur as many costs for the VGS grant as anticipated.  These costs will be incurred in 2011 - 2012.

A review of WECC's fixed assets revealed certain assets that did not fit WECC's definition of a fixed 

asset, therefore they were written off. 



WESTERN ELECTRICITY COORDINATING COUNCIL
2010 Statement of Activities Summary

General and Administrative

(In Whole Dollars)

 2010 Actual  2010 Budget  2010 Variance Comments - Explain variances that are +/- 10%
Funding

ERO Funding
ERO Assessments  $           1,214,395  $           1,214,395  $                             - 0.00%

Penalty Sanctions                               -    

Total ERO Funding 1,214,395$            1,214,395$            -$                              

   Membership Fees & Non-Stat                               -    

   Grant Funding                               -    

   Services & Software                               -    

 Workshops                               -   
   Interest                  276,680                     276,680  Interest income was not budgeted in 2010.

   Miscellaneous                    12,285                    11,000                         1,285 11.68% In accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, WECC adjusts its investment 
account balances to fair market value.  These adjustments result in unrealized gains or losses 
that roll into Miscellaneous funding.

Total Funding 1,503,360$            1,225,395$            277,965$                  

Expenses
   Personnel Expenses
      Salaries               1,438,943               1,701,761                    (262,818) -15.44% Salaries are under budget due to vacancies in budgeted positions.

      Payroll Taxes                    70,476                  118,058                      (47,582) -40.30% Payroll taxes were estimated at an amount higher than actual results

      Employee Benefits                  518,145                  778,033                    (259,888) -33.40% Employee benefits fluctuate with salaries

      Savings & Retirement                  106,179                  113,003                        (6,824) -6.04% Retirement costs fluctuate with salaries.

Total Personnel Expenses 2,133,743$            2,710,856$            (577,113)$                 

   Meeting Expenses
      Meetings                    14,085                    15,000                           (915) -6.10%

      Travel                  152,904                  313,100                    (160,196) -51.16% Travel among WECC's three locations and executive travel to regional and national meeting 
was lower than anticipated.

      Conference Calls                      6,179                      6,000                            179 2.98%

Total Meeting Expenses 173,168$               334,100$               (160,932)$                 

   Operating Expenses
      Consultants & Contracts                    49,425                    32,000                       17,425 54.45% Consulting is higher than budgeted due to WECC's annual Measures of Success Survey which 

was not budgeted in 2010

      Office Rent                  993,498                  985,000                         8,498 0.86%

      Office Costs                    31,826                  269,675                    (237,849) -88.20% Office costs were lower than budgeted due to more efficient use of express shipping and other 
office services.   Additionally, a review of WECC's fixed assets revealed certain assets that did 
not fit WECC's definition of fixed assets, therefore they were written off.

      Professional Services                  471,727                  172,780                     298,947 173.02% Professional Services are higher than budgeted due to the purchase of an E&O insurance 
policy that was not budgeted.

      Miscellaneous                            -                              -                                 -    

      Depreciation                  653,672                            -                       653,672  Depreciation was not budgeted in 2010

Total Operating Expenses 2,200,148$            1,459,455$            740,693$                  

Total Direct Expenses 4,507,059$            4,504,411$            2,648$                      

Indirect Expenses              (4,218,094)              (4,493,411)                     275,317  Allocation of indirect costs is based on FTE in the functional activities. 

Other Non-Operating Expenses -$                              

Change in Assets 1,214,395$            1,214,395$            (0)$                            

Fixed Assets
Depreciation                 (653,672)                    (653,672)   Depreciation was not budgeted in 2010 

Computer & Software CapEx                            -                                 -    
Furniture & Fixtures CapEx                  376,834                     376,834   Costs associated with the move to the new Salt Lake office facility that were not budgeted. 

Equipment CapEx                               -    
Leasehold Improvements               1,078,554                  1,078,554   Leasehold improvements for the Salt Lake office facility were not budgeted. 

Change in Fixed Assets (801,716)$             -$                          (801,716)$                 

Allocation of Fixed Assets                  801,716                     801,716  Allocation of fixed assets is based on FTE in the functional activities 

Change in Fixed Assets -$                          -$                          -$                              

TOTAL CHANGE IN ASSETS 1,214,395$            1,214,395$            (0)$                            

 FTEs                                13.3                                15.0                                     (1.7)



WESTERN ELECTRICITY COORDINATING COUNCIL
2010 Statement of Activities Summary

Legal and Regulatory

(In Whole Dollars)

 2010 Actual  2010 Budget  2010 Variance Comments - Explain variances that are +/- 10%
Funding

ERO Funding
ERO Assessments  $                            -  

Penalty Sanctions                              -    

Total ERO Funding -$                         -$                         -$                             

   Membership Fees & Non-Stat                              -    

   Grant Funding                              -    

   Services & Software                              -    

 Workshops                              -   
   Interest                              -    

   Miscellaneous                              -    

Total Funding -$                         -$                         -$                             

Expenses
   Personnel Expenses
      Salaries                 776,090                 858,707                     (82,617) -9.62% Salaries are lower than budgeted due to vacancies and positions being filled as levels lower than 

anticipated.

      Payroll Taxes                   56,070                   77,284                     (21,214) -27.45% Payroll taxes were estimated at an amount higher than actual results

      Employee Benefits                   63,365                 100,640                     (37,275) -37.04% Employee benefits fluctuate with salaries

      Savings & Retirement                   41,958                   60,109                     (18,151) -30.20% Retirement costs fluctuate with salaries

Total Personnel Expenses 937,483$              1,096,740$           (159,257)$                

   Meeting Expenses
      Meetings                           -                       8,000                       (8,000) -100.00% Meeting cots were not incurred.

      Travel                   61,422                   86,000                     (24,578) -28.58% Travel is lower than anticipated due to less travel between WECC locations.

      Conference Calls                     1,049                   10,000                       (8,951) -89.51% Conference call costs were less than anticipated.

Total Meeting Expenses 62,471$                104,000$              (41,529)$                  

   Operating Expenses
      Consultants & Contracts                        168                           -                             168  

      Office Rent                        262                           -                             262  

      Office Costs                   43,030                   89,920                     (46,890) -52.15% License fees and membership dues were lower than anticipated.

      Professional Services                 133,341                 275,000                   (141,659) -51.51% Higher utilization of in-house legal counsel has resulted in professional costs being under budget.

      Miscellaneous                     1,000                           -                          1,000  

      Depreciation                           -                             -                                -    

Total Operating Expenses 177,801$              364,920$              (187,119)$                -51.28%

 

Total Direct Expenses 1,177,755$           1,565,660$           (387,905)$                -24.78%

 

Indirect Expenses             (1,177,755)             (1,565,660)                    387,905 -24.78% Indirect costs are allocated based on FTE in functional activities.

 

Other Non-Operating Expenses -$                              

 

Change in Assets -$                         -$                         -$                             

Fixed Assets
Depreciation                              -    
Computer & Software CapEx                              -    
Furniture & Fixtures CapEx                              -    
Equipment CapEx                              -    
Leasehold Improvements                              -    

Change in Fixed Assets -$                         -$                         -$                             

Allocation of Fixed Assets                              -   

Change in Fixed Assets -$                         -$                         -$                             

TOTAL CHANGE IN ASSETS -$                         -$                         -$                             

 FTEs                                8.0                                8.0                                      -   



WESTERN ELECTRICITY COORDINATING COUNCIL
2010 Statement of Activities Summary

Information Technology
(In Whole Dollars)

 2010 Actual  2010 Budget  2010 Variance Comments - Explain variances that are +/- 10%
Funding

ERO Funding
ERO Assessments  $                             -  

Penalty Sanctions                               -    

Total ERO Funding -$                          -$                          -$                              

   Membership Fees & Non-Stat                               -    

   Grant Funding                               -    

   Services & Software                               -    

 Workshops                               -   
   Interest                               -    

   Miscellaneous                               -    

Total Funding -$                          -$                          -$                              

Expenses
   Personnel Expenses
      Salaries                  288,633                  323,439                      (34,806) -10.76% Salaries are under budget due to vacancies in budgeted positions.

      Payroll Taxes                    22,079                    29,110                        (7,031) -24.15% Payroll taxes were estimated at an amount higher than actual results

      Employee Benefits                    51,307                    36,242                       15,065 41.57% Increased training needs has resulting in higher than anticipated costs.

      Savings & Retirement                    15,624                    22,641                        (7,017) -30.99% Retirement costs fluctuate with salaries.

Total Personnel Expenses 377,643$              411,432$              (33,789)$                   

   Meeting Expenses
      Meetings                         465                           -                              465  

      Travel                      4,437                           -                           4,437  Meeting and travel costs were not budgeted.

      Conference Calls                      4,389                           -                           4,389  Conference call costs were not budgeted.

Total Meeting Expenses 9,291$                  -$                          9,291$                      

   Operating Expenses
      Consultants & Contracts                    24,599                    30,000                        (5,401) -18.00% In-house computer expertise was utilized at a higher rate than anticipated.

      Office Rent                           -                             -                                 -    

      Office Costs                  840,864                  504,800                     336,064 66.57% Software licensing costs and small equipment purchases were higher than anticipated.

      Professional Services                           -                             -                                 -    

      Miscellaneous                           -                             -                                 -    

      Depreciation                  111,305                           -                       111,305  Depreciation was not budgeted in 2010.

Total Operating Expenses 976,768$              534,800$              441,968$                  

Total Direct Expenses 1,363,702$           946,232$              417,470$                  

Indirect Expenses             (1,363,702)                (946,232)                    (417,470) 44.12%  Allocation of indirect costs is based on FTE in the functional activities. 

Other Non-Operating Expenses -$                              

Change in Assets -$                          -$                          -$                              

Fixed Assets
Depreciation                (111,305)                    (111,305)  Depreciation was not budgeted in 2010.

Computer & Software CapEx                  138,541                  220,000                      (81,460) -37.03%

Furniture & Fixtures CapEx                           -                                 -    
Equipment CapEx                               -    
Leasehold Improvements                    18,000                       18,000  

Change in Fixed Assets (45,236)$               (220,000)$             174,765$                  

Allocation of Fixed Assets                    45,236                  220,000                    (174,765) -79.44%  Fixed assets are allocated based on FTE. 

Change in Fixed Assets -$                          -$                          -$                              

TOTAL CHANGE IN ASSETS -$                          -$                          -$                              

 FTEs                                 3.0                                 3.7                                    (0.7)

 A review of WECC's fixed assets revealed certain assets that did not fit WECC's definition of a fixed 
asset, therefore they were written off. 



WESTERN ELECTRICITY COORDINATING COUNCIL
2010 Statement of Activities Summary

Human Resources
(In Whole Dollars)

 2010 Actual  2010 Budget  2010 Variance Comments - Explain variances that are +/- 10%
Funding

ERO Funding
ERO Assessments  $                            -  

Penalty Sanctions                              -    

Total ERO Funding -$                          -$                          -$                             

   Membership Fees & Non-Stat                              -    

   Grant Funding                              -    

   Services & Software                              -    

 Workshops                              -   
   Interest                              -    

   Miscellaneous                              -    

Total Funding -$                          -$                          -$                             

Expenses
   Personnel Expenses
      Salaries                 278,088                 295,883                     (17,795) -6.01%

      Payroll Taxes                   20,033                   26,629                       (6,596) -24.77% Payroll taxes were estimated at an amount higher than actual results

      Employee Benefits                 120,586                   36,866                       83,720 227.09% WECC implemented a tuition reimbursement program that was not budgeted.  Also, other training 
sessions were provided and were not budgeted.

      Savings & Retirement                   24,149                   20,712                         3,437 16.59% Retirement plan administration fees were higher than anticipated.

Total Personnel Expenses 442,856$              380,090$              62,766$                   

   Meeting Expenses
      Meetings                        712                            712  

      Travel                   15,067                     8,000                         7,067 88.34% Travel for new employee orientation was higher than anticipated.

      Conference Calls                        343                            343  

Total Meeting Expenses 16,122$                8,000$                  8,122$                     

   Operating Expenses
      Consultants & Contracts                   18,000                   10,000                         8,000 80.00% WECC's compensation survey costs were higher than anticipated.

      Office Rent                           -                             -                                -    

      Office Costs                   54,322                   75,730                     (21,408) -28.27% Costs associated with dues and memberships were lower than anticipated.

      Professional Services                   11,568                           -                         11,568  

      Miscellaneous                           -                             -                                -    

      Depreciation                           -                             -                                -    

Total Operating Expenses 83,890$                85,730$                (1,840)$                    

Total Direct Expenses 542,868$              473,820$              69,048$                   

Indirect Expenses                (542,868)                (473,820)                     (69,048) 14.57% Indirect costs are allocated based on FTE.

Other Non-Operating Expenses -$                             

Change in Assets -$                          -$                          -$                             

Fixed Assets
Depreciation                              -    
Computer & Software CapEx                              -    
Furniture & Fixtures CapEx                              -    
Equipment CapEx                              -    
Leasehold Improvements                              -    

Change in Fixed Assets -$                          -$                          -$                             

Allocation of Fixed Assets                              -   

Change in Fixed Assets -$                          -$                          -$                             

TOTAL CHANGE IN ASSETS -$                          -$                          -$                             

 FTEs                                 3.0                                 3.0                                      -   



WESTERN ELECTRICITY COORDINATING COUNCIL
2010 Statement of Activities Summary

Accounting and Finance
(In Whole Dollars)

 2010 Actual  2010 Budget  2010 Variance Comments - Explain variances that are +/- 10%
Funding

ERO Funding
ERO Assessments  $                            -  

Penalty Sanctions                              -    

Total ERO Funding -$                         -$                         -$                             

   Membership Fees & Non-Stat                           -                                -    

   Grant Funding                              -    

   Services & Software                              -    

 Workshops                              -   
   Interest                              -    

   Miscellaneous                              -    

Total Funding -$                         -$                         -$                             

Expenses
   Personnel Expenses
      Salaries                 286,530                 263,735                      22,795 8.64%

      Payroll Taxes                   21,275                   23,736                       (2,461) -10.37% Payroll taxes were estimated at an amount higher than actual results

      Employee Benefits                   35,841                   33,406                        2,435 7.29%

      Savings & Retirement                   17,686                   18,461                          (775) -4.20% Retirement costs are under budget due to lower than anticipated employee participation in the 401(k) 

Total Personnel Expenses 361,332$              339,339$              21,993$                   

   Meeting Expenses
      Meetings                           -                             -                                -    

      Travel                     6,517                     2,500                        4,017 160.68% Increased travel among WECC locations resulted in higher travel costs.

      Conference Calls                        604                           -                             604  

Total Meeting Expenses 7,121$                  2,500$                  4,621$                     

   Operating Expenses
      Consultants & Contracts                   28,925                           -                        28,925  Consulting services related to Washington State income tax research were not budgeted.

      Office Rent                           -                             -                                -    

      Office Costs                   50,911                     7,020                      43,891 625.23% Costs associated with payroll services, software licenses were higher than anticipated.  Also, new 
equipment was purchased to track fixed assets.

      Professional Services                     9,447                   26,500                     (17,053) -64.35% Costs associated with WECC's 2010 annual audit were paid in 2011.

      Miscellaneous                           -                             -                                -    

      Depreciation                     1,820                           -                          1,820  

Total Operating Expenses 91,103$                33,520$                57,583$                   

Total Direct Expenses 459,556$              375,359$              84,197$                   

Indirect Expenses                (459,556)                (375,359)                     (84,197) 22.43% Indirect costs are allocated to functional activities based on FTE.

Other Non-Operating Expenses -$                             

Change in Assets -$                         0$                        (0)$                           

Fixed Assets
Depreciation                    (1,820)                           -                         (1,820)  

Computer & Software CapEx                   13,104                      13,104   Purchase of a fixed asset tracking system was not budgeted. 

Furniture & Fixtures CapEx                              -    
Equipment CapEx                              -    
Leasehold Improvements                              -    

Change in Fixed Assets (11,284)$               -$                         (11,284)$                  

Allocation of Fixed Assets                   11,284                      11,284 

Change in Fixed Assets -$                         -$                         -$                             

TOTAL CHANGE IN ASSETS -$                         0$                        (0)$                           

 FTEs                                4.0                                3.0                                    1.0 



WESTERN ELECTRICITY COORDINATING COUNCIL
2010 Statement of Activities Summary

Non-Statutory
(In Whole Dollars)

 2010 Actual  2010 Budget  2010 Variance 
Funding

ERO Funding
ERO Assessments  $                            - 

Penalty Sanctions                              -   

Total ERO Funding -$                         -$                         -$                             

   Membership Fees & Non-Stat              1,035,810              1,087,943                     (52,133)

   Grant Funding                           -                             -                                -   

   Services & Software                     4,605                           -                          4,605 

 Workshops                           -                       8,800                       (8,800)

   Interest                              -   

   Miscellaneous                        160 

Total Funding 1,040,575$           1,096,743$           (56,328)$                  

Expenses
   Personnel Expenses
      Salaries                 238,315                 350,047                   (111,732)

      Payroll Taxes                   17,698                   31,504                     (13,806)

      Employee Benefits                   26,749                   50,882                     (24,133)

      Savings & Retirement                   14,736                   24,503                       (9,767)

Total Personnel Expenses 297,498$              456,936$              (159,438)$                

   Meeting Expenses
      Meetings                     3,491                   19,943                     (16,452)

      Travel                   10,784                   34,872                     (24,088)

      Conference Calls                           -                          500                          (500)

Total Meeting Expenses 14,275$                55,315$                (41,040)$                  

   Operating Expenses
      Consultants & Contracts                     7,768                   87,041                     (79,273)

      Office Rent                           -                             -                                -   
      Office Costs                 161,181                   70,259                      90,922 

      Professional Services                   31,280                   63,017                     (31,737)

      Miscellaneous                     1,081                           -                          1,081 

      Depreciation                           -                             -                                -   

Total Operating Expenses 201,310$              220,317$              (19,007)$                  

Total Direct Expenses 513,083$              732,568$              (219,485)$                

Indirect Expenses                 307,469                 364,175                     (56,706)

Other Non-Operating Expenses -$                             

Change in Assets 220,023$              -$                         219,863$                 

Fixed Assets
Depreciation                              -   
Computer & Software CapEx                              -   
Furniture & Fixtures CapEx                              -   
Equipment CapEx                              -   
Leasehold Improvements                              -   

Change in Fixed Assets -$                         -$                         -$                             

Allocation of Fixed Assets

Change in Fixed Assets -$                         -$                         -$                             

TOTAL CHANGE IN ASSETS 220,023$              -$                         219,863$                 

 FTEs                                 4.0                                 5.0                                    (1.0)



 

 
 

Western Electricity Coordinating Council 
Financial Statements and Single Audit Reports 

As of December 31, 2010 and 2009 and For the Years Then Ended 
Together with Independent Auditors’ Report   



 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
 
 
Members of the Board of Directors 
Western Electricity Coordinating Council 
 
 
We have audited the accompanying statements of financial position of Western 
Electricity Coordinating Council (WECC) as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the 
related statements of activities and cash flows for the years then ended. These 
financial statements are the responsibility of WECC's management. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our 
audits. 
 
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of internal control over 
financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of WECC’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we 
express no such opinion. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also 
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We 
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of Western Electricity Coordinating Council as of 
December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows 
for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America. 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report 
dated April 27, 2011, on our consideration of WECC's internal control over financial 
reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to 
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report 
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audits. 
 



 
Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial 
statements of WECC taken as a whole. The accompanying Schedule of 
Expenditures of Federal Awards of WECC for the year ended December 31, 2010 is 
presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the U.S. Office of 
Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and 
Non-Profit Organizations, and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. 
The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is the responsibility of 
management and was derived from, and relates directly to, the underlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The Schedule of 
Expenditures of Federal Awards has been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audits of the basic financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or 
to the financial statements themselves and other additional procedures, in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the 
financial statements taken as a whole. 
 
 
 
 
April 27, 2011



WESTERN ELECTRICITY COORDINATING COUNCIL 

 
 
See accompanying notes to financial statements                1 

Statements of Financial Position 
(in thousands) 

 
As of December 31 

 
 
 

2010 2009

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 38,936$          34,868$          
Restricted cash and cash equivalents -                 2,500              
Investments 4,220              2,418              
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for

doubtful accounts of $37 and $38, respectively 3,585              668                 
Prepaid expenses and other assets 373                 110                 
Property, equipment, and software, net 6,520              6,839              

Total assets 53,634$         47,403$         

Liabilities and Net Assets

Line of credit -$               2,926$            
Accounts payable 6,592              4,485              
Accrued liabilities 2,575              1,535              
Deferred revenue 23,967            24,420            
Other liabilities 2,709              231                 

Total liabilities 35,843            33,597            

Commitments and contingencies

Unrestricted net assets 17,791            13,806            

Total liabilities and net assets 53,634$         47,403$         



WESTERN ELECTRICITY COORDINATING COUNCIL 

 
 
See accompanying notes to financial statements                2 

Statements of Activities 
(in thousands) 

 
For the Years Ended December 31 

 
 
 

2010 2009

Change in unrestricted net assets:
Revenues and other income:

Assessments 39,132$          37,088$         
Meetings and workshops 919                832                
Western Renewable Energy Generation

Information System (WREGIS) 1,036             765                
Federal grants 6,268             417                
Interest 277                382                
Other 12                  7                    

Total unrestricted revenues and 
other income 47,644           39,491           

Expenses:
Labor 22,591           19,140           
Office and equipment 5,823             3,589             
Depreciation and amortization 2,771             2,835             
Contract labor and consultants 7,967             2,672             
Meetings 2,467             2,504             
Professional services 1,398             1,613             
Excise taxes (133)              140                
Interest 12                  86                  
Other expenses 763                -                

Total expenses 43,659           32,579           

Increase in unrestricted net assets 3,985             6,912             

Unrestricted net assets, beginning of year 13,806           6,894             

Unrestricted net assets, end of year 17,791$          13,806$         



WESTERN ELECTRICITY COORDINATING COUNCIL 

 
 
See accompanying notes to financial statements                3 

Statements of Cash Flows 
(in thousands) 

 
For the Years Ended December 31 

 
 
 

2010 2009

Cash flows from operating activities:
Increase in net assets 3,985$            6,912$           
Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets to
  net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 2,771             2,835             
Loss on disposals of fixed assets 333                -                
Decrease (increase) in assets:

Accounts receivable (2,917)            (186)              
Prepaid expenses and other assets (263)              413                

Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable 2,107             1,529             
Accrued liabilities 1,040             193                
Deferred revenue (453)              10,504           
Other liabilities 2,478             150                

Net cash provided by operating activities 9,081             22,350           

Cash flows from investing activities:
Net change in investments (1,802)            (1,106)            
Purchase of property, equipment, and software (2,785)            (2,061)            
Change in restricted cash and cash equivalents 2,500             -                

Net cash used in investing activities (2,087)            (3,167)            

Cash flows from financing activities:
Net payments on line of credit (2,926)            (2,926)            

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 4,068             16,257           

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 34,868          18,611           

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 38,936$         34,868$         

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Interest paid 17$                 86$                
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Notes to Financial Statements 
 

December 31, 2010 and 2009 
 
 
 

1. Summary of 
 Significant 
 Accounting 
 Policies 

 Nature of Activities 
Western Electricity Coordinating Council (WECC) is a not-for-profit 
organization whose primary mission is to assure a reliable bulk electric power 
system in the Western Interconnection that supports efficient and competitive 
electric power markets. A substantial portion of its revenue comes from 
assessments collected from member organizations. As such, WECC is 
involved in significant related-party transactions as a result of its normal 
activities. 
 

  Financial Statement Presentation 
WECC reports information regarding its financial position and activities 
according to three classes of net assets, as applicable:  unrestricted net 
assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently restricted net 
assets. As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, WECC had only unrestricted net 
assets. 
 

  Use of Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities as of the date of the financial statements 
and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting 
period. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 

  Concentration of Credit Risk 
WECC maintains its cash, cash equivalents, and certain investments in bank 
deposit accounts which, at times, exceed federally insured limits. As of 
December 31, 2010, WECC had $43.1 million of cash, cash equivalents, and 
investments that exceeded federally insured limits. To date, WECC has not
experienced a loss or lack of access to its cash, cash equivalents, and 
investments; however, no assurance can be provided that these instruments 
will not be impacted by adverse conditions in the financial markets. 
 

  Cash and Cash Equivalents 
WECC considers all highly liquid investments purchased with remaining 
maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents. 
 

  Investments 
Investments in marketable securities with readily determinable fair values 
and all investments in debt securities are reported at their fair values in the 
statements of financial position. Unrealized gains and losses are included in 
the change in net assets.   
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1. Summary of 
 Significant 
 Accounting 
 Policies 
 Continued 

 Accounts Receivable 
Accounts receivable consists of assessments for operations (including 
membership assessments and services) and grant receivables that have not 
been collected. Accounts receivable are carried at original invoice amount 
less an estimate made for doubtful receivables based on a review of all 
outstanding amounts on a monthly basis. Management determines the 
allowance for doubtful accounts by identifying troubled accounts and by using 
historical experience applied to an aging of accounts. Accounts receivable 
are written off when deemed uncollectible. Recoveries of accounts receivable 
previously written off are recorded when received. 
 

  Property, Equipment, and Software 
Property, equipment, and software are capitalized at cost and are
depreciated using the straight-line method over the shorter of the respective 
lease terms or the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows: 
   

Equipment and software   3 years 
Furniture and fixtures   5 years 
Leasehold improvements   10 years 

  
  Minor replacements, maintenance, and repairs, which do not increase the 

useful lives of the property, equipment, and software, are expensed as 
incurred.   
 

  Impairment of Long-Lived Assets 
WECC reviews its long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or 
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets
may be impaired. If it is determined that the estimated undiscounted future 
cash flows are not sufficient to recover the carrying value of an asset, an 
impairment loss is recognized in the statement of activities for the difference 
between the carrying value and the fair value of the asset. 
 

  Revenue Recognition 
Annual assessments are recognized as revenue in the period for which they 
have been assessed. WECC generally receives assessment payments in 
advance of the assessment period, for which it records the cash collected as 
deferred revenue and then recognizes the revenue during the related 
assessment period. Federal grant revenue is generated through performance 
of services in accordance with federal award agreements on a cost-
reimbursement basis. Other types of revenues are recognized when the 
services or products have been provided.  
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1. Summary of 
 Significant 
 Accounting 
 Policies 
 Continued 

 Income Taxes 
WECC has been recognized by the Internal Revenue Service as a not-for-
profit corporation as described in Section 501(c)(6) of the Internal Revenue 
Code and, as such, is not subject to federal or state income taxes on exempt 
purpose income. WECC is subject to excise taxes on revenue generated in 
the state of Washington (see Note 8), and is subject to taxation on any 
unrelated business income.    
 

  Subsequent Events 
WECC has evaluated events occurring between the end of its most recent 
fiscal year and the date of the independent auditors’ report, which is the date 
the financial statements were available for issue. 
 
 

2. Fair Value 
 Measurements 

 Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or 
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date. To increase the comparability of fair 
value measures, the following hierarchy prioritizes the inputs according to 
valuation methodologies used to measure fair value: 
 

  Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets that are accessible 
at the measurement date for assets or liabilities.  
     

Level 2: Unobservable prices that are based on inputs not quoted in 
active markets, but corroborated by market data. 
     

Level 3: Unobservable inputs that are used when little or not market data 
is available.  

 
  Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis are 

summarized as follows (in thousands): 
   

  Fair Value Measurements as of December 31, 2010
 Description Level 1 Level 2 Level 3  Total
          

 Cash and cash equivalents:      
   Cash $        12,921 $              - $             -  $        12,921 
   Money market funds         17,496                 -                -          17,496 
   Corporate bonds -              6,668               -  6,668 
   Government bonds - 1,755               -  1,755 
   Certificates of deposit - 96               -  96 
     $        30,417 $         8,519 $             -  $        38,936 
        

 Investments:       
   Certificates of deposit $              -       $          1,203  $            -       $         1,203 
   Government asset-backed securities -       1,572  -       1,572 
   Corporate bonds -       1,343  -       1,343 
   Foreign bonds -       102  -       102 
     $              -  $         4,220  $             -  $         4,220 
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2. Fair Value 
 Measurements 
 Continued 

  

  Fair Value Measurements as of December 31, 2009
 Description Level 1 Level 2 Level 3  Total
         
 Cash and cash equivalents:      
   Cash $         1,275 $              -      $             -       $          1,275 
   Money market funds         29,338                 -                     -               29,338 
   Corporate bonds                -         6,439               -  6,439 
   Certificates of deposit                - 276               -  276 
   Mutual funds 40 - -  40 
     $        30,653 $         6,715 $             -  $        37,368   
        
 Investments:       
   Certificates of deposit $              -       $         1,438 $             -       $          1,438 
   Government asset-backed securities -       581  -       581 
   Corporate bonds -                  399  -       399 
     $              -  $         2,418  $             -  $          2,418 

  
  

       

 

3. Investments  Investments are stated at fair value and consist of the following (in 
thousands): 
    

 As of December 31, 2010 
  

Cost 
Market 
Value  

Unrealized 
gain (loss)

  
Certificates of deposit $ 1,204 $ 1,203  $ (1)
Government asset- 
   backed securities 

  
1,568 

  
1,572 

  
4  

Corporate bonds 1,342  1,343  1 
Foreign bonds 101  102  1 

      
 $ 4,215 $ 4,220  $ 5 

   
 As of December 31, 2009 
  

Cost 
Market 
Value  

Unrealized 
gain (loss)

  
Certificates of deposit $ 1,436 $ 1,438  $ 2 
Government asset- 
   backed securities 

 
586 

  
581 

 
(5)

Corporate bonds 393  399  6 
      
 $ 2,415 $ 2,418  $ 3 
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4. Property, 
Equipment, 
and Software 

 Property, equipment, and software consist of the following as of
December 31 (in thousands): 
    

 2010  2009 
  

Equipment $ 5,738  $ 5,811 
Software 4,234  4,566 
Leasehold improvements 3,464  1,863 
Furniture and fixtures 682  370 
    
 14,118  12,610 
    
Less accumulated depreciation and  
  amortization 

 
(7,598) 

 
(5,771)

    
 $ 6,520  $ 6,839 
    
Depreciation Expense $ 2,771  2,835 

 
All equipment purchased with grant funds are secured by a lien on said 
equipment. 
 
 

5. Line of Credit   During 2008, WECC entered into a revolving line of credit arrangement with a 
financial institution that had a borrowing limit of $6.0 million. During 2009, the 
limit was reduced to $3.0 million. As of December 31, 2009, the outstanding 
balance on the line of credit was approximately $2.9 million. The line of credit 
bore interest at an annual rate equal to the prime rate less 0.75%. The line of 
credit matured March 1, 2010 and the balance was paid off at that time ($0 
balance as of December 31, 2010). In accordance with the line of credit 
arrangement, WECC was required to maintain a minimum balance of cash or 
investments at the institution, which served as collateral against advances 
taken under the line of credit. Restricted cash and investments pertaining to 
this agreement as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 were $0 and $2.5 million,
respectively.   
 
 

6. Accounts 
Payable 

 Accounts payable consist of the following as of December 31 (in 
thousands): 
    

 2010  2009 
  

Assessment payables $ 4,367  $        3,466 
Trade payables 2,225  1,019 
    
 $ 6,592  $ 4,485 
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7. Unrestricted 
Net Assets 

 WECC reports information regarding statutory and non-statutory related 
earnings to the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission in accordance with 
its Delegation Agreement dated October 16, 2007. As of December 31, the 
breakdown of such earnings included in unrestricted net assets consist of 
the following (in thousands): 
    

 2010  2009 
  

Non-statutory earnings $ 6,392  $ 6,114 
Statutory earnings 11,399  7,692 
    

 $ 17,791  $ 13,806 

     
   

8. Commitments 
and 
Contingencies

 Operating Lease Commitments 
WECC has entered into non-cancelable operating leases for office space 
and office equipment. Future minimum lease payments under non-
cancelable operating leases with terms of one year or more are as follows
(in thousands): 
 

Years Ending December 31:   Amount 
   

     2011   $ 1,599 
     2012   1,653 
     2013   1,610 
     2014   1,443 
     2015   1,279 
     Thereafter   5,755 

    
   $ 13,339 

      
  Total rent expense under non-cancelable operating leases was 

approximately $1.5 million and $0.9 million for the years ended 
December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. 
   

  Litigation and Claims 
The Company is subject to claims and legal proceedings that
arise in the ordinary course of its business activities. WECC records a
liability when management believes that it is both probable that a liability 
has been incurred and the loss can be reasonably estimated. WECC has 
accrued an expense of $450 thousand for a contingency that meets that 
criteria, which is included in accrued expenses in the statement of financial 
position and other expenses in the statement of activity as of and for the 
year ended December 31, 2010. 
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8. Commitments 
and 

 Contingencies
 Continued 

 Washington State Excise Tax 
In 2009, WECC was notified by the state of Washington that WECC was
subject to excise taxes on revenue generated in Washington, for which 
WECC accrued an amount equal to $140 thousand as of December 31, 
2009.  However, in 2010 WECC determined that it is not probable that it will 
owe the excise tax, and the $140 thousand accrual was reversed. 
 
 

  Other Operating Commitments 
WECC has entered into non-cancelable operating agreement for certain 
services and support relating to WECC’s operations. Future minimum 
payments under non-cancelable operating agreements with terms of one 
year or more are as follows (in thousands): 
 

Years Ending December 31:   Amount
     

     2011   $ 310
     2012    310
     2013    258
     
   $ 878

 
 

9. Retirement 
 Plans 

 Employee Benefit Plan 
WECC has a 401(k) Retirement Savings Plan for eligible employees. The 
Plan requires WECC to make matching contributions equal to 50% of the 
first 6% of compensation eligible employees contribute to the plan. WECC
may also make, at its discretion, supplemental contributions for eligible 
employees. Retirement plan expense reflected in the accompanying 
statements of activities was $1.2 million and $1.0 million for the years 
ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. 
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Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010 

 
 
 
 

Federal Grantor / 
Program Title (Project Title) 

Contract 
Number 

Federal 
CFDA 

Number 
Federal 

Expenditures 

U.S. Department of Energy:  
       

ARRA – Electricity Delivery and Energy 
Reliability, Research, Development and 
Analysis (Western Interconnection 
Synchrophaser Program) DE-OE0000364 81.122 $ 6,330,217

  
     

ARRA – Electricity Delivery and Energy 
Reliability, Research, Development and 
Analysis (Resource Assessment and 
Interconnection-Level Transmission 
Analysis and Planning) DE-OE0000423 81.122  1,425,157

       

   Total 81.122   7,755,374
       

Renewable Energy Research and 
Development (Balancing Authority 
Cooperation Concepts to Reduce 
Variable Generation Integration Costs in 
the Western Interconnection) 

 
 

 DE-EE0001376 
 

81.087  2,700
       

   Total   $  7,758,074
 
Note 1 - Basis of Presentation 
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity 
of Western Electricity Coordinating Council (WECC) and is presented on the accrual basis of 
accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of 
OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. 
Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or 
used in, the preparation of the basic financial statements. 
 
Note 2 - Subrecipients 
Of the federal expenditures presented in the schedule, WECC provided federal awards to a 
subrecipient as follows: 
 

Federal 
CFDA 

Number Program Title 

Amount 
Provided to 

Subrecipient 

81.122 
ARRA- Electricity Delivery and Energy Reliability, Research, 

Development and Analysis $ 15,871
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 
 
Members of the Board of Directors 
Western Electricity Coordinating Council 
 
 
We have audited the financial statements of Western Electricity Coordinating Council 
(WECC) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2010, and have issued our 
report thereon dated April 27, 2011. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
In planning and performing our audit, we considered WECC’s internal control over 
financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of 
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of WECC’s internal control over financial 
reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of WECC’s 
internal control over financial reporting.  
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does 
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their 
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely 
basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected 
and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material 
weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited 
purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to 
identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that might be 
deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material 
weaknesses, as defined above. However, we identified certain deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that we consider to be significant deficiencies as described 
in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 10-1 and 
10-2.  
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Compliance and Other Matters 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether WECC’s financial 
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance 
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, 
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, 
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of 
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government 
Auditing Standards. 
 
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors, 
management, others within WECC, and federal awarding agencies, and is not 
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
 
 
 
 
April 27, 2011 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH 
REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM  

AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133 

 
 
 
Members of the Board of Directors 
Western Electricity Coordinating Council 
 
 
Compliance 
We have audited the compliance of Western Electricity Coordinating Council 
(WECC) with the types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of 
Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that are 
applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 
2010. WECC’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ 
results section of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. 
Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants 
applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of WECC’s 
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on WECC’s compliance 
based on our audit. 
 
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, 
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB 
Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal 
program occurred. The compliance audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence about WECC’s compliance with those requirements and performing such 
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that 
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a 
legal determination of WECC’s compliance with those requirements. 
 
In our opinion, WECC complied, in all material respects, with the requirements 
referred to above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the 
year ended December 31, 2010.  
 
Internal Control Over Compliance 
Management of WECC is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective 
internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, 
and grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing the 
compliance audit, we considered WECC’s internal control over compliance with the 
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program 
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in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our 
opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in 
accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do 
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of WECC’s internal control over 
compliance. 
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation 
of a control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the 
normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and 
correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program 
on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such 
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected, on a timely basis. 
 
Our consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose 
described in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all 
deficiencies in internal control that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or 
material weaknesses, and therefore, there can be no assurance that all such 
deficiencies have been identified. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined 
above. However, we consider the deficiency described in the accompanying 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs numbered 10-1 to be a significant 
deficiency in internal control over compliance. A significant deficiency in internal 
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program 
that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
WECC’s responses to the finding identified in our audit are described in the 
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. We did not audit 
WECC’s response and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response. 
 
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors, 
management, others within WECC, and federal awarding agencies, and is not 
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
 
 
 
 
April 27, 2011 
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Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2010 
 
 
 

Section I - Summary of Auditors’ Results 
 
Financial Statements 
 
Type of auditors’ report issued: Unqualified. 
 
Internal control over financial reporting: 
 
Material weakness(es) identified?           yes   X   no 
 
Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not  
  considered to be material weaknesses?     X   yes       none 
 
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?        yes   X   no 
 
Federal Awards 
 
Internal control over major programs: 
 
Material weakness(es) identified?          yes     X   no 
  
Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not  
  considered to be material weaknesses?     X   yes        none  
 
Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major programs:  Unqualified. 
 
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be 
  reported in accordance with section 510(a) of  
  Circular A-133?        X   yes        no 
 
Identification of major programs: 
 
CFDA Number  Name of Federal Program or Cluster 
 
81.122   ARRA – Electricity Delivery and Energy Reliability, 

Research, Development and Analysis 
 
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs:   $300,000 
 
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?            yes   X   no
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Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
Continued 

 

 
 
 
 

Section II – Financial Statement Findings 
 
Finding No. 10-1 – Unrecorded Liabilities 
 
Criteria: 

All expenses incurred in the reporting period and contingent losses where the loss is both 
probably and estimable should be recognized in the financial statements for that reporting 
period. 

 
Condition: 

Certain expenses and a contingent loss were not originally recorded.  
 
Effect: 

Expenses and accrued liabilities were understated. 
 
Recommendation: 

We recommend that a review of all accrued liabilities, including contingent liabilities, be 
performed on a periodic basis to ensure the completeness of expenses and accrued 
liabilities. 

 
Management’s Response: 

Western Electricity Coordinating Council (WECC) agrees that the contingent losses were not 
recognized on the financial statements in the proper reporting period.  WECC will perform 
periodic reviews of potential contingent losses and other liabilities to ensure the accurate 
recording of expenses and accrued liabilities.   

 
Finding No. 10-2 – Prepaid Expenses 
 
Criteria: 

Cash disbursements for assets which have economic value beyond the reporting period 
should be capitalized as prepaid assets and recognized over the useful life or contractual 
period. 

 
Condition: 

Certain disbursements were incorrectly recorded as expenses instead of prepaid expenses. 
 
Effect: 

This resulted in an overstatement of expenses and an understatement of assets. 
 
Recommendation: 

We recommend all purchases be evaluated for proper classification as an expense or asset. 
 
Management’s Response: 

WECC agrees that certain disbursements were incorrectly recorded as expenses instead of 
prepaid expenses in 2010.  WECC will more diligently evaluate its expenses to identify those 
transactions that should be recorded as prepaid expenses.   
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 Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
Continued 

 

 
 
 
 

Section III - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 
 
Finding No. 10-1 – Procurement Policy Deviation (related to CFDA number 81.122) 
 
Criteria: 

WECC has established a procurement policy. The purpose of establishing a procurement 
policy is that procurement procedures are performed in a consistent manner that complies 
with applicable regulations and standards. 

 
Condition: 

During the audit we noted one instance in which an executed contract did not include a 
monetary cap on allowable hours or services that could be performed. This appeared to result 
primarily from the lack of appropriate review of contracts prior to their execution.   

 
Effect: 

When this situation exists, the contractor may incur expenditures and provide services in 
excess of budget and project restraints. 

 
Recommendation: 

We recommend that all new contracts be reviewed to ensure that they are in accordance with 
WECC’s procurement policies prior to their execution.   

 
Management’s Response: 

Western Electricity Coordinating Council agrees that the contract in question does not have a 
cap as to allowable hours or services that could be performed. In response to the observation, 
it should be noted that the contract was entered into in March 2010 and the referenced 
policies were adopted and distributed in June 2010.  Further, as contracts are renewed, they 
are brought current with the existing policies that are currently in place. 

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 5 
 
 
 

METRICS CONCERNING ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS IN 
 

2010 NERC AND REGIONAL ENTITY 
 

BUDGETS AND ACTUAL COSTS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Analysis of Administrative (Indirect) Costs

2010 Actual and Budget

Total Statutory 

Expenses & Capital 

Expenditures

Total Statutory 

Direct Expenses & 

Capital 

Expenditures

Total Statutory 

Indirect Expenses & 

Capital 

Expenditures

% Statutory 

Indirect to Total 

Statutory

Statutory Direct 

Spend per Spend 

on Indirect

Total Statutory 

Expenses & 

Capital 

Expenditures

Total Statutory 

Direct Expenses & 

Capital 

Expenditures

Total Statutory 

Indirect 

Expenses & 

Capital 

Expenditures

% Statutory 

Indirect to Total 

Statutory

Statutory Direct 

Spend per Spend 

on Indirect

NERC 37,025,071$              25,310,117$              11,714,954$             31.64% 2.16$                        NERC 40,088,365$          27,191,767$          12,896,597$     32.17% 2.11$                       

FRCC 4,580,036                  3,843,429                  736,607                    16.08% 5.22                         FRCC 5,421,187$           4,641,724$             779,463$           14.38% 5.96                        

MRO 6,958,727                  4,435,756                  2,522,971                 36.26% 1.76                         MRO 7,366,118$           4,756,141$             2,609,977$        35.43% 1.82                        

NPCC 9,633,443                  7,970,601                  1,662,842                 17.26% 4.79                         NPCC 11,495,703$          9,217,101$             2,278,602$        19.82% 4.05                        

RFC 11,871,573                8,213,698                  3,657,875                 30.81% 2.25                         RFC 14,184,713$          10,046,753$          4,137,960$        29.17% 2.43                        

SERC 9,939,373                  6,378,607                  3,560,766                 35.82% 1.79                         SERC 10,511,509$          7,126,809$             3,384,700$        32.20% 2.11                        

SPP  6,843,894                  3,233,714                  3,610,180                 52.75% 0.90                         SPP  8,138,783$           4,305,423$             3,833,360$        47.10% 1.12                        

Texas RE 9,151,291                  4,139,205                  5,012,086                 54.77% 0.83                         Texas RE 9,216,395$           4,998,898$             4,217,497$        45.76% 1.19                        

WECC 46,248,940                35,407,977                10,840,963               23.44% 3.27                         WECC 59,220,284$          49,184,118$          10,036,166$     16.95% 4.90                        

TOTAL 142,252,348$           98,933,104$              43,319,244$             30.45% 2.28$                        TOTAL 165,643,057$        121,468,734$        44,174,322$     26.67% 2.75$                       

Total Statutory 

FTEs

Total Statutory 

Direct FTEs

Total Statutory 

Indirect FTEs

Indirect FTE as % 

of Total FTE

# Direct to Indirect 

Statutory FTEs

Total Statutory 

FTEs

Total Statutory 

Direct FTEs

Total Statutory 

Indirect FTEs

Indirect FTE as % 

of Total FTE

# Direct to Indirect 

Statutory FTEs

NERC 120.50                        89.50                          31.00                         25.73% 2.89                         NERC 131.50                   95.75                      35.75                 27.19% 2.68                        

FRCC 19.97                          15.84                          4.13                           20.68% 3.84                         FRCC 22.59                     18.62                      3.97                   17.57% 4.69                        

MRO 30.42                          23.52                          6.90                           22.68% 3.41                         MRO 29.00                     22.60                      6.40                   22.07% 3.53                        

NPCC 27.41                          21.00                          6.41                           23.39% 3.28                         NPCC 27.41                     21.00                      6.41                   23.39% 3.28                        

RFC 52.18                          41.91                          10.27                         19.68% 4.08                         RFC 58.00                     47.50                      10.50                 18.10% 4.52                        

SERC 47.50                          34.90                          12.60                         26.53% 2.77                         SERC 45.50                     33.90                      11.60                 25.49% 2.92                        

SPP  21.49                          18.49                          3.00                           13.96% 6.16                         SPP  24.25                     20.25                      4.00                   16.49% 5.06                        

Texas RE 39.50                          28.47                          11.03                         27.92% 2.58                         Texas RE 39.50                     30.24                      9.26                   23.44% 3.27                        

WECC 177.30                        138.50                        38.80                         21.88% 3.57                         WECC 181.90                   142.20                   39.70                 21.83% 3.58                        

TOTAL 536.27                        412.13                        124.14                       23.15% 3.32                         TOTAL 559.65                   432.06                   127.59              22.80% 3.39                        

Total Statutory

Total Statutory 

Direct

Total Statutory 

Indirect

Statutory Indirect 

Spend per Total 

FTE Total Statutory

Total Statutory 

Direct

Total Statutory 

Indirect

Statutory Indirect 

Spend per Total 

FTE

NERC 307,262$                   282,795$                   377,902$                  97,220$                  NERC 304,854$               283,987$                360,744$           98,073$                 

FRCC 229,346                     242,641                     178,355                    36,886                   FRCC 239,982                 249,287                 196,338            34,505                  

MRO 228,755                     188,595                     365,648                    82,938                   MRO 254,004                 210,449                 407,809            89,999                  

NPCC 351,457                     379,552                     259,414                    60,666                   NPCC 419,398                 438,910                 355,476            83,130                  

RFC 227,519                     195,976                     356,287                    70,103                   RFC 244,564                 211,511                 394,091            71,344                  

SERC 209,250                     182,768                     282,600                    74,963                   SERC 231,022                 210,230                 291,784            74,389                  

SPP  318,469                     174,890                     1,203,393                 167,993                 SPP  335,620                 212,613                 958,340            158,077                

Texas RE 231,678                     145,388                     454,405                    126,888                 Texas RE 233,326                 165,307                 455,453            106,772                

WECC 260,851                     255,653                     279,406                    61,145                   WECC 325,565                 345,880                 252,800            55,174                  

TOTAL 265,263$                   240,052$                   348,964$                  80,779$                  TOTAL 295,976$               281,139$                346,221$           78,932$                 

The accompanying narrative in this filing is essential to understanding the financial information on this schedule

2010 ACTUAL SPEND per FTE 2010 BUDGETED SPEND per FTE

2010 ACTUAL SPEND 2010 BUDGET SPEND

2010 ACTUAL FTEs 2010 BUDGET FTEs
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